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I. OVERVIEW
1.1. Message from the Chairwoman of the Board of Dircetors
Letter to the shareholders

Dear our Valued Shareholders,

The year 2024 marks an 18-year journey of WNDIRECT's formation and development,
overcoming numerous challenges to achieve memorable milestones that signify the company's
prowth. The results that the company has achieved today reflect a persistent spirit, a resilient will
of the entire company teams, and alse affirm the steadfast trust and companionship of our esteemed

sharcholders, customers, and partners.

Challenges and the Journey fo grow

VNDIRECT entered 2024 when the global ceonomy was gradually recovering from Covid, with
a strong wave of digital and green economic transformation worldwide, Meanwhile, the
Vietnamese cconomy and financial market were just recovering from two crises stemming from
Covid and the Van Thinh Phat event. The Vielnamese stock market also faced intense competition
during the recovery phase with many securitics companies from hanks continuously scaling up.
adopting fee and interest reduction strategies 1o gain market share, In this context, VNDIRECT

was ready to embark on a revolution to renew its team, refresh its technological platfonn, and




gtreamline its value chain to prepare for a strategic business shift in the new cycle,

However, the beginning of 2024 posed a significant challenge as VNDIRECT faced 2 severe
incident: its technology system was attacked by hackers. This was the first ime the Company had
to face an incident that paralyzed the system and disrupted its entire service provision, which
seriously affeeted the trust of customers and partners in the company. In the face of a major and
unexpected incident not only for VNDIRECT but also for the entire Vietnamese stock market, it
was the determination, solidarity and mutual love of the Vietnamese people that helped the
company receive the suppert of leading experts, the support of customers, pariners and
shareholders, to belp the company completely restore the system and bring the company back to
operation after 1 week of interruption. Even though the incident occurred and tremendously
affected the Customer's operations, the Company always commits to the highest scnse of

responsibility, ensuring the integnty of the customer's assers and all data.

WNDIRECT has always prided itself as a technology company, having spent many years building
and developing systems and platforms o deliver investment products and services to many
individual customers. The incident served as a valuable lesson, helping the company reassess its
system development strategy and clearly understand a new type of risk in the digital economy era.
The hacker event served as a catalyst, providing VNDIRECT's team with valuable expernences,
connecting with leading experts in security and cybersecurity, and thereby being honed to matare
in hoth awareness and approach to system management, ensuring safety and sustainability in a
new era where cyberattacks pose a significant threat not only 1o businesses but also to the economy

and political systems,

‘The incident forced VNDIRECT to adjust its business approach in 2024 with the goal of rebuilding
wust and reconnecting with customers. By introducing supporl packages amd promotuing
communication and engagement, the company gradually regained its reputation and customer
trust. Additionally, VNDIRECT continued to enhance the stability of its system, strengthen 18
security, and build more stringent tisk management processes. [n tesms of prodlucts and services
in the Dstock securities trading segment, the company continued 1o focus on packaging solutions
towards personalization for investors, upgrading trading platforms such as Dtrade, and the
professional data provision platform D-rating to cater [0 customers seeking access to highly
specialized products and services. For the investment advisory and assel MANAZEMENT SCTVICES
segment, VNDIRECT continued to expand its investment product portfalio ta provide customers
with more options for sustainable asset accumulation nvestments. Although the incident
significantly affected market share and new customer acquisitions, by the end of 2024,
VNDIRECT still bad a total of over 940 thousand customers, with maore than 170 thousand active
i
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gecounts. Besides traditional securities trading services, VNDIRECT helped over 20 thousand

customers access investment products with a long-term asset accumulation orientation through the
DGO path,

For comporate client activities, VWDIRECT continued to expand its provision of additional
financial solutions for businesses through liguidity optimization management services, advisory
and capital structuring services, while also accompanying businesses in restructuring and digital

transformation to improve corporate governance quality,

‘For institutional client activities, VNDIRECT continued to build accessing capacity to professional
organizations by packaging service products such as analysis and market accessthrough digital
platforms. The result in 2024 was a 6% market share in institational custemers for VINDIRECT, a

250% increase compared to the same period,

Fot capital market activities, VNDIRECT focused on maintaiming liquidity, optimizing capital
sources, and expanding the balance sheet through a strategy of accessing high-liquidity asset
channels such as bonds and credit institution securities, By the end of 2024, the company's total
assets reached over VND 44 trillion, and equity reached nearly VIND 20 trillion.

Regarding human resource management activities, the company also assessed the significant
impacts on the workforee in the future, due to the rapid development of artificial mtelligence,
;.rh:r: AT will gradually replace employess whe do not utilize AL Continuously refreshing
professional skills, experience, combined with new skills in the digital era is a prerequisite for the

team's development in the future.

2024 was also the year VNDIRECT continued to promote sustainable values in environment,
society, and governance (ESCH). The company mmplemented many initiatives to minimize
environmental impact, support communities through charitable programs, and enhance
transparéncy in corporate governance, This is not only a responsibility that WNDIRECT is
committed to fulfilling but also an opportunity to create positive impacts for the community and

the Vietnamese SConomy.
Unlocking Petential, Sustainable Development

2025 is a pivotal year for the coonomy and financial market of Vietnam, marking a significant
milestone for a new era of national aspiration. Institutional reforms and strong changes in the
executive apparatus will be an important driving foree for the country's strong economic growth
goals. However, there remain enormous challenges from glohal economic and political conflicts.
Therefore, this is forecasted to be a peried where "gpportunities” and "challenges" intertwing,

requiring clements of the sconomy to always be ready to adapt to the most unpredictable scenanos.
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In this context, VNDIRECT will focus on strengthening and renewing the foundations for business
capabilities based an "people - technology and customer-oriented value chaing.” VNDIRECT will
continue to build a team with & spirit of innovation and creativity, taking technology as the core
foundation and the guiding principle *Customer Centric” to enhance operational efficiency and
optimize customer experience. The company will apply artificial intelligence (Al) o perfecting
the value chain towards highly personalized product and service packaging, suitable for each

CUSImEr segment,

2025 is forecasted to be a year of strong growth for the stock trading market with the emergence
of the KRX system and the upgrade of the Vietnamese stock market. The company will focus on
refining the Dstock trading service package, the investment and asset management advisory
service package Dwealth, and the expert service package Deare, fully meeting the needs of
individual customers participating in the market.

For capital market activities, the company focuses on strengthening capabilities in governance and
financial restructuring advisory, risk assessment, and appraisal capabilities to build a solid
foundation for a new development cycle of the capital market. Additionally, the company also
expands its target customer base to statc-owned enterprises in industries aligned with the statc's
development positioning For institutional and financial institution client activities, the company
continues to expand the market, focusing on financial institetions, international organizations, o

connect and channel international capital flows into the Vietnamese market in the furure.
Acknowledgment and Commitment

Looking back the journey of more than 18 years of building and developmg, YNDIRECT has gone
through many difficulties and challenges where each lesson has helped the company become more
resilient and equipped for the comming road. 18 years marks a mlestone of maturity for
VNDIRECT, ready to face opportunitics and challenges to help every customer achicve
sustainable finaneial health. Today's achievements could not have been done without the support
and trust of our esteemed customers and clients, This companionship is the motivation for

VNDIRECT to continsously reach further, overcome all challenges, and conguer new peaks.

2025 will be a year intertwined with oppertunities and challeages, where VNDIRECT continues to
adhere to the vision and mission of the orgamization and conmibutes to building & transparcnt,
cfficient, and sustainable financial market. We are committed to continuously striving to bring the
best value to our shareholders, customers, and partners, while actively contributing to the overall

"development of the Vietnamese econamy.




1.2.  Highlights of VNDIRECT in 2024

Business Performance 2024

o  Total Assets: YIND 44,295 billion

e  Owner's Equity: VND 19,715 billion
s Profit Before Tax: VIND 2,088 billion
o Profit After Tax: VIND 1,718 billion
« ROAA (TTM): 4,0%

» ROAE (TTM): 9,5%

Overcoming Crisis: Resilience through Determination and Collective Strength

In March 2024, VNDIRECT faced a large-scale cyberattack that disrupted trading systems and
placed the company under significant pressure. However, thanks 1o the solidarity and relentless
efforts of all employees, the company fully restored its systems within just seven days, Ensuring
customer confidence and maintaining stable trading operations. This event reinforced risk

management capabilities and highlighted the importance of cybersecurity in the digital age.
DTALK: Bridging Knowledge and Inspiring Sustainable Developnrent

VNDIRECT's strategic dialogue series, featuring leading industry experts, has become a symbal
of knowledge connection and the spread of inspiration for sustainable development. In 2024, the
company successfully organized five programs, attracting a large audience. Topics such as “Cyber
Risk.” “Vietnamese Spirit,” and “Challenpes in the Age of AT” raised community awareness about

critical issues m the digital transformation era.
iLEAD Management Training Program: Building internal Strength, Leading the Future

With a pioneering management philosophy and unique [PAM culture (Ingight — Passion — Action
— Mindfulness), VNDIRECT's iLEAD Management training program has bocome the foundation
;‘nr developing the organization's core human resources. In 1024, VMNDIRECT successfully
organized 10 company-wide events, focusing not only on enhancing professional skills for
employces but also encouragmg each individual to take charge of their careers, continuously

innovate and renew.

18th Anniversary: Aspiration for Growth

The 18th anniversary celebration of VNDIRECT with the theme "Aspiration for Growth" provided
an apportunity for the company to reflect on its journey and affirm its commitment to nnovation
in the future. Meaningful activities included team building, the DTALK talk show “Challenges n

the Age of Al," an anniversary gala, and the “For a Green Future” run, which not anly strengthenad
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cohesion but also honored the contributions of the collective aver 18 years of development,
Social Responsibility: Accompanying the Community and Environmient

VNDIRECT is always committed to social responsibility, demonstrated through practical actions
in 2024. The company guickly and timely supported the people of Lao Cai after storms and floeds
with emergency relief activities. Addirionally, the “Fora Green Future” run raised over 122 million
VNI to plant thousands of trees in Simacai oak forest, contributing to ecosystem restoration and

creating sustainable livelihoods for the community.




IL. VNDIRECT OVERVIEW

2.1. About VNDIRECT

Name of the Company:

VNDIRECT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Abbreviation:

VNDIRECT

English name for foreign
transaction:

VNDIRECT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Certificate (registration
number):

Ticker code: VND
Listed Exchange: Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange (HOSE)
Business  Registration | No. 0102065366 issued by Hanoi Authonty for Planning and

Investment for the first time on 16 November 2006, and amended for
the thirteenth time on 21 October 2024,

No. 22(UBCK-GPHDED issued by the State Securities Comenission

Secunti Trad
L?cm P R of Viemam dated 16 November 2006 and other Amended
IcEnse:
Licenses/Regulations.
VND 15,222 999 0R0,000 (In words: Fifteen trillion, twa hundred
Charter Capital: twenty-two  billion, nine hundred ninety-nine million, eighty
thousand dong)
VND 15.222,828,001,540 (In words: Fifteen trillion, two hundred
Share Capital: twenty-twa  billion, cight bundred twenty-eight million, one
thousand, five hundred forty dong)
No. | Nguyen Thuong Hien, Mguyen Du Ward, Hai Ba
Headquaners:
Trung District, Hanoi City, Vietnam
Tel. No: + (84 24) 3972 4568
Fax Na: = (84 24) 3972 4600
Websgite: wiww VNDIRECT.com.vn
- VNDIRECT
Mrs. Pham Minh Huong = Chairwoman of the Board of Dhrectors
Legal representative: Mr. Nguyen Vu Long — Chief Executive Officer |
Mr. Dieu Negoc Tuan — Chief Governance Officer I




2.2, Development Roadmap

2006

VNDIRECT was established under the Business Registration Certificate No. |
0103014521 issued by Hanoi Authority for Planning and Investment on (7
November 2006, the Tax Code of 0102065366 and the Operation License No.
22/UB- CK-GPHDKD by the Chairman of State Securities Commission on 16
November 2006 with the initial charter capital of VIND 50 hallion.

2007

VNDIRECT raised its charter capital to VIND 300 billion.

Became the first enterprise in Vietnam to provide a holistic online stock trading
platform. Established Ho Chi Minh City branch for business expansion.

2008

VNDIRECT invested in its own technology platform, developed the Core system
by itself and created the first premise for its digital platform. This yearit rec orded
4 loss due to the risks from proprictary trading and changes in business foundation

with a focus on trading services and mndividual customers.

2009

VNDIRECT led the market in creating breakthrough products, pioneering futures
and options, margin lending, and other trading financial instruments.

o 2010

The Company reised its charter capital twice, from VND 300 billion to 430
billion, and then to YND 1,000 billion at year-end.

2011

VNDIRECT led the securities brokerage market share on HNX for the first time.
It started focusing on building the first foundation for securities trading brokerage

for individual customers.

2012

The Company launched FIX Bloomberg portal and successfully provided
corparate customers with Direct Market Access products. VNDIRECT signed an
agreement with CIMB on development of analytical operanions to serve foreign

corporate clients.

2014

VNDIRECT increased its charter capital to nearly VND 1,550 billion, with
owner's equity of approximately VND 1,900 billion, to become one of the three

securities companies with the largest capital on the securities exchange. It focused
on brokerage and margin lending, while building the risk management platform
specialized in these business lincs. The Company succesfully expanded its

business by attracting individual investors,

20H 5

VNDIRECT was in TOP 10 securities companies with the largest shares of bond
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transactions in both exchanges, and was honored to be one of the three securitics
companies with the best brokerage service in the 2005 — 20135 period,

2016

VNDIRECT led the market in terms of individual accounts. The total net assets
value of customers under VNDIRECT s management was approximately VIND
26 trillion, The company was also in the TOP 15 representative member
companies in the 2015 — 2016 period, and TOP 30 most transparent enterpriscs
on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (HNX).

2017

VNDIRECT was granted the certificate of eligibility for derivatives trading and

provision of clearing and settiement services for derivatives transactions from

the State Securities Commizsion. The Company also moved its VIND stock from
Hanoi Stock Exchange (HNX) to Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange (HOSE).
VNDIRECT had the best capital use efficiency among securitics companies,

2018

VNDIRECT was granted an amended registration certificate by the State
Securities Commission to increase its capital to VNI 2,204.3 billion, becoming
the sccuritics company with the third largest charter capital in the market. The

Company continued to shift to digital banking business, and connected with
individual customer markets in the region through the Open APT ¢cosystem.

201%

VNDIRECT led the market in terms of transaction value as well as transaction
volume of warrants, The Company guined the highest brokerage market sharc on
UPCOM - 9.66%, and launched Myaccount electronic customer service platform

this year,

2020

VNDIRECT hit 2 milestone of 100,000 new aecounts in 2020, accounting

for 40% of new sccounts in the entire market. VNDIRECT also pioneered in
bringing eKYC to the online account opening process. The Company launched

wealth products for retirement purpose, and DSTOCK customer support page

focusing on securities information.

2021

VNDIRECT increased its charter capital to VND 4,349,446, 870,000

In early 2021, VNDIRECT launched an account epening working stream under
DGO for customers who would like to invest in and manage assets under the DGO

journey at VWNDIRECT. This is a critical starting point in the customer expericnce
journey with VNDIRECT s ecosystem of investment products and services and

)




also the first step for VNDIRECT to identify and cater to the nght customers’
needs effectively.

In 2023, VNDIRECT restructured the company's invesiment portfolio.
Accordingly, VNDIRECT acquired nearly three million shares of the Vietnam
Post and Telecommunications Insurance Corporation ("PTI"), increasing its
holding in this company to 20%. After completing the transaction, FTI became an
associate company of VNDIRECT. At the same time, VNDIRECT completed the
transfer of its enfire capital contribution in the One-Member Limmited Liability
Fund Management Company LPA to LP.A Investmemt Group Joint Stock

2023

Company.

The company completed the issuance of additional shares to the public through
offering to existing shareholders and issuing to existing sharcholders as dividends,
After the issuance, VNDIRECT's charter capital mcreased from VND
12,178,440,090,000 to VND 15,222.999080,000. Consequently, VNDIRECT

became one of the three securitics companies with the largest charter capital in

2024

the market.

2.3, Business activities

(1) Securities business operations: Secunties brokerage; Proprietary trading; Securitics )

underwriting; Investment advisory.

(2) Services of entrusted management of individual investors' securities trading accounts,
distribution or acting a5 an agent for sccuritics distribution; management of secunities trading
accounts; providing securities holder management services for other ENrETPTiSes;

(3) Providing online securities trading services; providing or coordinating with credit institutions
to provide services for customers to borrow moncy (o buy securities or provide securities lending
services; providing or coordinating with credit institutions to provide advance payment services
for securities sales: securities custody: securities clearing and settlement; services in the derivative

gepurities market.

(4} Trading securities on proprietary trading accounts and being allowed to mvest, contribute
capital, isswe, offer financial products.

(5) Advisory services for securities offering documentation, conducting procedures before
securitics offering; acting as a depository agent, payment agent, sccurities transfer agent; advisory

on Testructuring, mergers, acquisitions, reorganizations, business sales; corporale govermance

1
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advisory, corporate strategy advisory; advisory om offering, listing, registering  secuntics

mransactions; advisory on enterprise cquitization.

(6) Providing financial services and other securities services in accordance with legal regulations

after repotting to the State Securities Commission in writing.
1.4. Network of operations

VNDIRECT has an operational network concentrated in major cities in Vietnam such as Hanoi,
Ho Chi Minh City, Da Nang, Quang Ninh, Thanh Hoa, Can Tho, ...

Northern Region

i-[eadquartm: — Hanoi

Address: No. 1 Nguven Thuong Hien Street, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi

Tel.: 024 3972 4568 | Fax: 024 3972 4568

Thank Xuan Branch - VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 3rd Floor, CT1 Building, No. 43 Le Van Luong Street, Nhan Chinh Ward, Thanh Xuan
District, Hanoi City

Dong Da Transaction Office - VIWDIRECT Securitics Corporation

Address: 6th Floor, TTG Tower, No. 174 Thai Ha, Trung Liet Ward, Dong Da District, Hanot City
Hai Ba Trung Transaction Office - VNDIRECT Securitics Corperation

Address: No. 97 Lo Due, Pham Dinh Ho Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi City

vin Cao Transaction Office - VWNDIRECT Securtties Corporation

Address: No. 22 Van Cao, Lieu Giai Ward, Ba Dinh District, Hanot City

Tran Thai Tong Transaction Office — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 15t Floor, No. 95 Tran Thai Tong, Dich Vong Ward, Cau Ciiay District, Hanoi City
Neuy Nhu Kon Tum Transaction Office — VINDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 15t Floor, Comatee Tower, No. 61 Nguy Nhu Kon Tum Street, Nhan Chinh Ward, Thanh
‘Kyan District, Hanoi City

Quang Ninh Branch — VNDIRECT Sccuritics Corporation

Address: Floors 1, 2, and 3, Lot No. 10, Block LK1, Viet Han High-class Residentizl Arca, Hong
Gai Ward, Ha Long City, Quang Nk Province
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Nam Dinh Branch - VNDIRECT Sccurities Corporation

Address: No, 88 — 90 Pham Su Manh Street, Cua Bac Ward, Nam Dinh City, Nam Dinh Province
‘Central Region

Thanh Hoa Branch — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 2nd Floor, No. 11 Hae Thanh, Dien Bien Ward, Thanh Hoa City, Thanh Hoa Province
Vinh Branch — VNDIRECT Securities Corporahien

Address: Plot No. 204, Map No. 01, Yen Vinh Block, Hung Phue Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An
Province

Phone: 0238 BGE 8466

Da Nang Branch — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: Mo, 57 Duy Tan, Hoa Thuan Tay Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City
Phone: 0236 382 1111 | Fax: 0236 389 8616

Nguyen Hu Tho Transaction Office - YNDIRECT Securities Corporation
Address: 5th Floor, Room 54, Riceo Building, Ne. 363 Nguyen Huu The, Khue Trung Ward, Cam
Le Distriet, Da Nang City

Southern Region

Ho Chi Minh City Branch — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 50 Pasteur, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

Phone: (28 7300 0688 | Fax: 028 3914 6924

Binh Duong Branch = VNDIRECT Securitics Corporation

Address: 1st Floor, No. 280, 30/04 Street, Block 03, Chanh Nghia ward, Thu Dau Mot City, Binh

Duong Province

Phone; 0274 222 2659 - 0274 222 2660

Can Tho Branch — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 3rd Floor, STS Building, No. 11B Hoa Binh, Tan An Ward, Ninh Kicu District, Can The
City

Phone: 0292 376 6959 | Fax: 0292 382 6331
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SALA Transaetion Office — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation'

Address: No. 151 Nguven Co Thach, An Loi Dong Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City
Neguyen Xi Transaction Office — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 1st Floor, No. 205 Nguyen Xi Street, Ward 26, Binh Thanh District, Ho Cha Minh City
Hai Thuong Lan Ong Transaction Office — VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

Address: 15t Floor, 102A-B Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 10, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City

2.5, Awards and Achievements

Top 10 Brokerage Market Share Members in 2024

Ranked amang the Top 10 sccuritics companies with the largest brokerage market share in 2034,
recognized and awarded by the Vietnam Exchange (Top 3 secunties companies with the largest
stock brokerage market share on the Hanoi Stock Exchange; Top 6 securities companies with the
larpest brokerage market share on the Hochiminh Stock Exchange).

Top 10 Outstanding Members in Securities Custody Activities in 2024

Ranked among the Top 10 outstanding members in securitics custody activities in 2024,
recogmized and awarded by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation.

Top 10 Cutstanding Members in Derivatives Securities Settlement Aectivitiex in 2024

Ranked among the Top 10 outstanding members in derivatives securities settlement activities in

2024, recognized and awarded by the Victnam Securities Depository and Cleanng Corporation.
Private {00 - Top Private Enterprises with the Largest Tax Contribution in Vietnam

VNDIRECT rariked 36th in the Top 100 private enterprises with the largest tax contnbution i

Vietnam and Top 4 private securities companies with the largest tx contnibution.
Top 10 Reputable Companies in the Financial Sector in 2024

VNDIRECT is among the Top 5 reputable companies in the financial sector — Securities Company

Group in 2024, announced by Vietnam Report.

ih

L wNDIRECT has received Declsion No. 39/QD-UBCK dated March 14, 2025, (sued by the Siate Recuritics
Commission of Vietnam (53C) regarding the amendment of the decision spproving the establishmgnt of the
Company's trading office. Accordingly, fram March 14, 2025, the SALA Trading Office will bave the follovwarg

updated information:
- Trading Office Name: Thu Due Trading Office — VINDIRECT Securities Corporation
= Trading Office Address: Floass 1, 4 & 3, Mo. | and No. 3, B4 Sireet, An Loi Dong Ward, Thu Dre Cicy, He Chi
Minh Ciy.
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_ Top 500 Largest Enterprises in Vietham

For the 8th consecutive time, listed in VINRS00 - Top 500 Largest Enterprises in Vietnam ranked
by Vietnam Report. In 2024, VNDIRECT ranked 3rd in the securities sector and 123rd in the
private enterprise group.

Top 506 Mast Profitable Enierprises in Vietnam

Ranked among the Top 500 most profitable enterprises in Vietmam by Vietmam Report,

VNDIRECT ranked 62nd among the most profitable enterprises and 32nd among the most
profitable private enterprises.

Tap 500 Leading Emplayers in Vietham VBESO0

Ranked among the Top 500 leading employers in Vietnam VBES00, announced by Investment
Newspaper and VietResearch, holding the 116th position.

2.6. Vision — Mission
VISION OF VNDIRECT

VNDIRECT aspires to become a hub of intelligence and a platform for glabal lnowledge
exchange, channeling the nation’s capital and creating opportunities for all citizens to parti¢cipate
alongside businesses in confributing to the Vietnam Dream — bringing value in service to all

Vietnamese people.
OUR MISSION

WNDIRECT aspire to build and develop into a financial imstitution trusted by all clients, where
we provide technological intelligence and a team of professionals with cthical standards and a
spirit of dedicated service to help every customer achieve Financial Health, Secured Wealth, and

Sustainable Development.
2.7. Core Value

Conduet of Integrity

The initial core value of every VNDIRECTOR. We understand that only integrity and commitment
b respect the objective truth can help VNDIRECT build our service credibility and sustainable
values for a collective of job-loving people, as well as cherish all the gpportunities our customers
have give us.

Collective Wisdom

Each individual actively secks help from knowledgeable, expenienced and willing-to-leam people,
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at the same time siudy the collective intelligence accumulated over time and apply it effectively at

work to improve the organization's competency.
Collaboration of Services

Every experience we have with cach customer i3 a valuable asset, helping us to always learn and
improve ourselves. We respect every customer's distinct needs, always listen to each demund, and

provide optimum solutions to our customers in every condition possible.
Connection of Values

We share and contribute experience and professional knowledge to create a river of collective
wisdom, helping sach of us gain professional knowledge foundation and continuous creativity of
4 growing team to mest our customers’ expectations.

2.5. Development orientations

VNDIRECT focuses on the orientation to become an investment ecosystem with a full range of
choices for customers based on three core competencies.

Hum:an Resources

VNDIRECT s working culture is built on four IPAM core competencies of each employee:
Tnsights - Power of abservation, Respect the truth

Passion — Power of learming, Passion for improvement

Action — Power of execution, Positive mmd

Mindfulness — Power of concentration, Truthful companion

VNDIRECT — A community of professionals who work with ethics and dedication to service.
With [PAM qualities (Insights — Passion — Action — Mindfulness), we have built the strength of &
group of professional people with deep understanding of the company’s viston, mission and values
(TNSIGEHTS), the capacity to generate power of creativity from professional passion {PASSION),
‘to act within a group of intellectuals with diverse experience {ACTION), and to stay firm
throughout every market condition (MINDFULNESS).

Technology

VNDIRECT always positions technology as a core business capability, serving as the foundation

for the company's long-term competitive strategy positioning with three spearhead objectives:

s Stability: The technology incident has made the company more aware of the imporiance
of ensuring stability and continuous operation of the system. In the challenging context of
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the digstal age, amidst the cxisting risks of cyber artacks, maintaining system stability and
security is the ultimate goal in the company's technology strategy.

o Scalability; The strong development cycle of digital products is an opportunity for the
company to reach millions of users. Therefore, the flexibility to expand the system's
productivity and service capacity is an important premise for periods of rapid markel
growth.

s Time to Market: A flexible system to ensure the fastest time to market for products and

services, ensuring the company's continuous competitive capability.
‘Value Chain

Individual Customers: VNDIRECT positions itsclf as n relisble partner for customers on the
joumey to create financial health DGO, based on buiiding the HWG (Health — Wealth = Growth)
agset pyramid, aiming towards security, prosperity, and sustainable development for customers.
The company continues to package and perfect product and service solutions for the needs of stock
trading Dstock: investment advisory and asset management Dwealth, and expert services Deare.

Corporate Customers: VNDIRECT is commitied 10 accompanying businesses on the journey of
digital transformation, green transformation, and helping businesses access, optimize capital
resources, and develop sustainably. In addition to waditional financial structuring advisory
services, the company continucs to refine solutions for capital management advisory, resiructuring

“advisory, and corporate governance advisory to help businesses aim for the highest standards of
ESG.

Institutional Customers, Financial Institutions: With the "plug & play” strategy, VINDIRECT
expands its connections with organizations and financial institutions theough rechnology
positioning to become an cxtended amm for organizations participating the capital market in

Wietnam




2.9, Subsidiaries and Associate Companies: Business Performance

Associate Companies

Core Ownership
. Company™s | Address of head Contributed
No. Buginess Percentage
name office " Capital (VND)
Activities (%)
Pogi- Nom-life
No. 95 Tran Thai
Telecommmi Insurance
Tong Swreet, Dich
cation Joini- Business
1 Vong Ward Cau #36,115,332,000 20%
Stock e
Criery Districe, Hanai
Insurance Financial
C'ify. Figtnam
corporalion Services
No. 1, Streer 4, Fi61
Residential  Area,
Croldsun Restairants %
Alley 32, An Duong 3,55%
s Food  Joini o ]" o and Mobile s 35000
Sireel, Yem N 390,000, i '
Stack oo o Catering Y cHing:xtic
ard, e o
Compeny” & Services A
District, Hanoi City,
Vietmam

Performance of the Associated Company in 2024 fdata as of 31712720235

Iinir; WND Billion

| Ttems Post-Telecommunication | Goldsun Food Joint Stock
Joint-Stock Insurance Company (GSF)
corporation (PTT)
Revenue 4,111 1,377
Profit Before Tax 403 [
Profit After Tax 322 5 |
 Total Assets 8,424 1,523

* O March 21, 2025, the Chairman of the Board of Directors issued
Galden Sun Restaurant Joint Stock Company, so that after the tronsfer,

will oo longer be an associated company of VNDIRECT
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2.10. Information about governance model, business organization and managerial apparatus
Governance model

VNDIRECT operates as & joint-stock company, organized and functioning according to the model
stipulated in point a, Clause 1, Article 137 of the Law on Enterprises, including: General Mecting
of Sharcholders, Board of Directars, Board of Supervisors, and CEQ (see diagram below):
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[11. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

3.1. Business conditions in 2024

VIETNAM'S ECONOMY: VIETNAM'S GDP GROWTH EXCEEDED MARKET'S
EXPECTATIONS IN 2024

According to the General Statistics Office (GS0), Viemam's GDP growth of 7.1% year-on-year
(YoY) in 2024 significantly surpassed international organizations’ forecasts of 6-6.5%, making
Vietnam one of the fastest-growing economics in Asia. This growth rate is also the second-lughest
since the COVID-19 pandemic, only trailing the record-breaking 8.54% in 20221 when the
cconomy reopened post-pandernic. Viemam experienced strong economic growth m 2024 due to:
1) high manufactuning growth from a low base in 2023; 2) a 14% YoY increase in €Xport (urnover
following & nearly 5% decline in 2023; 3) a nearly 40% YoY increase in intemational arrivals,
strongly supporting domestic consumption recovery, 4) & record FDI disbursement capital (+9.4%
YoY in 2024); and 5) a low-interest-rate environment and revised land laws boosting the recovery

of the real estate sector and private investunent.

Figare 1:  Vietnam's economic growth Figure2: Vietnam is expected to be among the
momentum remained strong, recording @ fastest-growing ecomomies in Asia in 2024
7.55% YoY growth rate in 4024
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The industrial and construction sector was the main growth driver. For 2024, the industrial and
construction sector enjoyed the strong growth rate of 8.2% YoY, marking its highest annual growth
rate since 2019, The electricity, gas, steam, and air conditioning sub-sector expanded 10.1% Yo
in 2024, fallowed by the manufacturing sub-sector (+9.8% YoY') and the water supply sub-secior
(+9.4% YoY). On the other hand, mining sub-sector declined 7.2% YoY, the worst since 2016,
due to a significant contraction in crude oil and natural gas production. Export and unport
registered double-digit growth in 2024, Vietnam export turnover rose 14.3% Yo w USD4E05. 5bn
while imports increased 16.7% YoY to USD3R0.Ebn n 2024, translating 1o a trade surplus of

%



USD24.7bn by year-end (vs USD28.4bn in 2023). Electromc goods, computers (USD72.6bn;
+26.6% YoY); Telephones, mobile phones and parts (USDS53.9bn; +2.9% YoY), Machines and
equipments (USD32.2bn; +21.0% YoY) Textiles (USD37.0bn; +11.2% YoY): and Footwear
{USD22.9bn; +13.0% YoY) were five key export products in 2024,

.Figurt 3: Manufacturing activities propelled Figure 4:  Against all odds, both export and

growth imports accelerated remarkably in 2024
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Service sector improved steadily throughout the year. For 2024, the service sector increased by
7.4% YoY,. marking the second highest growth rate in the 2020-2024 period. Factors supporting

the service sector in 2024 include a nearly 40% YoY increase in international tourist arrivals, a

recovery in the real estate market, and gradual improvements i the job market and workers] |

incomes,
Figure 5: International tourist arrivals surged Figure 6: ..., thus supporting the recovery
18.5% YoY in 2024, almost reaching the all- domestic demand in 2024

time record set in 2009, ..
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For 2024, the agriculture, forestry, and fishery scctor grew by 3.3% Yo¥, down from 3.9% in
2023, mostly due to the impact of Typhoon Yagi. According to man livestock products, the pig
herd size expanded 6.6% YoY in 2024 due to the trend of shifting livestock farming from Family
10 semi-industrial &nd the sharp rise in pork prices, while poultry herd size increased 5.4% YoY.
On the flip side, the size of the buffalo herds decreased.

Implemented FDI demonstrated strong momentum in 2024, increasing 9.4% Yo to USD25.4bn
in 2024, Meanwhile, registered FDI edged down 3.0% YoY to USD38.2bn. . Singapore lcads
Victnam's total registered FIDI in 2024 with USD10.2bn (+31.4% YoY), accounting for 26. 7% of
Vietnam's total registered FDI in 2024, followed by South Korea with USD7.1bn (+37.5% YoY),
accounting for 18.5%. China led in terms of newly signed projects, accounting for 28.3%, while
South Korea dominated in FDI capital adjustments, capital contributions, and share purchases.

NVIDLA CEQ Jensen Huang has announced the establishment of an AT R&D hub in Hanoi,
marking the company's first such center in Southeast Asia. This strategic move, coupled with the
development of a cutting-edge data center, aligns with Viemam's ambitious goal of achieving
USD100bn in anmual semiconductor revenue by 2050 NVIDIA's commitment fo Vietnam
underscores the nation’s burgeoning tech sector and its potential to emerge as a promment player
m the global Al landscape.

Despite the high GDP growth in 2024, Viemam's cconomic recovery remains uneven, as the
]-J'I'imﬂl'j"' drivers were improvements in external factors, notably cxports and FDI disbursement.
Meanwhile, domestic consumption recovery fell short of expectations, Specifically, the total retail
sales of goods and consumer services at current prices rose by 9.0% YoY in 2024 {compared to
+9.4% Ya¥ in 2023). Excluding inflation, retail sales increased by only 5.9% Yo (vs. +6.5%
YoY in 2023), significantly lower than the pre-pandemic growth rate of 2-9% YoY. Additionally,
both public and private investments underperformed. Private investment rose by T.7% YooY to
VIND2,064. 2tn (USDED.5hn) in 2024, accounting for 55.9% of total investment. Although this
marked an improvement from the 2.6% YoY growth i 2023, it remained far below the pre-
pandemic growth of 15-16% annually, Meanwhile, state capital disbursement increased modestly
by 3.3% YoY to VNDG6 1, 3tm, significantly lower than the high baseline of +24.0% Yo in 2023,
‘achieving only £4.6% of the annual target.
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Figure 7: FDI became a driving force for Figure 8 Implemented state capital
growth, while private investment began to  decelerated growth in 2024 due to am
aceelerate growth momentum exceptionally high base
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The persistent inflation during the first three quarters of 2024 stood as a major obstacle to
consumers feeling any significant improvement in their "real income." From February through
Tuly, inflation breached the 4% threshold, dampening purchasing power. A notable cooling only
began in August, largely attributed to declining fuel prices. For the year as a whele, Vietnam's
consumer price index (CPI) recorded an average year-on-vear increase of 3.63%, meeting our
projections and fulfilling the National Assembly’s target of keeping nflation below 4.5%.

Exchange rate fluctuations overshadowed some of Vietnam's macroeconomic highlights in 2024,
The VND depreciated by 4.9% against the USD in the first half of the year, driven by persistent
inflation and strong U.S. labor market data, which delayed the Fed's first rate cut and prompted
the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) to intervene by selling USD6bn in foreign reserves. The Fed's
$0-basis-point rate cut in 3Q24 and its shift o a neutral policy stance supported the YNIYs
recovery. However, exchange rate pressures surged again in late October as the ULS. presidential
election approached, with Trump's victory driving the dollar index (DXY) past 108 by year-end.
By the close of 2024, the VND had depreciated by 5% amid a 7% risc in the DXY, forcing the
SOV to sell an sdditional USD2.6bn in December alone, totaling approximately USD%bn in

reserve sales for the vear.
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Figure 9: Vietnam headline CPI averaged Figure 10: USD/VND rate increased 5.0% in

3.63% in 2024 24
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The Vietnamese Dong has exhibited greater resilience against currency volatlity compared to
regional peers like the Malaysian Ringgit and Thai Baht amid the evolving US monetary policy
landscape and the comeback of Trump, This stability is largely attributable to the timely
interventions of the SBV. VNDIRECT believe this is crucial for export-oriented economies like
Vietnam, as substantial currency fluctuations, including significant appreciation, can crode the

competitiveness of export poods m global markets.

The SBV actively managed monetary policy in 2024 to balance growth promotion and exchange
rate stability. Interbank rates trended higher as SBV sought 1o maintain sufficiently elevated levels
to narrow the interest rate gap between the VND and USD, supporting exchange rates. Meanwhile,
deposit rates remained relatively stable, declining in the first half of the year and rebounding in
the second half. By the end of 2024, the average | 2-month deposit rate of commercial banks stood
at 4.£6%, down slightly by 0.08 percentape points from year-end 2023, According to the Ministry
of Finance, lending rates dropped by 44 basis points over the same period. A low-interesi-rate
‘environment and a recovering real estale market holstered credit demand, with credit growth
reaching 15.1% YoY in 2024, surpassing the previous vear's 13.8%. In line with dircctives from
the Prime Minister, SBV adopted a flexible and timely approach to credit growth management,
adjusting growth targets for commercial banks twice during the year to ensure adequate capital for

the economy.
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2024 STOCK MARKET RECAP: THE MARKET STRUGGLES TO BREAK THROUGH
THE 1.300-POINT RESISTANCE LEVEL.

Figure 13: Battling beadwinds in 2024, VN-INDEX closed the year 2024 with an increase of 12.1%
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The Vietnamese stock market experienced significant volatility in 2024, marked by two sharply
contrasting phases: a vibrant first half and a subdued second half. The specific developments can
be described as follows:

% 10 on astrong footing: The YN-Index exhibiting a 13.5% surge in 1Q alone, driven by 1) The
recent passage of the Land Law by the NA; 2) robust 1024 GDP growth of 5.66% Yo, the
strongest 10 growth since 2020,

» 20- The joy is short-lived: VN-Index surpassed 1,300 threshold on Junc 12, yet the VIND
devalued 4.9% against the USD in 1H24, which prompted the SBY to sell ~USD6bn of
‘ peserves, resulting in a 50-pt market decline toward quarter-end.

» 30)- Tailwinds failed to 1ift the market: Despite the Fed's 50bp rate cut and the 1ssuance of
Cireular 682024/ TT-BTC, the VN-Index traded in a namow range and failed to advance
further.

% 40- Uncertainty unfolds:. Trump's comeback, pushing the DXY above 108, prompting the
SRV to sell ~USD2.6bn in December. Ironically, the DXY continued its ascent despite the
Fed's 1% rate cut for 2024, While tailwinds, such as NVIDIA CEQ Jensen Huang's visit to
Vietnam to establish an AT R&D hub — the first in Southeast Asia ~ offered some optimism,
escalating FX pressures culminated in a staggering foreign net sell-off of VNDS0bn by year-
end, ultimately leading the VN-Index to close the year at 1,266.78 (+12.1% Yo Y)
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The VIN-Index has exhibited strong relative performance in 2024, delivering a 12.1% Yo' retum,
This performance more than doubled the 5.1% retumn observed in the MSCI Index tracking
Frontier Markets and several Southeast Asian benchmarks. VNDIRECT view this relative strength
as a tailwind, positioning Vietnam favorably for potential future market upgrades and enhancing
its attractiveness to global investors.

The year 2024 marked significant strides in enhancing market transparcncy, including: 1) the
National Assembly's approval of the amended Securities Law; 2) strengthened law enforcement
through high-profile eases invalving Tan Hoang Minh, Van Thinh Phat-3CB, and FLEC Group-
Trinh Van Quyet: and 3) improved foreign investor accessibility with the issuance of Circular
68/2024/TT-BTC, VNDIRECT believes these reforms provide a solid foundation for the market's
future growth,

Liguidity improved, driven by the vibrant markes activity in the first half of 2024,

In 2024, the average trading value on three bourses increased 20.5% YoY to VNDZLlin
(USD&22.9mn), including HOSE: VND18 8tn (USD733.2mn), +23.9% Yo¥; HNX: VNDL.5tn
(USD56.6mn), -11.5% YoY; and UPCOM: VND01bn (USD35mn), +22.6% YoY. New domestic

securities accounts surged 411.8% YoY o 2,001,72% accounts from low base.

The majority of trading volume increases occurred in 1 H24, with average trading value across
three bourses surging 80.2% YoY, in line with robust market performance, thanks to: 1) & low
base in 1H23; and 2) robust earnings growth of listed companies of 11.3% and 20.6% YoY in 1Q
and 20Q, respectively. Conversely, average liquidity declined 17.6% YoY in ZH24 due 1o
significant foreign capital outflows, which dampened market sentiment duc to unceraintics
surrounding US President-glect Trump and a strengthening DXY that triggered a capital flight.

Figure 14: Avernge trading value increased 20.5%  Figure 15: 2024 saw liquidity increased in HoSE
YoY to VND2 1. Itnfsession (USDmn) in 2024 and UPCOM-Index
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Foreign investors recorded o historic net sell-off in 2024

Foreign investors recorded a net sell-off of VND90.3tn (USD3.5bn) in 2024, & sharp increase
compared to VIND24.7in (USD963. 3mn) in 2023,

Net selling persisted throughout mest of 2024, except in January, with Junc witnessing the largest
foreign capital eutflow. This coincided with the VND depreciating by approximatcly 5% agamst
the USD, prompting the SBV to intervene by selling around USD%mn in foreign reserves to
stabilize the exchange rate,

Exchange rate pressures were primarily driven by persistent U8, inflation and strong labor market
data, which kept the Fed's hawkish stance intact in the first half of the year, anchoring the dollar
index (DXY) at elevated levels and exerting pressure on the YND. While foreign net selling eased
by 26.5% in the second half, supported by the Fed's 1% rate cut, the trend reverscd late in the year.

Trump's victory in the 2024 1.5, presidential clection pushed the DXY above 108, reigniting
‘exchange rate pressures and triggering a global capital shift from frontier end emerging mirkets

to developed economies like the US., amid heightened uncertainty.

Figure 16: Forcign investors met sold Figure 17: The proportion of foreign
VND90.3tm (USD3.5be) when the VNI (transactions rose to 9.2% from 7.1% in 2013
depreciated 5% against the USI in 2024
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3.2, Business performance
Businesz Performance

Unft, VND bilfiar

Business Performance 2023 2024
 Total Assets 41,742 44,295
Owmner's Equity . 16,508 19,715
Liquid capital ratio (LCR) (%) 355.7% 356.1%
Profit Before Tax 2,482 2,088
Profit After Tax 2,022 1.71%
| ROAA (%) 5.0% 4.0%
ROAE (%) 13.0% 0.5%

Source: Audited VNDIRECT 2024 Financial Statemenls

I:[ht: company's profit before tax reached YND 2,088 billion, completing 83% of the profit before
tax plan approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, Total revenue of the company reached
WND 5,349 billion, a decrease of 19.0% compared to the same period ("YoY™) in 2023, with net
revenue decreasing by 19.9% to WVND 4,088 billion. Total assets as of 31/12/2024 reached YND
44.20% hillion, an increase of 6.1% compared to the end of 2023, while owner's equity iﬂcrcas:d;"
by 19.4% YaY 1o VND 19,715 billion after VNDIRECT completed its charter capital increase. :J

F-
i

In 2024, the company continued to follow a prudent direction to ensure compliance for busines
activities while siming for market transparency and a solid foundation for future market
development. VNDIRECT maintained a high Liguid capital ratio (LCR) of 356.1% as of
,}I.-'l!.-'lﬂiai.

Although the company's profit after tax in 2024 reached VIND 1,718 billion, a decrease of 15.9%
compared to 2023, VINDIRECT continued to rank among the top sccurities companies with high
profits. In 2024, the company complcted an merease in charter capital through public offering of
shares to existing shareholders, raising the charter capital to VND 15,222 billion as of 3171272024
The completion of capital increase in the second half of the Fscal year caused a declinc in

profitability compared 1o 2023, specifically:

« ROAE reached 9.5%. a decrease of 26.9% compared to 2023
«  ROAA reached 4.0%, an increase of 20.0% compared to 2023
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Liguidity ratio

Indicators 2023 | 2024

Current Ratio (times)
1.63 | 1.76

(Current Assets/Current Liabilities)

Quick Ratio (times)
1.63 1.76

(i(Current Assets — Inventory)/Current Liabilities)

Sonrce: Audited VNDIRECT 20124 Financial Starements

YNDIRECT always ensures liquidity and proactively evaluates business activities periedically to
provide liquidity scenarios with the goal of ensuring liquidity and optimizing the efficiency of the
company's asset capital, Building a liquidity buffer from highly liquid assets i5 also one of the
company's operational strategics, ensuring that highly liquid assets always account for a high

proportion of the investment portfolio simicture.

Investment ftems

Capital
Main Business . Ownership ,
No.| Company Name Contribution Relationship
Area (%)
(VND)

I | Paost — | Non-life 20.00°% | Associate
Telecommunication | insurance and Company
Joimt - Stock | financial 836,115,332,000
[nsurance BErvices
Corporation business

2 | Goldsun Food Joint | Restaurant 5.55% | Assocute
Stock Company” business, food | 78,390,000,000 Company

service

Sonrce- Audited VNDIRECT 2024 Finarcial Statementy

As of 3171272024, VNDIRECT recorded two associated companics: Vietnam Post and

“Telecommunications Insurance Corporation (“PTI") with a 20,0% shareholding and Golden Sun

Restaurant Joint Stock Company (“GSF”) wath a 5.5% shareholding.

=t

E O March 21, 2025, the Cheirman of the Baard of Directors issued @
Giolden Sun Restanrant Jomt Stock Company, so that after the tranifer, Golden Sun

Company will no Jemger be an associated company af VNDIRECT.
m

decision regarding the transfer of shares of
Restaurant Joiml Stock
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3.3. Business Segment Performance in 2024 of VNDIRECT

3.3.1. Capital Market Business Performance

‘The capital market business activities in 2024 continued to focus on strategic goals:

(i) Managing the balance sheet and ensurning safe, sustainable growth and effective return on

capital,

(ii) Enhancing risk management capabilities across diverse asset channels, including products in

the money market, stock market, bonds, and derivatives.

(iii) Expanding advisory capacity for underwriting and market-making for bonds.

The balance sheet structure shifted towards safety and pradence to prepare resources for the

TOTAL CAPITAL

new market development cyele
Unit: VNI Billion
suiging | Susmesy | TrUMheR | Smpenio
2023 (V) 2024 (%)
1. Deposits 18,553 13,004 44% 29%
| 2. Bonds 8,233 14,618 20% 33%
3, Stocks 2,439 3,339 6% RY%
4. Loans 10,284 !I 10,344 25%- 23%
5. Other Assets 2,231 2,990 5% %
TOTAL ASSETS 41,742 44,295 100% 100%
) Unit: VND billion
Indicator 3171272023 3L/122024 FoLi HOAROTES
2023 (%) 2024 (%)
. Owner's Equity 16,508 19,715 a0% 45%
3, Shert-term Loans 20,468 22,436 49% 51%
3. Bond Issuance B0 4010 2% 1%
4. Oiher Liabilities 1,966 1,744 Q%% 3%
41,742 44,295 100% 100%

Source: Audited FPNDIRECT 2024 Financial Statements
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Regarding asset allocation, with deposit interest rates reaching the bottom in the first halfof 2024,
the average 12-month term decreased to 4.86%. VNDIRECT proactively reduced the scale of
Term Deposits (TDs) and Certificates of Deposit (CDs) and shifted to hond investment to improve
profitability. Although the total bond scale increased sharply by 77.6% YoV, the increase mamly
came from Finaneial Instinstion bonds (FI Bonds) and government bonds (accounting for about
&0 of the bond increase seale). The newly invested corporate bonds are mostly F1 Bonds,
primarily issued by state-owned banks, which are safe and highly liquid, thus not significantly

increases the nisk level of the overall financial asset portfolio,

Regarding capital structure, the increase in charter capital by more than VND 3,000 billion raised
the proportion of long-term capital from 42% to 45% of total capital. For the remaming capital,
the company focused on borrowing from large banks, taking advantage of low-interest rates to

reduce loan interest costs.

The portfolic’s effectiveness continues to adhers to two objectives: ensuring safety and optimizing

efficiency in the context of many market challenges.

Uimir: VND billion

Business Resulis 2023 2024
| Net Revenue from Capital Market Financial Assets™ 2813 1.918
?L.I;ﬂﬂm-ﬂl Expense (allocated)® . 1,108 Eﬂi
Capital Market Business Efficiency 1,705 1,410

Sauree: dudited VNDIRECT 2024 Financial Staiemenis

2024 was a challenging vear for Deposit and Bond business activitics a8 interest raies hit the
bottom and then gradually increased from Q2. Reducing the scale of TDs and CDs with fixed
interest rates when rates were still low and shifting to investing in F1 Bonds with floating rates was
ane of the strategies to proactively respond and reduce the impact on Capital Market Business
Revenue. Regarding corporate bonds, although 2024 saw a market recovery, 1ssuing organizations
were not very diverse, and there were nol many quality investment opportunities that met the
company’s risk appetite. Therefore, the company did nof choose to significantly mcrease the scale
of corpotate bond investment, instead continuing to restructure the old corporate bond portfolio
while investing in a few high-gquality corporate bonds based on the principle of consistent selection

+ Nipt revenue from Capitnl Market financial aesets includes Losses from Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loes (FVTPL) R ; L
5 Finaneial eupenses are allocated based on the scale of cupital utilization of earning assel inndlcalons
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rI;:i' leading companies with good management capabilities and secured cash flow.

Most importantly, VNDIRECT focuses on optimizing financial costs. With its corporate position,
cxpertise in forecasting market interest rates, and strategy of focusing on cooperation with state-
owned banks and large joint-stock commercial banks, VNDIRECT negotiated long-term loans
with competitive interest rates compared to the market during the interest rate bottom period.

By the end of the year, nct revenue from capital market financial assets decreased by 31.8%, while
financial costs for capital market operations dropped sharply by 54.2% YoY.

Affirming a Reputable Position in Underwriting and Bond Market Making

Lt VND billion

Business Hesults 2023 2024

Revenue from underwriting and issuance agency | I
108 34

services |

Saurce: Audited VNDIRECT 2024 Financial Statemenls

Recognizing market nsks, VNDIRECT chose to increase the bond portfoho scale of Credit
Institutions to supplement supply for customers with investment needs while maintaming a
cautious approach 1o underwriting activities with other corporate bonds. The value of bonds
underwritten by VNDIRECT remained low, ascounting for only 2% of the total bond value
advised by VNDIRECT in 2024 (2023: 5%), with the focus af investment banking activities on
advisory products and agency services. Therefore, despite maintaining a top market share in
‘advisory, revenue from securities underwriting and agency services decreased by 50% compared
1o 2023, reaching VND 54 billion. As a result, VNDIRECT chose a strategy of sustamable

expansion with cOrporate CustOmers.

Alongside the positive and healthy recovery of the corporate bond market in 2024, VNDIRECT
contiuously affirmed its position as a bond market maker, continuing its role and mission in
supporting and accompanying enterprises in capital Taising activities and creating 2 saft and

effective investment channe] for investors,

By the end of 2024, more than 10,500 individual customers and over 100 institutional cusiomers
had used VNDIRECT's bond investment products, with total product distribution sales reaching
nr:a.ﬂ:.r VND 60,000 billion, VNDIRECT is a pioneer in implementing secondary investment
products m credit institution honds on the market. This product 1s highly safe and liquid and has
beecn positively received by corporate customers. Continuing the suceess of previous years, in

2024, the corapany achieved over VND 16,500 billion in sales of eredit instiwution bond investment
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nroducts for comparate customers, In 2024, the company launched credit institution bond products
an digital platforms for the first time, providing individual investors with additional investment

options and casy access to transactions, thereby attracting more than 750 interested mnvestors.
3.3.2. Securities Services Business Performance

Urit: ND billiow

Securities Services Business Performance 223 2024
Revenue from brokerage services 867 | 720
Grain from loans and recervables | [.154 [.255

Capree: Audited VNDIRECT 2024 Financial Statemenis

At the end of 2024, the number of new accounts opened at VNDIRECT increased by 5% compared
to the end of 2024 {an increase of 47,362 accounts). The number of customers managed by
VNDIRECT at the end of 2024 also increased by 3% compared to the same period in 2023,
reaching 940,797 customers, with the average value of asscts under management (NAY) 2024
exceeding VND 180 million.

30124 was also a challenging year for VNDIRECT's seeurities services as the compaiy faced a
serious incident: its technology system was attacked by hackers, This was one of the biggest
challenges VNDIRECT has ever faced in over 17 years of development. The incident not only
caused termporary dismuptions in operations but also tested the trust of customers and pariners i
fhe company. Nevertheless, by the end of 2024, VNDIRECT continued to affirm it position
ameng the top securities companies, ranking in the top 6 in brokerage market share on HOSE with
5.0%, top 3 in hrokerage market share on HNX, and top 4 on the UPCoM market with markct
shares of 7.3% and 5.6%, respectively.

Total revenue from securities trading services for the entire year of 2024 at VNDIRECT reached
WND 1,975 billion, a decrease of 2% compared to the previous year, inchuding: Aceumulated
securities brokerage revenoe for the entire vear of 2024 reached VND 720 billion, a decrease of
17.0% YoY, while margin trading revenuc reached VIND 1,255 billion, an mcrease of B.8%
compared to 2023, Although securities trading service fees experienced a shight dechne compared
to the previous year, VNDIRECT still demeonstrated adaptability and maintained operational
efficiency in a challenging market year..
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3.4. Business Performance by Customer Segmenis
34,1 Individuwal Customiers

In 2024, VNDIRECT remaincd committed to the strategy of transforming the service fee model,
capturing digital economic trends, and developing according to the green economy orientation of
the IPA Group. VNDIRECT focused on building a diverse and comprehensive prodluct ecosystem,
providing seamless experiences and enhancing value for investors in the digital era. VNDIRECT's
customers have been able 1o access Al power through smart products like chatbots, tools far market
information updates, products, and personalized investment pertfolio advice. Building on the
‘bnecess of the DGO Compass investment tool, VNDIRECT affirmed its pioneering position

aceompanying customers on their journey to financial freedom.

VNDIRECT always places customer experience at the center (Customer Centric) in the strategy
of developing the product-service coosystem. The goal is to complete the ecosystem for a strong
chift from traditional securities services to a comprehensive asset management model, aiming to
hecome a standard and reliable investment financial institution. VNDIRECT 1s committed to
providing Financial Health — Prosperity Security — Sustainable Development values 1o its team,
customers, partners, and community, contributing to the general development of the digial

cconomy and green coonony.

On the journey of creating Financial Health - Prosperity Sccurity — Sustainable Development
‘Secured wealth — Sustainable development, VNDIRECT offers the apportunity to build 2 solid
assel tower for customers accerding to the HWG model (Health — Wealth — Growth).
VNDIRECT's diverse and complete product ecosystem meets all mvestment needs m the money
market, capital market, securities market, and real estate market, helping customers achieve
sustainable asset growth goals in the context of the digital economy and towards green econoniic

values.

VNDIRECT's HWG asset tower is structured inte three tiers, pach with a distinct mission n the
journey of comprehensive asset creation for customers. At the end of 2024, the number of
individual customers using VNDIRECT's products reached 151,343 customers, with customer
NAV reaching VIND [80.608 billion, an increase of 28% compared (O the end of 2023.
"Sp-eciﬁcalt:,-:

The Financial Health stage- Health (DLIFE) has the second-largest customer NAV among the
three stages, reaching VIND 7,369 billion at the end of 2024, with the number of customers al
9,501. The DLIFE stage acls as a solid foundation, focusing on building financial health for

customers, This investment product portfolie is specially designed o meet welfare financial goals,
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including a range of solutions such as insurance, retirement plans, financial plans for key life zoals,
DLIFE is not only dedicated to individual customers but also extends 1o businesses, offering
practical benefits for employees. The highlight of the DLIFE tier is the hanmonious combination
of insurance solutions and highly liquid asscts, creating an effective defensive asser portfolio,
helping customers be comprehensively protected against unforeseen financial nsks. thereby bemg
more secure and confident in the journey of creating asset portfolios with higher value growth
potential in the future,

The Target Wealth Investment stage- Wealth (DSIP) saw the number of customers in 2024
increase hy 4% compared to the same period in 2023, reaching 8,176 customers with NAV of
VND 191 billion. The DSIP stage is designed to meet the need for assct security and sustainable
asset growth for customers. The product portfolio of the DSIF tier is especially suitable for
investors who want to build stable income sources and accumulate assets in the long term. At the
same fime, DSTP also opens up opportunities for attractive profit growth compared to the average
market profit during accumulation. To achieve this, DSIP's investment stralegy focuses on flexibie
and effective asset allocation, combining interest rate tools in the money market and investment
toals in the capital market. This allocation ratio is scientifically adjusted, suitable for the growth

goals of customers in each stage, from short-term, medium-term to long-term.

The Growth Investment stage- Growth (DGROW) is the stage with the highest customer NAV
at VNDIRECT (accounting for 96%). The number of customers reaches 135,907, NAV reaches
YND 173,049 billion, (+35% YoY). This stage is dedicated to investors who have honed their
investment capabilities, formed an investment style, and aim at conguering new heights on their
financial joumey, DGROW is a sophisticated combination of professional securities trading
service and effective financial leverage product packages, offering a diverse range of investment
1oals such as stocks trading, derivatives, covered warrants, margin lending. The DGROW stage is
particularly suitable for investors whe have accumulated solid financial capabilities, systematic
investment capabilities, along with deep knowledge and trading skills. Through effective risk
management and market opportunity capture, DGROW helps customers build the capacity to
defend against financial risks whale optimally accumulating asset portfolios, for sustainable growth
and achieving financial freedom.
In 2024, VNDIRECT also launched additional securities trading product packages targeting
specific customer groups such as:

e TA Smartproduct for mdependent investors whe have experience in securitics trading and

need to find service packages and trading solutions with competitive trading fees and

margn trading interest rates compared to the market,
L




+ Preferential interest rates margin packages by portfolio for both independent mvestors
and investors with expert care, offering competitive interest rates when mvestors hold
stocks and have debt within the portfolia.

Especially, 2024 was also a foundational year with the orientation to securitics market upgrade,
with the Ministry of Finance issuing Circular No. 63/2024/TT-BTC regulating the purchase of
shares without requiring sufficient fands when placing orders for foreign institztional nvestors,
‘YNDIRECT has been successfully deploying services, leveraging technelogy platforms 1o

enhance risk management capabilities and ensure seamless and safe transactions for customers.

Om the trading platform, a series of features and digital products have been launched and upgraded,
including powerful stock filters, convenient mini price boards cn DBOARD, personal [D chip card
update features, trusted device management systems, Facematching application in margin trading
contract signing, flexible authorization for basic/derivative trading, along with upgrading the Alert,
Market Watch warning system, professional technical charts, and decp market focus e DBOARD.
Additionally, VNDIRECT introduced Dbond FI issued by major financial institutions such as
Vietcombank, Vietinbank, BIDV.., & short-term investment golution (under 1 wyear) with
committed yields, designed specifically for costomers with low-risk appetite and safe mvestment
‘heeds. Notably, the bond trading platform alse added infuitive cash flow illustration features,
helping customers easily track and cffectively manage their bond investment portfolios.

Based on the shaped vision and mission, VNDIRECT continues to stride confidently on the
journey of building financial health, secured wealth, and sustainable development for customers,
partners, and the commumnity. To accomplish this mission, the company contimaoasly strives 10
clevate service quality, perfect the product platfomm, aiming to simplify investment access for all
customers, while strengthening peace of mind on the journey of asset creation and prosperity

enhancement.
3.4.2. Corporate Clighis

Jn 2024, the Vietnamese capital market witnessed multidimensienal fluctuations, with bath
opportunitics and challenges intertwined. In that context, VNDIRECT continued to affirm its role
45 a standard and reliable financial institution, always understanding #nd accompanying clients o
avercome difficulties and achieve goals. Positive signals from the macroeconomy — such as bright
growth, controlled inflation, and interest rates maintained at low levels — provided a foundation
for market sentimeni to gradually recover. However, geopolitical instability, global cconomic
fluctuations, and policy barmiers still posed many challenges for corporates’ capital raising

aclivitics. The stock market recorded an increase in indices and liguidity, but equity issuance
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ictivities were not really vibrant, The number of ransactions in 2024 remained constant to 2023,
while the total issuance value continued its downward trend (decreasing by 10% compared to
2023), although the rate of decline has slowed in recent years, This shows that corporate access to
equity capital is still limited, forcing most to rely on credit channels and corporate bonds to

financially restructure and expand business.

(ne of the most important highlights of the capital market in 2024 was the strong recovery of
corporate bonds. The total 1ssuance value reached VNI 466 trillion, grew by 39% compared to
the same period last year, while secondary market liquidity made a leap (average daily transaction
value increased to YND 6 trillion from VND 2.3 trillion in 2023, reflecting that market sentiment
has stabilized after a difficult period with liguidity risks. Interest rates maintained at reasonable
levels, along with improvements in transparency and credit rating activities, contributed to
attracting irvestrent capital. However, capital flows still focused mainly on traditional issuers,
which are credit institutions, accounting for up to 65% of total 1ssuance value, increased by more
than 50% compared to the same period. Meanwhile, the non-bank corporate group only had modest
growth, with transactions concentrated in a few familiar industries, This poses a major challenge
for businesses needing capital in other key sectors such as real estate, energy, infrastructure,

production... when wanting to raise capital outsids the bank credit channel.

Recognizing the risks in the market, VNDIRECT chose a sustainable expansion sirategy with
corporate clients, focusing on advisory products and services for bond 1ssuance activities. The
value of bands issuance advised by VNDIRECT in 2024 increesed by 53% compared to the same

period, helping the company maintain its market share mn the top 3 and rise to the top in bond |

issuance advisory for commercial banks.

Additionally, VNDIRECT continued to accompany Cuslomers, pioneering in the fields of green
bends, social bonds, and sustainahle bonds adwisory (collectively referred to as ('S5 bonds), not
anly catching up with global sustainable finance trends but also contributing to diversifying capital
raising solutions for businesses. In 2024, the company successfully advised 2 GSS bond
transactions with a total value of VND 3,450 billion, accounting for more than 304 of the G55
bond issuance value in the whole market during the period,

For investment products for optimizing capital sources for businesses, clients’ NAV continued to
record growth with the number of managed accounts mereasing by 17% and average Net assets
value (NAV) products within VNDIRECT's asset pyramid increasing by 2% to over VNI 32,000
billicn. The main trend in 2024 was the change in risk appetitc as corporate clients reallocated
asset proportions to stock products, which have higher profit potential and risks compared to fixed

income or money products. This also reflects the recovery of investor confidence in the market.
E¥)




As & result, revenue from corporate clients with these products is estimated to grow by 34%
compared to the same period.

1.4.3. Financial Institution Customers

The State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV™) made great efforts to manage monetary policy in the past
Ijl.rl:ar to balance the goal of promoting growth and controlling exchange rates. The overall deposit
interest rate was stable, decreased in the first half of the year and recovered in the second half of
2024. In 2024, 5BV implemented the Prime Minister's directive on flexable, effective, timely credit
growth management, meeting credit capital for the economy, in which proactively implemented 2

adjustments to credit growth targets for commercial banks.

VNDIRECT, with its solid and reputable position in the sccurities industry, has demonstrated 1ts
capability in maintaining and developing relationships with domestic and foreign financial
mstitutions, thereby had access to stable capital flows with good costs for the company’s business
activities. Impressive figures about the company's credit hmits, reaching nearly VND. 50,000
billion by the end of 2024, with the unsecured credit limits of over YND 1 1,000 billion, clearly
‘reflect the trust that VNDIRECT receives from major financial institutions,

In the context of the bond market showing many signs of recovery, overcoming the restructuring
and market standardization phase, acting as one of the reputable market creators, with the goal of
creating and promoting the development of the moncy - bond market, YNDIRECT has
continuously increased its position, established trading paper parinerships with more than 100
financial institutions, on the spirit of creating sustainable value, continuously researching and

developing trading products to connect needs and boost market liquidity.

Besides, in 2024, VWDIRECT continued to be chosen by financial ingtitutions as a bond 1ssuance
advisory unit, achieving top 2 market share in the debt capital market with a total issuance value
reaching VND 67,500 billion. Taking advantage of the price advantage of stable domestic capital
sources and lower than international, trading opportunities, developing advisory services on the
bond market, the company prieritized strengthening cooperation with state-owned banks and
major domestic banks, thereby upgrading cooperative relationships to comprehensive strategic
levels, contrihuting lo resource oplimization and expanding sustainable development
apportunities,

The company continues to maintain close relationships with foreign financial institutions to
diversify capital raising sources, exploit capital irading opportunities, and combine service product
offerings, preparing to cooperate for development in the upcoming period. In 2024, YNDIRECT
maintained cooperation in multiple arcas with 130/231 domestic and foreigm financial institutions,
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ineluding commereial banks, development banks, mvestment funds, fnancial companies,
insurance in major financial markets such as Hong Kong, Taiwan, Simgapore, South Kores, Japan,

and Thailand, accounting for an active rate of 56% of total financial mstitubion chents.
244, Institutional Clignits

In 2024, the Institutional Client Brokerage activities of VNDIRECT continued to record positive
marks, effectively contributed to overall business results and firmly consolidating competitive

position in the Viemamese securities market.

By strongly implementing strategic initiatives to optimize client experience and increase service
quality, VNDIRECT repositioned the value brought to mstitutional clients both domestieally and
internationally, trading on multi-platforms and diverse products, With the cntenon of customers
being the focus of all activities, the team continuously improved products and implementation and
operation processes, meeting all diverse investment and trading needs of foreign mvesment funds,
major domestic and intermational financial instintions. As a result, the Institutional Client
Brokerage division achieved very impressive resulis. In 2024, the total transaction value of
institutional customers doubled, fee revenue grew outstandingly by 82%, foreign institutional
market share grew by 170%.

24 also witnessed strong development of specialized investment support serviges exclusively
for institutional customers., The Institutional Customer division continuously introduced new
products such as non-prefunding products for foreign institutional investors allowed to trade
‘without sufficient funds when placing orders, providing in-depth analytical reports, timely markel
information updates for investment funds, orgamizing numerous mectings, exchanges with
businesses, and market update calls, facihitating customers O access and effectively exploit
investment opportunities. Meetings and interactions with investment finds from Hong Kong,
Singapore, Taiwan, and Thailand helped VNDIRECT strengthen investors' trust in potential and

opportunities in the Vietnamese market.

In addition, the application of digital technology and artificial intelligence (Al) in the process of
information search and data cxploitation also helped institetional chents at VNDIRECT save time,
enhance operational efficicncy, thereby significantly increasing clients’ satisfaction and

engagement,
3.5. Risk management
3.5.1. Organizational structure

The Board of Directors {(BOD) holds the highest responsibility for risk management (RM)

activities at VNDIRECT: advised by the RM Council and related commitiees; approves and 1ssucs
39




RM policies and risk limits; supervises the implementation of RM by the CEQ and the Exccutive
Board.

VNDIRECT organizes its RM system according to a three-ling defense model to ensure clear and
consistent delineation of functions, duties, and specific responsibilities of individuals and units

within the VNDIRECT svstem, minimizing conflicts of interest and enhancing RM effectivencss:

First line of defense: Business units, support departments, and business operations have the
function of developing and issuing internal processes, identifying, measuring, and setting risk

limits within their own units;

Second line of defense: The RM department is responsible for developing RM policies and
arganizing RM activitics, including the unificd and ndependent identification, measurement,
monitoring, and management of risks from the first ling;

“Third line of defense: The Internal Audit department conducts periodic or ad-hoc internal audit

lopics to evaluate the overall effectivencss of the company’s RM activities.

1.5.2. Risk management strategics

The RM strategy is developed for all major sk types based on the company's business stratcgy
and financial plans for cach period, ensurng:
» Compliance with legal regulations in all situations and adherence to VNDIRECT's RM
policies and regulations;
 Building and developing a strong nsk management culture throughout the VNDIRECT
system;
s Applying advanced standards and intermational practices in RM.
The RM strategy must be developed in parallel with the business strategy and financial plan
development process. Accordingly, sach business and financial indicator and plan must be
supported by comesponding RM indicators and plans.

3.5.3. Risk management procedures
a, Identification

Risk identification is performed across all lines of defense and at all business units and operational
departments at VNDIRECT. Initially, risk identification is conducted mn business departments,
product departments, and operational departments according to their husiness functions n Lhe first
line of defense. Subsequently, the second fine of defense perfonms nsk identification in specialized

risk arcas.
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Risk identification does not only invelve identifying individual risks but also recognizing the
interrelated impacts of various risk types, especially major risks, as o basis for comprehensive
measurement, monitoring, and control. Risk identification is carried out using various methoeds
such as statistics, SWOT analysis, surveys, discussions between the RM department, internal audit,

and related operational departments.
b, Measurement and nssessment
Risk measurement is performed based on analyzing the short-term and medium-to-long-term

impacts of risks on income, capital safety levels, the ahility to achieve husiness objectives, and the
operational scale compatibility of VNDIRECT for each period.

Risk measurement must ensure the evaluation of the significance and potential impact on the
company, conducted through a set of measurement mdicators compatible with each specific risk

type, including but not limited to:

s Determining risk status: Lending status, portfolio status, payment status by
counterparties/products, liquidity gap status, interest rate misk gap status following
repricing periods, and size of liguidity buffer.

« Determining risk probability: PD, BSM model, operational error statistics.

+ Determining potential loss and risk level: Volatility, PV01, VAR, PaL.

Other appropriate methods: Qualitative methods, quantitative methods based on statistical
probabilities.

c. Monitoring

Risk monitoring is conducted regularly to timely asscss and provide carly wamnings of potential
threats to business operations.

VNDIRECT establishes an internal management reporting system with a frequency appropriate to
the detail and urgenoy of the repart content, the significance of the nsk type, and the human
Tesource capacity to respond. The report system must he sent to appropriate mdrviduals and
departments for timely reception and decision-making, consistent with risk developments and
business operation directions.

d. Control

Risk control is implemented based on risk appetites and approved risk limits corresponding to each
business operation.

VNDIRECT has established measures to prevent, mitigate, and manage risks in a timely mannet,

ensuring compliance with legal regulations, risk limits, and designed a mechanism to monitor and
Al
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inspect the implementation of these risk prevention measures. All employees and departments in
the VNDIRECT system are responsible for implementing risk conirol according to specific
functions and tasks stipulated in the Company’s internal management documents for each specific
period.

1.5.4. Key Risk Types

The total market capitalization of the Vietnamese stock market by the end of the year reached
ncarly 7.2 trillion VND, equivalent to 70.4% of GDP, with the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
(HOSE) alone reaching nearly 5.2 million VND. At the close of the last rading session on
December 31, 2024 the VN-Index closed at |,266.78 points, up 12.1% from the beginning of the

'YEar.

However, numerous macroeconomic fluctuations have impacted the Vietnamese financial market,
including cxchange rate fluctuations and monetary policy. The stock market faced significant
pressure each time the State Bank of Viemam (SBV) withdrew liquidity 1o stabilize the exchange
rate. Additionally, recognizing inflation risks and the impact of unforeseen extemal [actors,
VNDIRECT implemented a very cautious business plan from the beginning of the year. This 15
reflected in balance sheet management activities and the swengthening of risk management
policies, processes, regulations, and procedures to balance between operational safety and specific

business efficiency:
ia. Market Risk

.in 2024, the Victnamese stock market was profoundly affected by global economic fluctuations,
inflationary pressures, and the withdrawal of foreign capital. The strong appreciation of the USD)
put pressure on the exchange rate, with the Vietnamese Dong depreciating by 4.8%. The significant
Aucmation of the USDYYND exchange rate was a factor impacting the stock market over the past
vear, forcing the SBV to take decisive infervention measures, with the USD/VND exchange rate
reaching historical peaks twice. Foreign investors conducted strong met selling, with & value of
92,670 billion VYND (3.63 billion USD) - the highest in the market's history. At VNDIRECT,
VNDIRECT regularly update and assess the situation to develop scenarios and appropriate trading
plans for each period, aiming to reduce capital costs and enhance the efficiency of the fixed-income
investment portfolio. Investing in corporate bonds and credit istitution bonds with Hoabing

interest rate structures.

Risk from stock market fluctuations; With a business model including three core business
activities: (1) securities trading services, (2) investment banking and capital markets, (3] assel

management services, YNDIRECT has a revenue structure oriented towards balancing business
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activities, thereby diversifying income sources. The company's strategic stock investment
activities focus on long-term investments in companies with industry characteristics that benefit
from the sustainable development of the Vietnamese economy, have competitive advantages, are
transparently managed, and offer attractive discounis comparcd fo potential customers.
Additicnally, the short-term investment strategy focuses on transactions providing structured
products such as Covered Warrants, ETFs, fund products, and short-term trading based on
quantitative models. All investment portfolios are risk-managed according o established

Processes.
b, Interest Rate Rivk

In 2024, the SBV maintained a stable operating interest rate environment. Some highlights in
management include: refinancing interest rates decreased since May 2023 and remained stable
until 2024, This interest rate helps credit institutions have additional shori-term capital 10 meet
liquidity needs. Additionally, the SBY also applicd policies to keep lending and deposit interest
‘rates stable, ensuring & balance between saving and consumption, supporting stable economic
development.

In VNDIRECT's business activities, interest rates play a crucial role as interest rate fluctustions
affect capital raising costs, particularly in capital business and margin lending activities. Therefore,
the company is always cautious, balancing appropriate financial solutions during operations to
contral and limit interest rate risks, such as using interest rate forward contracts, siriving to seck

syndicated loans from reputable financial institutions in the international market,...

o, Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that VNDIRECT does not recover part or all of the debt obligations with
partners when due. Securitiss companies’ business activities in general and VNINRECT in
;::artn;:ulal inherently involve credit risks from investment activities, margin lending, and corporate
bond investments,

With the deposit portfolio; VNDIRECT always adheres to the principle of prudence, diversifying
partners, evaluating and rating partaers based on market information, customer information, and
cooperation history, For deposit investment activities, certificates of deposit at credit institutions,
VNDIRECT anly selects partners who are large banks with high international credit ratings from
B2 or higher by Moody's to set investment limits and maintain deposit sccounts. A daily risk
waming and reporting system 15 maintained to closely monitor this activity.

With the margin lending portfolio: Credit risk anses from this activity when stock prices fall,

causing the value of collateral to decrease, but custemers do not supplement collateral value as
43
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required, or stock prices fall too low or become illiquid, leading to the securities company naol
recovering the full loan amount. To mitigate this risk, VNDIRECT has simultancously coordinated
a group of measures:

» Establishing a stock portfolio as collateral based on compliance with the regalations of the
State Securities Commission, regularly evalnaring stock fluctuations, liquidity factors,
determining information affecting business operations and stocks.

» Building a cross-limit system to maximize control: total margin lending limit, maximum
limit/customer, maximum limit/stock code, maintenance margin ratio, margin transaction
handling ratio to recover debts....

» Daily monitoring of outstanding balances and account ratios to prompily detect risk signs.
Any stock debt with risk factors exceeding the risk tolerance threshold must be recovered
carly.

o Scoring and evaluating customer creditworthiness must ensure criteria according to
VNDIRECT's principles, binding the respensibilities of Brokers and Customer Care
Specialists in warming and debt recovery.

s Margn lending is provided to a diverse range of customers, including individual
customers, businesses, and financial institutions, to ensure that risk is not concentrated on

; a few large customers.

In market conditions with many unpredictable developments and high risks, VNDIRECT has
tightened regulations on margin granting for stocks, evaluating, screening, and adjusting risk
management ratios, limits are carried out daily or immediately when the market has adverse

developments.

Tn 2024, when margin lending outstanding balances showed recovery growth accompanied by
factors that could cause market risks such as interest rate fluctuations, exchange rates, and
management policies of regulatory agencies, VNDIRECT's leadership’s stance on sustamable
development oricntation and professional risk management regulations became even mare evident.
In 2024, alongside the growth of Margin lending cutstanding balances, VNDIRECT also
‘broactively recovered debts, resulting in a specific provision balance reduced to 42 billion YND
as of 31/12/2024 (a decrease of 400 million compared to the same period in 2023). At the same
time, the provision buffer balance increased to 80 billion VND. This is a general provision that the
company proactively sct aside, determined at 0.75% of the total loan balance (excluding

outstanding balances already provisioned specifically).




Provision Expense/(Reversal) | Balance as of 31712/2024 (VND

im 2024 (VIND million) million)
Specific Provision (457) 42139
General Provision 3.367 20,144
TOTAL 2,910 122,288

Source. Audited VNDIRECT 2024 Fingmeial Statemenis

In investment banking operations: VNDIRECT has been applying stringent selection,
evaluation, due diligence, end risk management standards for underwriting and managing
corporate bond investments,

During the customer selection phase, VNDIRECT has developed and applied strict standards in
customer evaluation (KYC — Know Your Customer) to select clients that align with the campany's
stratepic direction in each period, focusing on industrics with growth potential, sustainable and
efficient business madels, and leadership with a long-term strategic vision. The key sectors
VNDIRECT targets include energy, rcal cstate, industrial manufacturing, consumer services,

technology, tourism, healthcare, and cducation.

In the underwriting service provision phase, besides complying with legal regulations,
VNDIRECT applics an in-depth due diligence process across various aspects such os finance,
business, and povernance to ensure standards regarding issuance conditions and investment

guality. This due diligence process is summanzed by the 5C framewaork:

e Cashflow: Sustainable business model with the ability to generate stable cash flow,

s Capacity: Good debt repayment ability, and in case of cash flow shortages, there are asscis
Lo compensate.

s Corporate Governance; The company has a proper mission vision and complies with legal
business standards,

« Capital: Safe capital structure and the ability to raise capital in the fature.

e Condition: The company has an issuance plan and capital usc purpose that ensures

effectivencss.

The bond investment solutions that VNDIRECT provides to customers are products that
VNDIRECT advises, underwrites, or have been thoroughly cvaluated and selected according to
‘the stated standards.

45




For investment management activitics, YNDIRECT maintains regular cvaluation updates of
investments (monthly, quarterly, annually) based on updates on the issucr's business sctivities and
financial health, compliance with investment terms and conditions to have an overview of
investment effectiveness, identify potential risks, and have sppropriate preventive'handling plans.
d. Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk oceurs when YNDIRECT loses the ability to fulfill part or all payment obligations
due, fails to meet payment demands for margin trading securities purchases by investors, and
delays or fails to mect payment operation requests by investors on their accounts maintained at
VINDIRECT.

In 2024, YNDIRECT continued fo enhance liquidity risk management activities. The company
ensures compliance with all capital safety ratios and regulatory compliance ratios. VINDIRECT's
available capital ratio as of December 31, 2024, was 356.1%, ensuring compliance with the S3C's
regulation of 180%. Investment limits are always ensured to comply with legal regulations and

tightly control risks.

VWNDIRECT invests in and holds highly liquid assets (accounting for over 40% of tofal assets)
such as cash, deposit contracts, certificates of deposit, and bonds of large credit imstitutions,
government honds to enhance and maintain the liguidity buffer for significant fluctuations. The

company also aims to expand and maintain relationships with many financial institutions,

including credit institutions, securities companies, insurance companies, and mvestment funds.

& Uperational Risk J
E
Operational risk also inchudes system seeurity, compliance, and regulatory risks. In such a sensitive =
market condition, the company continuously reviews all operational proccsscs to ensure 4
compliance, system security, and cybersecurity are reguiarly checked 1o promptly detect, review,

and remedy to minimize system risks.

To ensure the highest level of information security, VNDIRECT strengthens invesiment in
information security management across the cntire system, perfects operational steps and
information management systems to ensure that cvents potentially affecting information security

on the system are identified, monitored, analyzed, and handled promptly. Operational risks causing
infirmation insecurity, threat trends, and security risks are identified and proactively controlied.

J- Corporate Governance Risk

Corporate governance risk is a potential risk, difficult to predict but can significantly impaet the
sustainable development of the cnterprise. Governance risks may arise from subjective causes
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{management errors due o capacity) and objective causcs {market fluctuations, changes in legal
documents) directly affecting financial management, labor productivity.. Thercfore, any
enterprise must have the ability to recognize, evaloate, and mitigate these risks to ensure

effectiveness in management activities.

VNDIRECT always prioritizes corporate governance with the goal of ensuring transparcncy,
efficiency. aligning with business objectives, and above all, serving the sustainable interests of
ghareholders in harmony with stakeholders. With that goal, VINDIRECT builds a povernance
model in compliance with the regulations of the Enterprise Law, the Securities Law, and related
laws. Additionally, te minimize governance risks, the company always prepares plans to review
‘policies and internal processes to ensure that all decisions and activities of management levels

always comply with legal regulations while achieving the company's common goals.
g. (Mher Risks

Besides the aforementioned nsks, the company also faces certam force majeure nisks that could
damage assets, people, and affect the company's business operations, such as risks from natural
disasters (storms, floads...), epidemics, the impact of political and social fluctuations worldwide,
wars... Since 2020, when the COVID-19 pandemic occurred, the company quickly implemented
strict epidemic prevention policics following government guidehines, ensuning the safety of
employees, maintaining continuous operations, and achieving very positive business resulis.
Additionally, the company regularly participates in purchasing insurance for the company’s and

‘customers' assets and goods to mitigate these nsks..
A6, Operations - Technology Division Activities
3.6.1. Operations Division Activities
Enhancing Organization — Elevating Capabilities
The year 2024 was a phase where VNDIRECT focused on unlocking internal potential, enhancing
connectivity, and mproving operational capabilitics as a stepping stone for a sustainable future.
VNDIRECT implemented numerous initiatives to streamline the organization, increase flexibility,
and cnsure the operations team is capable of adapting to future challenges.
Key activities:

* Strengthening intermal connections between departments, standardizing processes, and

increasing coordination efficiency.
« Building operational management capabilities, establishing the Operation Governance

department to overses and enhance service quality.
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Figure 11: Market rates shifted wpward Figure 12: Soaring government budget
aceordingly in ZH24 surplus in 2024 creates greater fiscal flexibility
for future policy initiatives
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Victnam's fiscal position further consolidated in 2024, State budget revenue rose 16.2% YoY to
VNDZ,038tn (USD79.5bn), reaching 119.8% of the annual target. Budget expenditures rose 5.7%
YoY to YNDI1,230.8m (USD71.4bn). This resulted in a robust budget surplus of VNDZ06.7in
(USDE. 1bn) {vs a budget deficit of VNDI14.1tn, or USD549.9mn m 2023), thus ercating ample
fiscal space to further support economic growth minatives, Yietnam also boasts a healthy macro
-profile with public debt burdens below EMs" averages.

Vietnam currenily holds a BB+ rating with a Stable Dutlook from both Fitch and S&P, placing it
one notch below 1G. Moody's assigns a Ba2 rating with a Stable Outlook, mdicating a two-notch
gap to [G. These ratings reflect Victnam's strong medium-term growth prospects, supported by
robust FDT inflows, sound public finances, and a favorable external debt profile.
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« Enhancing human capabilities, encouraging creativity, and applying technology in the
Gperation process.

¢ Promoting automation, minimizing manual tasks, ensunng safe and flexible operations.

]

This transformation aims not only for short-term growth but also for long-term breakthroughs,
strengthening capabilities and sustainability i operational activities,

3.6.2. Technology Division Activities

The year 2024 marked significant advancements for the organization in restructuning infrastructure
and enhancing information security capahilities. "People — Technology — Value Chain” are the
three important pillars that constitute organizational capability, and VNDIRECT has always
positioned technology as a crucial lever for the organization to aim at building a comprehensive,
simple investment ecosystem for all customers. YNDIRECT faced a major information security
incident in 2024 that disrupted services. With the utmost effort from internal reseurces combined
‘with expert support, VNDIRECT fully resalved this incident without any data loss or damage.
Following this incident, VINDIRECT implemented a series of measures to enhance the safety and
stahility of information technology infrastructure, strengthen data security, and improve customer

RErVICE PrOCEsses.
Improving Technology Infrastructure

[n 2024, with the goal of improving infrastructure stability, VNDIRECT conducted a
comprehensive review of existing systems and technologies, upgrading software and systems at
the end of their lifecycle, and tramsitioning some outdated technologics. The effective
implementation of the system obsolescence control strategy significantly contnibuted to

maintaining the organization's competitiveness and operational efficiency,

VNDIRECT also invested in and deploved leading global ransemware backup solutions: Venitas,
Synology, IBM... The Policy-based High Availability (PBHA) solution for SAN created a robwu st
data protection system with full redundancy architecture and sutomatic failover mechanism,
ensuring the safety of the organization's critical data, laying the groundwerk for developing a

camprehensive disaster recovery plan i 2025,

The work of checking, evaluating, and consolidating overall security for the information
technology system brought significant improvements in the organization's information secunty
activities. Additionally, collabarating with reputable information security service providers in the
market helped enhance overall seeurity risk control capabilities, In 2024, VN DIRECT completed
the implementation of strong authentication (2-factor) requirements to protect customers and users

when accessing applications; huilt an independent SIEM solution eapable of fully collecting
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security events for the entire system and performing 24/7 mformation security monitoring to

promptly detect and handle information security mcidents.

With the changes and investments in technology infrastructure and information secunty in 2024,
VNDIRECT always prioritize the safety of customers and their data, and VNDIRECT believe that
VNDIRECTs platform has become much safer and more stable, ready for new market

development prospects, ready for new investor necds,

Optimizing Operational Activifies

In 2024, VNDIRECT also built Automation Test capabilities, creating a breakthrough in the
organization's software quality assurance process. Not only does it increase the efficiency and
reliability of the testing process, but Autemation testing will also play a crucial role in accelerating

the software development and deployment cyele in 2025.

Additionally, VNDIRECT began experimenting with Al applications m operational activities,
resulting in significant improvements in service efficiency and quality by automating routine tasks.
Combined with other modern techmologies, Al has become an indispensable part of the

orgamization's digital transformation strategy.

Enfancing Customer Experience

'VNDIRECT pioneered the launch of the Mini Price Board — the first price board in the market that
allows obscrving the movements of stock se¢tors at the same time and easily personalizing the
price hoard to suit needs. Not only stopping at providing professional trading uitilities and solutions
for investors, YNDIRECT also provides comprehensive stock health information by upgrading the
Stock Health tool 2.0, helping customers identify opportunities and risks — this is 2lso the most
used tool by custommers in 2024, along with the new Spotlight Stock Search tool that helps investors

save time and cffort, while increasing the ability to make correct investment decisions.

Trading like a professional and managing trading risks are always the target values that the
DSTOCK product line wants to bring to customers, To comprebensively enhance the effectiveness
of alert features, helping customers proactively keep up with market movements to seek
investment opportunities and manage risks, i 2024, VNDIRECT upgraded the Market Volatility
Alert Tool ver 2.0 with exclusive alert features that personalize rrading plans with 54 alert criteria
(compared to 22 criteria in the previous version), flexibly updating fluetuations of esch code or
with 8 index indicators, increasing accuracy with the combination of price, volume indicators, and

technical indicators.

The launch of the Smart Assistant tool with quick information update utility and Al with main

features including market overview with seotiment, event, news classification (positive, negative,
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neutral), detailed analysis of each code, and Al stock rating helps investars quickly grasp trends
‘and opportunities,

VNDIRECT continues to consohdate and enhance customer experience by integrating eKY'C and
Face Matching into the account opening and online product service registration flow, while
consolidating the reporting system for customers on MyDgo with a newly developed assct
management interface with high personulization, realizing the "All information on one screen”
experience for customers, Implementing an il lustrative cash flow pricing tool to enhance customer
experience in bond trading and completing the digitization of private bond trading flows for
customers and proprietary trading to optimize operational activities. Enhancing sccurity and
information security for customers with a trusted device management feature o protect customer

accounts from unauthonzed access.

1.7. Human Resource Management

Members of the Date of
No. Date of .
Roard of iy Professional Qualifications|  Appoeintment/
i
Management Dismissal
Mr. N Vu Long -
i ’ November Master's degree in September 18,
1 Chief Executive
27, 1987 Finance 2023
Officer (CEO)
Mr. Dieu Ngoc Tuan
January 2, .
2 — Chief Governance i Master's degree in Law | October 31, 2022

Officer (CGO)

Information on the Board of Management

Mr. NGUYEN VU LONG

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

_Dat:: of Appointment September 18,3023
Date of Birth MNovember 27, 1987

| Nationality Vietnam

| Percentage of Voting Shares Crwned 273 shares, equivalent to 0.00002%
Profeszional Qualifications Master's Degree in Economics
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Mr. Nguyen Vu Long holds a Master's degree in Economies from the University of New South

Wales and has over 10 years of experience in the investment and finance sector,

He has been with VNDIRECT for nearly 10 years, holding several key positions within the
company, including Head of Treasury Business, Director of Capital Resources, and Director
of the Capital Markets Division. Throughout his tenure at VNDIRECT, Mr. Long has made
significant contributions to the company’s remarkable growth and has emerged as one of its

prominent young leaders in recent years.

Mr. Long officially assumed the position of Acting Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of |

VNDIRECT on November 22, 2021, and was elected as a Member of the Board of Directors
at the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders on Apnl 25, 2022,

Om September 18, 2023, Mr. Nguyen Vu Long was officially appointed as the Chief Execulive
Officer (CEQ) of VNDIRECT.

Mr. DIEU NGOC TUAN

Chief Governance Officer

Date of Appointment The year of 2022
Date of Birth January 2, 1978
Nationality | Vietnam
| Percentage of Voting Shares Owned { share
‘:_Pmﬂ:ﬁsiunal Qualifications Master of Law

o

Mr. Dieu Ngoc Tuan holds a Master's degree in Law from Hanoi Law University and Pans I

University.

He has approximately 20 years of experience in legal consultancy, corporate governance, and
finance To date, Mr. Tuan has been with the Company for 15 yoars, serving as Director of the
Legal & Complianee Division and Head of Corporate Governance. With his extensive expertise
and deep knowledge in law, governance, and finance, Mr. Tuan has made sipnificant
contributions to the growth and sustaingble development of VNDIRECT, Mr. Dieu Ngoc Tuan
was appointed as Corporate Governance Director on October 31, 2022,

|
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Information on the Chief Accountant

Mrs. NGUYEN THI HUONG

Chief Accountant

Date of appointment The year of 2023

Date of birth | April 29, 1982

Nationality Viethamese B
,_chcnrag: of voting shares ma-d 0 share

Professional qualiﬁcaﬂnns Bachelar's Degree in Corporate Accounting |

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Huong has approximately 20 years of experience in corporate accounting.
With her cxtensive expertise and in-depth knowledge of corporate accounting, she has
supported the Executive Board in the development of VNDIRECT.

Human Resource Policy

From the early days of establishment, VNDIRECT has identified People — Technology — Value
Chain as the core foundation that creates organizational capability. With the philosophy of
"people-centrie,” the company always considers the human factor as the focus to build a
sustainable development foundation. In 2024, VNDIRECT had a total of 1,168 employees (as of
December 31, 2024), of which female employees accounted for 52.6% and male employees 47.4%,

Improving Human Resource Management

In 2024, VNDIRECT implemented many important policics and regulations to optimize human
resource management activitics. The company focused on building a work and performance
management system, whila digitizing business processes. This helps employecs take ownership of
their work, enhance responsibility, increase creativity, and aim for mastering both time and

workspace.

Additionally, VNDIRECT carried out organizational structure planning, specialized job positions,
imvested in technology platforms, and enhanced management capabilitics for middle-level leaders
and above. Each employee is analyred, cvaluated, and arranged into positions suitable 1o their
capabilities, creating a synergistic, supportive, and collaborative working environment 1o
collectively create group value.

Training and Developing Resources

At VNDIRECT, each individual is cared for, trained, and oriented to determaine their career
development path. The culture of Collaboration — Accompaniment — Understanding at the

company helps conneet and resonate each member's vision with the organization's mission and

general direction. Employees are encouraged 1o engage in |eamning, proactively embrace
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challenges 1o develop and perfect themselves.

VNDIRECT focuses on enhancing capabilities through building competency maps, belping
employees identify skills that need improvement to ensure sustainable development within the
organization.

Professional Training: During work, employees are equipped with all necessary knowledze and
skills. In 2024, VWDIRECT organized 36 training programs with the participation of 1,464
employees, focusing on areas such as securities services, business development, mvestment
advisory, product research, and individual customer operations.

Woark Culture Training

In 2024, VNDIRECT particularly emphasized building a work culture. The company organized
training programs directly shared by members of the leadership team, helping employees better
understand organizational culture, self-reliance spirit, and personal development stralegies. These
contents are applied in daily professional work, thereby enhancing coordination spint, promoting
work ownership capability, and fostening synergy among teams to achieve common goals,

3.8, Sharcholder Information
J.5.1. Shares

According to the shareholder list provided by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation as of February 26, 2025, the information on VINDIRECT s common shares is as
follows:

- Total issued and listed shares: 1,522,290, %08 shares
- Total outstanding shares; 1,522,29%,908 shares
- Total treasury shares: 0 shares

- Maximum foreign ownership ratio at VNDIRECT: 100% (Pursuzant to Notification No.
" 7295/UBCK-QLEKD dated November 8, 2021, issued by the State Securities Commission)

3.5.2. Sharcholder Structure

Shareholder Structure Table as of February 26, 2015

Number of I Number of Shares Ownership
Nk Shareholder Type
Shareholders Owned (Share) Percentage (o)
1 Domestic Sharcholders 05,193 1, 360,458,014 #89.37
1.1 | Individuals 95,263 | 041,234,485 61.83
1.2 | Organizations 130 419,223,529 27.54
ol Foreign Shareholders 913 161,841,894 1063
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Number of | Number of Shares Ownership
No. Sharcholder Type
Shareholders Owned (Share) Percentage (%)
21 Individuals B4l 11,591,433 (.76
X2 Organizations R2 150,250,461 | 987
|
Including.
& rganizations with I

Foreign Investors 0 a 0

Halding Mure Than 3026

aff Charter Capital
3 Treasury Shares® L] ] 1]

Total 96,316 1,522,299,%08 100

(Source: VNDIRECT's Shaveholder List provided by VSDC as of February 26, 2023)

List of Major Sharcholders
As of December 31, 2024, the Company's major shareholders arc as follows:
5 Shareholder N Number of Ownership
o e Shares Percentage (%)
{1 1.P.A Investment Group Joint Stock Company 393 318477 25.84%
TOTAL 393318477 25.84%
Sharcholder Structure by Type of Shares
Type of Shares Number of Shares | Ownership Percentage {%o)
Outstanding Shares 1,522,299,908 100%
Restricted Transfer Shares 0,531,647 0.526% |
{according to the legal regulations for
unsold shares during the pubhic offermg
in 2024) _ .
Restricted Transfer Shares 1,512,768,261 9% 374%
Treasury Shares o 0, %o |
TOTAL 1,522,299,208 100%

* The compary did not engage [n any treasury siock lﬂru;rﬁﬂﬂ! during the year
4




3.8.3. Changes in Owner's Investment Capital

No.

1

Time

Charter
Capital Before
Issuance

Charter
Capital
After
Issuance

Additional
Charter
{.’upital

Method of Capital
Increase

Approving
Authority

1 172006

30,000

50,000

Company
establishment capital
coniribution

s80

1172007

30,000

300 004

250,000

Private offering,
including: (1)
Offering 2.5 million
to existng
shareholders at an
issue price of 10,000
VND/share; {11
Offering 225 million

shanes

shares to  strategic |

ghareholders @t &
price of 12,222
VND/share.

850

02,2010

300,000

450,000

150,000

Share 1ssuance,
including: (1) Bonus
of § million shares 10
existing
sharcholders; (i)
Offering 5 mullion
shares to existing
sharcholders at a
ratio of @é:1; {im)
Offering | mullion
shares to employees;
{iv) Offcring 4
milliam shares
through a private
placement to under
100 mvestors.

S8C
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No.

Time

Charter
Capital Before
Issuance

Charter
Capital
After
Issuance

Additional
Charter
Capital

Method of Capital
Increase

Approving
Aunthority

O&/2010

450, 0K}

999,990

549,950

Issuance and offering
of shares to existing
shareholders,

meluding: (1) Issuing
[ 5,000,000 shares as
dividends o
sharecholders and (i)
Offering 39,999,000
shares to existing
sharcholders.

adbl

12/2014

G95,990

1,549,981.65 | 549,991.65

Offering shares
existing
shareholders,
including: {1l
Offering 49,999,400
shares to existing

shareholders and (1) |

Issuing 4,999,765
shares o existing
shareholders to
increase share capital
from owner's eguity.

SS5C

04/2018

1,549,981 ,65

2,204,301.69

654,320.04

Offering shares 1o
existing
sharcholders,
mehading: ()
Offering 50,332,587
shares to existing
shareholders and (ii)
Issuing 15,099,417
shares to existing
sharcholders
dividends.

bk

S5C

b
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Charter

Charter
Capital

Additional

Method of Capital

Approving

Charter
Capital

MNo. Capital Before

Issuance

Time

After Increase Authority

Issuance

| Offering

(214,514,518 sh
2,145,145.18 e

| b0 existing
shareholders

6 | 072021 | 2,204,301,69 | 4,349,446.87 S8C

(1) Offering shares to |
existing
shareholders:
434,944,588
and  (if)
347,954,734
o existing
sharcholders to
increase share capital
from owner's equity.

shares

Issuin bt
12.178.440.00 [7,828,993.22 £l ssc

7 | 042022 | 4,345,446,87

shares

{1) Public offering of
shares 1o

sharehaolders:
243 566,632 shares
and (ii) Issuing
60,889,267 shares 1o
' existing shareholders

| as dividends,
- |

3.8.4. Other securitics

existing

S50

g | 0772024 | 12,178.440,00 |15.222.999.08 3.044,558.99

Tahle of summary of bonds outstanding in 2024

Unfulfilled

Commitments

Issuance
Method

Maturity
Date

lssued Par Value
(billion VND)

TN d cod
i KRS s Issue Date

March 7, Puhlic 0

2025

400 | March 7,

2022

1| vNDI22014
Offering

Total 40

i



Table of summary of Covered warrants outstanding and maturing in 2024

| No. Covered Quantity |Characteristics| Issue Date | Maturity Date| Unfulfilled
warrant  of Covered | of Covered Commitments
Name . warranis | warrant Type
1 CFPT2305 | 2,000,000 Call 17/07/2023 | 177042024 0
2 CHPG2321 (10,000,000 Call 17072023 17042024 ]
3 CHPG2322 | 8,000,000 Call 17/07/2023 170712024 0
4 | CPOW2308 (10,000,000 Call 17/07/2023 | 177042024 0
5 CPOWZI09 | 5,000,000 Call 17072023 1 7/05/2024 0
§ | CSTB2318 | 6,000,000(  Call 17/07/2023 | 1770512024 0
7 CSTB2319 | 10,000,000 Call 1772023 | 7042024 0
8 CVPB2305 | 10,000,000 Call 171072023 17/04/2024 0
9 | CACB2306 | 10,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 22/07/2024 i
10 CACB2307 | 6,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 21708/2024 0
11 CFPT2316 | 10,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 22/07/2024 0
12 | CFPT2317 | 5,000,000 Call 2171142023 | 21/11/2024 0
13 | CHPG2341 |10,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 22072024 0
14 | CHPG2342 | &,000,000 Call 21011/2023 | 21/11/2024 0
15 | CMBB2317 | 10,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 21/08/2024
16 | CMBB2318 | 5,000,000 .. Call 201172023 | 23/09/2024 ]
17 | CMWG2318 | 5,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 2207/2024 {
18 | CSTB2336 | 5,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 21/05/2024 0
19 | CSTB2337 | 10,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 21/11/2024 0
20 | CVIB2307 | 5,000,000 Call 2171172023 | 21/08/2024 0
21 | CVPB2321 | 10.000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 21/08/2024 0
22 | CVYPB232z | 5,000,000 Call 21/11/2023 | 23/09/.2024 0
23 CVRE2322 | 5.000,000 Call 2171102023 | 22/07/2024 (1]
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3.9. Environment-Social-Governance (ESG) Report of the Company
3.9.1. Water consumption

VNDIRECT has designed small boards installed at various locations with messages reminding
emplovees to save water and electricity. Cleaning agents (hand wash, dishwashing ligquid, etc.)
used in office areas are bio-products made from natural herbs to minimize the discharge of
themicals into the environment, preventing water pollution. Employees are encouraged to
minimize the use of plastic bottles, instead bringing personal water bottles to use at internal events,

such as the marathon in Ha Long to celebrate VNDIRECT's anniversary, to avoid plastic waste,
3.9.2, Compliance with the law on environmental protection

a, Number of times the company is fined for failing to comply with laws and regulations on

envirpnment
None

b. The total amount to be fined for failing to comply with laws and regulations on the

environment

‘MNone

3.9.3. Policies related to employees

a. Number of employees, average wages of workers:

With a "people-centric” philosophy, VNDIRECT always considers the human factor as the focus
for building a sustzinable development foundation. In 2024, VNDIRECT had 2 total of 1,168
employees (as of December 31, 2024), with female employees accounting for 32.6% and male
employees 47.4%. The average monthly income per employee at VNDIRECT is WND 36 milliom.

b. Labor policies to ensure health, safery and welfare of workers:
Compensation and Benefifs

VNDIRECT builds an attractive working environment where employees are cared for both
physically and mentally, allowing them to focus on their carcers. The company implements
competitive, transparent welfare programs that are continuously adjusted to attract and retain
talent. Engagement activities such as monthly birthdays, senionty appreciation, and YNDIRECT's
2024 anniversary event with over 1,000 employees from both North and South regions have lefta
deep impression. Additionally, the company cares for employees' health through regular health
check-ups, comprehensive health insurance, and other care regimes like gick wvisits,
condolencefcelebration, marrizge, and childbirth congratulations.
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h’ﬂrking Envirpnment

With a predominantly voung workforce, VNDIRECT organizes engaging activities for employees,
such as bload donation programs, football, tenmis, and pickleball tournaments by the Hanm Stock
Exchange, the State Securities Commission’s running events, the VSDC Open Tennis Tourmament
in HCM City, nunning and football events for the company's 18th anniversary, where the company
team always achieves high rankings.

On occasions ke Intermational Women's Day on March &, International Children’s Day on June
1, Victnamese Women's Day on October 20, Christmas, New Year's Day, and Lunar New Year,
evenls are organized to connect employees, especially for female employees to express themselves
and their love for the organization, helping employees understand each other better, thereby

enhancing coordination in work and achieving common goals.
Respect for Equality and Diversity

People play an important role in realizing VNDIRECT's Vision and Mission. Therefore, the
company always values the contributions of all employees for the organizations success.
VNDIRECT creates development opportunitics for all employees by allowing them to expand
their scope and responsibilities (SOA), cxpericnce new jobs, regardless of their position as staff or
management. Everyone is trusted and empowered to take ownership of their work, proactively
connecting with other resources and personnel to complete assigned tasks. Every employee at
VNDIRECT has the opportunity to develop their skills, unlock potential, and advance their career,
providing young employess with many opportunities to express themselves and achieve rapid
development.

¢. Emplovee Training

Every individual working at VNDIRECT is cared for, trained, and oriented to determine their
career development path. The culture of Collaboration — Accompaniment — Understanding at the
company helps connect each member's vision with the organization’s mission and direction. At

VNDIRECT, individuals are encouraged to take on challenges and proactively leam to devclop
and perfect themselves.

At VNDIRECT, employees are given opportunities to rotate positions to explere potential,
cxperience new and diverse work, expand responsibilities, and not be confined to a specific field,
ﬁ'lﬂ'ehj.r developing their capabilitics, Emphasizing continuous leaming and self-renewal,
management levels hecome coaches for employees, confinuously training and guiding new skills

to meet the demands of new work requirements 1n the Al era. This rapid transition helps the team

quickly adapt and make swift progress.
(14

B o L dE L= i

e



3.9.4. Report on responsibility for local community

VNDIRECT always fulfills its tax obligations and centributions to the State Budget, with
increasing contributions over the years. The company ranks 36th in the Top 100 private enterprises
with the largest tax contributions in Vietmam and is in the Top 4 private securities companics with
the highest tax contributions. This affirms VNDIRECT's positive role in contributing to national
cconomi¢ development and demonstrates the company’s strong commitment to local communitics

through support and sustainable development activities.

With high social responsibility, VNDIRECT not only affirms its role in the financial sector but
alsa spreads profound human values, helping improve living and learning conditions for children
in highland areas, such as the "School for Children 2024" program, where it played the role of
main sponsor, inaugurating a semi-boarding house for ever 150 students at Muong Long 2 Semi-
hoarding Ethnic School, Sa Thay village, Muong Long commune, Ky Son district, Nghe An before
the season. On the occasion of VNDIRECT's 18th anniversary, the company organized a tree
planting program named "Seiling Chestrut Forest™ in 81 Ma Cai, Lao Cai to realize the message

for a green future.

3.9.5. Report on green capital market activities under the guidance of the S5C

VNDIRECT has actively engaged in green capital market activities in line with the State Securities
Commission's (S8C) guidelines. The company confinucs to sccompany clients, playing a
pioneering role in consulting green bonds, social bonds, and sustainable bonds (collectively known
a5 (5SS bonds). This not only helps VNDIRECT keep up with the global sustainable finance trend

but also contributes to diversifying capital raising solutions for busimesses.

In 2024, VNDIRECT successfully advizsed on 2 G55 band deals with a tatal vzlue of 3,450 billion
VND, accounting for over 30% of the GSS bond value issued in the market during the period.
These results reflect the company's commitment to promoting sustainable development and

supporting businesses in accessing green capital.
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IV. REPORTS AND ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
4.1. Assessment of operating results

VNDIRECT remains steadfast in its sustainable development strategy, focusing on ensuring
financial safety and enhancing competitiveness to deliver sustainable value to customers and
shareholders, even in challenging market conditions. Following a cyberattack, the Executive Board
quickly activated risk management measures, closely coordinating with employees and partners to
address the incident. The Exccutive Board also outhned actions priontizing customer safety and
‘benefits as the guiding principle throughout the recovery process. The culture of Collaboration -
Accompaniment — Understanding at the company not only hefped VNDIRECT overcome
difficulties but also strengthened trust from customers and stakeholders, affirming the company's
pionecring position in the finaneial sector.

With a sustainable development philosophy based on three ESG pillars (Environment, Social,
Governance), YNDIRECT places People at the center, implementing professional training
programs and work culture, building competency maps, and clear career development paths to
create a high-quality, responsible, creative, and adaptable workforce in a transforming business

environment.

Simultaneously, the company intensifies technology investment, focusing on security, enhancing
-application performance, and implementing comprehensive digital solutions to optimize products
and services, delivering superior customer experiences. With a customer-centnic approach,
WNDIRECT continuously upgrades trading tools like DSTOCK, Mini Price Board, Stock Health
Tool 2.0, and develops integrated investment services on the MyDgo platform, while expanding
partnerships with major financial institutions. The company affirms its pioneering position in the
financial sector, aiming for sustainable development, prosperity, and long-term benefits for

customers, partners, and the community.
4.2. Financigl Situation

In 2024, the company recorded a pre-tax profit of 2,088 billion VND, achieving £3% of the plan
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, affirming risk management and effective

_management capabilities in difficult business conditions.

Post-tax profit reached 1,718 billion VND, down 15.9% compared to the same period last year
("YoY™), yet VNDIRECT maintains its position among the securities companies with the highest
profits in the market. Notably, the increase in chanter capital to 15,222 Wilhion ¥YND in the sccond
half of 2024 has created a strong financial foundation, ready to meet customer needs and expand
business activities i the future. The increase m charter capital in the second half of 2024 affected
profitability ratios, with ROAE at 9.5% and ROAA at 4.0%,.
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JAsget and Liabilities Stroeiure

Profit Before Tax (VNI Billion)
1,528

Einit: FND billion
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Ttems 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 % change
Current Assets 40414 43,106 6.7%
I. Cash and cash equivalents 4,862 881 | (81.9%)
== THARIER: SBEE M- BHC witne 16,730 24,519 46.6%
through profit or loss (FVTPL)
3. Held to matunity investments |
TA432 | 5561 25.2%
(HTM) { )
+ 4. Loans 10,280 10,344 0.6%
5. Receivables o34 1,728 %4.1%
6. Other current assets 165 73 {56.3%)
Non-eurrent assers 1,328 1,189 (10.4%)
1. HTM investments 202 - -
2. Investments in associates R36 915 0 .4% -
3, Other long-term asscis 250 274 (5.3%%)
TOTAL ASSETS 41,742 44,295 f1%
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Sowree: Audited VNDIRECT 2024 Financial Stavtements

Asger Srrucrire

Short-term assets at the end of 2024 continue to dommate the total asser structure at VNDIRECT,
accounting for 97.3%, cquivalent to 43,106 billion VND, an increase of 6. 7% compared to the
same period in 2023, The increase m short-term asset scale 15 mamly from the bond portfolio n
‘financial assets recognized through profitloss FVTPL, As of December 31, 2024, the scale of
FVTPL financial assets mercased sharply by 46.6% compared to 2023 and accounted for a slight
decrease of 11.6% compared to 2022 but still held the lnghest proportion in the asset portfolio
structure {(accounting for 55.4%), In which, the proportion of highly liguid assets such as
Certificates of Deposit and Credit Institution Bonds still holds a significant weight. In 2024, the
proportion of government bonds and bonds of credit institutions (mainly issued by Bigd banks)
was mncreased to take advantage of rising bond prices. Held-to-matunty (HTM) investments
decreased in scale from 7,634 bilhon VND at the end of 2023 to 5,561 billion VND, a decrease of
25.2%.

Loans, including margin lending and customer advance sales, did not Tuctate much under unclear

“signals from the stock market at the end of the vear. As of December 31, 2024, the company
reached a loan balance of 10,344 billion VND, an increase af 0.6% compared to the same penod
in 2023 and accounted for 23.4% of the total asset structure.

Lang-term asscts have a scale of 1,189 billion VNI, accounting for a low proportion in the total
assel structure {accounting for 2.7%), mainly investments in joint ventures and associates such as
the Post and Telecommunications Insurance Corporation and Golden Sun Food Joint Stock

Company.

Items 31/12/2023 3171272024 % change
Liabhilities 15,134 24,580 (2.6%)
I. Short-term borrowings 20,468 22,436 9.6%
2. Bonds issued 800 400 (50.0%)

[ 3. Others 3,966 1,744 (56.0%)
Owners® equity 16.508 19,715 | 19.4%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 41742 44,295 | i1 |
OWNERS' EQUITY
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Capital Striacture

Ini 2024, the company completed increasing its charter capital through a public offering of shares
to existing sharcholders, raising the charter capital to 15,222 bilhion VND as of December 31,
2024, VNDIRECT's equity increased to 19,715 billion YND, continuing to be among the top
securitics companies with the largest equity 1n the securities industry. The company's equity
increased by 19.4% compared to 2023 after the capital increase.

Linbilities

The company's liability structure changed significantly, with short-term debt as of December 31,
2024, amounting to 22,436 billion VND {accounting for 91.3% of liabilities), an increase of 9.6%
compared to 2023. The proportion of short-term loans &t credit nstitutions ("CIs") increased, and

the company's CI loans were mainly from short-rerm loans at top banks, affirming VINDIRECT's

pasiticn in the securitics market and its sustainable relationships with major financial institutions.

The company always has plans to arrange cash flow properly, ensuring the payment of due debts.
Obligations to the State Budget are seriously and tomely fulfilled, including taxes, land rental fees,
and other fees and charges. Currently, VINDIRECT does not have any overdue debis.

4.3, Improvements in organzational structure, policies, and management

VNDIRECT continuously mmproves ils corporate governance system to help customers develop
sustainable investment skills. In 2024, the company completed its organmizational structure with
“two axes: FMAP (focusing on dividing business functions, operations, management) and CMAP
{executing activitics according to five aspects: GTM, OEC, HC, BTU, CX), ensuring effective
coardinaton and optimizmg customer value, The ILEAD system 15 digitized to synchronize
individual and departmental goals with the company's strategy, optimize resources, enhance
connectivity, clanfy RACI roles, and avoid overlaps in operations, thereby improving efficiency

ard costomer expenisnce,

4.4. Development strategy

4.4.1. Market analysis and assessment for 2025

VIETNAM®S ECONOMY: VIETNAM'S ECONOMIC GROWTH OUTLOOK FOR 2025
REMAINS STRONG AND RESILIENT

The GDP growth for 2025 is projected fo reach 7.3% under the baxe case scenario

Viemam has set ambitions economic growth targets for 2025, armmg for 6.5%-7.0% and strang to
achieve 8. 076 For the 2026-2030 period, the povernment aims to achieve a GDP growth rate of

T.5%-8.5% per year
i



VNDIRECT expect Victnam's economy temaing robust in 2025 and forecast GDP growth of 7.3%
YoY in 2025, up from our previous estimate of 6.6%, due to increased optimism about puble
investment and less pessimistic view of Trump’s tanffs on Viemam's export. Other factors
si.rengﬂ.lcnmg growth momentum include: 1) the gradual improvement of domestic consumption
amid declining inflation pressure and an improving labor market; and 2) the warming real estate
market and increased private investment, thanks to the official implementation of the amended land

law and an improved business environment driven by govemment refanms.

Regarding the three main pillars of the economy, VNDIRECT expect growth in the industry and
conatruction sectors to Temain resilient at #.3% Yo in 2025 (vs. +8.2% YoY in 2024) thanks to the
resilience of export growth (+10.4-12.2% YoY in 2025) and accelerated public investment.
Meanwhile, the ather two pillars could see stronger expansion, with the service sector increasing by
7.8% YoY in 2025F (vs +7.4% YoY in 2024) and the sgriculture, forestry, and fishery sector
prowing by 3.6% Yo (vs 3.3% in 2024),

Overall, Vietnarn is expected to remain among the 1op-performing economies in the Asia-Pacific

region in 2025,

Figure 18: Key forecasts summary
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Strong government spending will be a key growth driver in 2025

VNDIRECT believe that public investment will accelerate and become a key driver of economic
growth. First, 2025 marks the eonclusion of the current Medium-Term Public Investment Plan,
necessitating the acceleration of ongoing projects to meet planned targets. Second, and more

Gl




importantly, the government has sct an ambitious target for cconomic growth next year, with the
Prime Minister aiming for an 8% GDP growth rate. Consequently, the government has outlined
an ambitious public investment plan for 2025, targeting state spending for investment and
development at VND790,7tn (USD31.1bn). This represents a 16.7% increase compared o the
2024 plan.

VNDIRECT assume the government will maintain its usual completion target of 95% for public
investment plans, resulting in a 14-15% YoY in implemented public investment capital and an
19-20% YoY increase in disbursed public investment capital in 2025, VNDIRECT anticipate that

the acecleration of public investment will contribute an additional 0.8 percentage points to GDP

growth n 2015,

The 2025 budget plan projects current expenditures to increzse by 23.8% YoY in 2025
(+VND300tn, ~USD11.8bn), driven by the impacts of salary reforms starting from July 1, 2024,
and pearly VND 1 30tn (~USDS. 1 bn) allocated for streamlining the administrative apparatus (with
support payments for civil servants affected by the streamlining). VNDIRECT believe that if this
substantial amount is disbursed as planned, it will support banking system liquidity (through

increased deposits) and enhance consumption.

Figure 19: Low public debt will support the  Figure 20: VNDIRECT expeect

government's fiscal stimulus plan disbursement of state capital to increase by
23% in 2025
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Fietmam is implementing breakthreugh policies to attract FDI in the high-tech sector

VNDIRECT believe that Trump's upcoming tariff protection policies will not significantly impact

Vietnam's FDI prospects, as Viemam is not the main target of US taniffs, Additionally, m the
57
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medium 1o long term, Vietnam's FDI attraction will remain positive due to: 1) consolidated
.;trat:gi-: leadership promoting govermment reforms and policy issuance; 2) breakthrough policies
attracting investment in semiconductors, science, technology, and digital rransformarion; 3) strong
economic growth prospects; 4) improved economic infrastructure from “targeted” public
investment; and 5) benefits from global supply chain diversification due to its strategic location
near Southern China, export-oriented economy, participation in multiple FTAs, and the world's

second-largest rare carth reserves.

The Vietnamese government has introduced a new decree, 182/2024/ND-CP, which offers up o
50% support for initial investment costs for companies undertaking semiconductor and AT R&D
projects, This support comes from a newly established "Investment Supporting Fund”. To receive
government support, the company’s R&D center project must be on the prioritized high-tech list,
.'|"lﬂ"n'E a minimum investment capital of VIND3tn, and disburse at least VIND1tn within three yearg
from the date of investment decision. Thus, investment projects in the semiconductor and Al
sactors in Vietmam, such as NVIDIA's case, can receive special incentives. Decree 152 takes effect

from December 31, 2024, and is officially applicable from the 2024 fiscal year.

WVNDIRECT believe this represents a transformation in the factors that attract FDI to Victnam.
Low laber costs and low expenses (land, electricity, water), are diminishing and are no longer
sufficient to atiract high-tech projects. To achieve a breakthrough in economic growth over the
next two decades and become a high-income country by 2045, Victnam nceds to clevate its
position in the global supply chain beyond simple assembly. Therefore. Viemam is promoting
government reforms and issuing unprecedented policies like Decree 182/2024/ND to attract FDI
- ;n the semiconductor, AL and high-tech sectors, VNDIRECT believe these are just nitial steps and
expect more policies to support high-tech FDI and the development of the domestic supporting
and high-tech industnes. The cstablishment of the “Central Stecring Commitiee for the
Development of Science, Technology, Innovation, and Digital Transformation™, led directly by
{eneral Scerctary of the Communist Party To Lam, demonstrates Vietnam's determination to
address urgent issues and accelerate the implementation of this crucial development direction.
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Vietnam has issued the
"Yictnam Industry
Development Strategy to 2030 with a Vision
to 2050"

Figure 211:

Semiconductor

Figure 22: Vietnam has launched the
“Investment Supporting Fund”, offering up
to 50% support for initial investment costs

for semiconductor and Al R&D projects
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‘Easing inflationary pressure in 20235
VNDIRECT expect a lower Food & Foodstuff CP1 in 2025 {accounting for 33.6% of the overall

CPl basket), thanks to a lower expected increase in lean hog prices and lower rice prices.
Specifically, VNDIRECT expect lcan hog prices to average WYNDG3, 000 in 2025F, up by 2%
compared to the average figure of 2024E (VND61,500). This slight increase is much lower than
the 15% increase in lean hog prices in 2024, which will help alleviate pressure on the Food &
Foodstuft CPI next vear. In addition, following an expected 8% mcrease in 2024, nee prices are
forecast to fall by 11% in 2025 and 2% in 2026, as global output reaches a new high in the 2024-
25 season and India cases its rice export restrichons, according to the World Bank. As a result.
domestic rice prices are expected to decline in 2025 after recording a strong increase of nearly
2074 thas year.

VNDIRECT believe the low oil price environment will help alleviate much pressure on the
Transportation CPI 1 2025 {accounting for 9.7% of the overall CPI basket). VNDIRECT belicve
that President-clect Donald Trump will pursue policies to increase o1l and gas production m the
1.5, casting a shadow over the outlook for il and gas prices next year. VNDIRECT forecast the
averaze Brent crude oil price in 2025 to range berween USDT0-75/barrel, lower than the average
of around USDBEO0barrel in 2023 and 2024, Lower oil prices will not only help case the
Transportation CPI but also reduce fucl costs for production and daily living.
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Maintaining the inflation control target at 4.5% for 2024, compared to the pre-2023 target of 4.0%,

provides the government with more fexibility in fiscal and monetary stimulus policies to boaost

economic growth.
FX risk renvains a major concern in 2025

A new report from Bank of America (BofA) forecasts a divided performance for the US dollar

(USD) in 2025, characterized by strength in the first half of the year, followed by & weakening
trend in the second half

The Taylor Rule suggests a 0.5 to 0.75 percentage point rate cut by the Fed in 20235, according to
CEIC. This would imply gradual dolfar depreciation in 2H25 with the Fed potentially resuming
its rate-cutting path from late Q2, as the 1.5, economy shows further signs of slowing and inflation

continues o coal.

Figure 23: The Taylor Rule suggests a 0.5 to  Figure 24: The dollar is currently overvalued,
0.75 percentage point rate cut by the Fed in - according to research by BofA Global
2025, according to CEIC Research
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There is however risk of higher US inflation associated with the new administration's policies.
Although BofA thinks the USD's post-election support 1s likely to fade during the first year of the
new administration, similar to what occurred in 2017, 1f the policies were 10 be implemented as

Jaid-out, they would be nflation and the Fed has promised o be data-reliant in its response

regardless of political ramifications so that a shallow rate-cut cyele is entirely possible.

VINDIRECT expect the Victnamese Dong to depreciate by 2-3% against the USD in TH25 due o
the current IISD rally. The SBY may implement measures similar to those since 2024, including

flexible net injections and withdrawals through the OMO channel to maintain interbank interest
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rates at sufficiently high levels to narrow the interest ratc differential between the USD and VD,
Stronger interventions, such as raising the reverse repo rate and selling foreign exchange reserves,

may also be implemented.

In 2H25, the VND may strengthen as the USD weakens, allowing the SBV to build up foreign
exchange reserves and inject additional liquidizy into the market. This will depend on US trade
nolicy developments and the DXY . Other factors supporting the exchange ratc include strong FDI
inflows, a sustained high trade surplus, and healthy remiftances.

MARKET OUTLOOK IN 2025

Corporate bond market: The market continues its recovery momentum, but numerous

challenges still lie ahead.

Corporate bond issuance continued to recover in 2024, driven by increased 1ssuance from the
hanking sector. For full-year 2024, the total value of corporate bonds issued reached
~VND466. Tin {USD1E.5bn), an increase of 3d.2% YoY. Among this amount, the total value of
private placement bonds was ~VND431.8tn (USD17.1kn), an increase of 38.1% Yo . The total
value of public issuance amounted 1o VND34.9m (USD1.38bn), a decrease of 0.6% Yo¥ (our
data 1s eompiled based on information published on the Hanoi Stock Exchange's website as of
Jamuary 24, 2025).

Figure 25: Corporate bond private  Figure 26: Structure of individual corporate
placements bonds issued by sectors in the 4024
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Corporate bond issuance continued to recover in 2024, driven by increased issuance from the
harking sector. From 2Q24 through 4Q24, banks consistently expanded their bond issuance,
primarily with maturitics ranging from three to 10 years. This aimed to raise medium- and long-
term capital 1o comply with the State Bank of Viemam's regulations on the maximum ratic of
shor-term capital used for medium- and long-term loans. For full-year 2024, total private

corporate bond issuance by the banking sector exceeded VND2BO0wm (USD11.1bn), up 63.3%
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Yo¥, accounting for 65% of tatal private corporate bond issuance. The real estate sector ranked
second, issuing nearly VND91.5tm in corporate bonds—a 2.8% YoV decrease—rcpresenting
21.2% of total issuance. The financial services sector came third, with over VND19.7tn issued,
marking a significant 120.9% YaY increase and accounting for 4.6% of total issuance, Excluding
the hanking sector, total private corporate bond issuance i 2024 exceeded WVND 1355 tnllion, up
10.1%a year-on-year.

A downside in 2024 was the growing list of companies delaying corporate bond debt payments,
Despite a decrease of 11.5% Yo, bond maturities remained high, with 2 total value nearing
VNDI190tn {excluding early redemptions and extended maturitics), Amud persistent business
challenges, many firms faced cash flow difficultics and restricted access to funding, eontributing
to the rise in issuers failing to meet debt obligations, By year-end, around %0 companies were
listed as late in repaying bond principal or interest, with an esumated total outstanding debt of
over VND 190m —accounting for approximately 15.6% of the market’s corporate bond debt.
Real estate companics dominated this list

Bond maturity pressures in 2025 remain significant, particularly for the real estafe sector,

According to our estimates, the total value of individual corporate bonds maturing in 2025 is
:-‘H'Iu’DI!Hm (USDE.0dbn), an increase of 8.5% YoY (our figures exclude the value of redeemed
bonds before maturity and the value of corporate bonds with extended terms). OF this amount,
more than VNDG2tn (USD2.46bn) consists of bonds with extended terms that will come due,
accounting for 30.6% of total private corporate bond maturities in 2025, The pressure of matunities
coming due will be concentrated in the last two quarters of 2025, with these quartcrs acoouniing
for more than 65% of total private corporate bond maturities for the year. The real estate sector
will have the largest volume of private corporate bond maturities in 2025, with a total of
~WNDI30tn (USD35.15bn), accounting for 64% of the year’s total private corporate bond
maturities. Of this amount, VND36tn (USD2,22bn) consists of bonds with extended terms that
will come due, The financial sector ranks second, with total private corporate bond maturities of
sround YND33m (USD1 3bn), representing 16.3% of the year's total private comorate bond
maturities.

VNDIRECT believe cash flow pressure and corporate bond maturities will remain significant
challenges for the real estate sector in 2025, Compared to 2024, the real esrate sector’s corporate
bond maturities will sec a sharp increase of 113%. Given continued sluggishness in the real estate
market and slower than expected progress in resolving legal issues for projects, challenges in

business operations for real estate companies are likely to persist.
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Figure 27: Structure of corporate bonds by~ Figure 28: Value of corporate bonds

sector duc in 2025 maturing quarterly in 2025 (VNIYbn)
it ",

TR

. wmm
romn e

L]

w418

oy

10080 I l

@Final astale m Finanos & Barkng m Cihes sacior 10IF  PANF JEMF JONSF 06T J00F  IOEF DRE

Source: VNDIRECT RESEARCH, HNX Source: VNDIRECT RESEARCH, HNX

Many challenges hinder strong market breakthrough

After repulatory efforts addressed market difficulties, the corporate bond market experienced a
certain level of recovery in 2023 and 2024, However, significant challenges remain for & strong

breakthrough in 2025,

The first major challenge is investor confidence, which remains weak. While authorities have
taken action against various violations in the corporate bond market, risks related to maturing and
overdue private corporate bonds, especially in the real estate sector, are still considerable, As a

result, more tima will be needed to further restore market and investor confidence.

The second challenge is the tightening of conditions for issuance to individual professional
jnvestors, which could further limit private corporate bond tssuance in the future. Specifically,
under the revised Secunties Law (Law No. 56/2024/0H1 5), individual professional investors can
only purchase, trade, or transfer private corporate bonds if the bonds have a credit rating and are

either secared by collateral or have a guarantee for payment by a credit ingtirution.

Previously, under Decree 63/2022/ND-CP, private corporate bond issuers were only required to
obtain a credit rating If:
» The total par value of bonds issued within 12 months excesded VND500bn (USD19.8mn) and

50% of the issuer's equity, based on the most recent audited annual or reviewed semi-annual

financial statements.

s The issuer's tota] outstanding bond debt exceeded |00% of its equity, based on the most recent

audited anrual or reviewed semi-annual financial statements.

Compared to Decree 65/2022MND-CP and Deeree 153/2020/ND-CP, the new regulations impose
stricter Tequirements on issuance to individual professional investors, Private corporate bonds
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issued to these investors must now have both a credit rating and either collateral or a payment
puarantee from a bank, This tightening could further limit private corporate bond issuance in the

near futura.

Stock market: A Strong Transformation

Figure 2% Profit growth momentum is Figure 30: Earning growth foreeast by sectors
expected to continue in 2025 in the period of 2024-2025
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VNDIRECT anticipate the market's performance in 2023 to be shaped by the following key trends:
{1) Strong eamings prospects as Vietnam's economy enters a new growth cycle, (2) Stock market

valuations remaining atiractive compared o savings interest rates and peer markets in the region,

LT

(3) Global geopalitics, especially U8, trade policies; driving significant uncertainties around

[

international investment flows, (4) The objective of being uppraded to FTSE's “Secondary
Emerging Market” status 15 within reach and likely achievable in 2025,

2025 Earnings of listed companies are prajected to maintain strong growth in 2025

Building on the recovery momentum of 2024 (with earnings growth of 16%), VEDIRECT
forecast that the profits of companies listed on HOSE will grow by 179 in 2025, supported by:
1) The Vietnamese govéernment’s strong commitment to boosting public investment, targeting
GDP growth of 7,5%, and further aiming for §.0%: 2) SBV"s high credit growth target of 16% tor
2025, which will provide ample capital for businesses to develop and strengthen profits for
financial institutions; and 3) the realization of an upgrade process by FTSE, which will enhance
market liquidity anc attract institutional and individual investor flows mto the stock market,
therehy driving profits in the financial services sector.

The Banking and Real Estate sectors are anticipated to reman the primary drivers of market
profitability in 2023, contributing 58.5% and 10.67% of total earmings, respectively, With targeted
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credit growth set at a robust level for 2025, the Banking sector is projected to deliver strong
earnings growth of 19%, reinforcing its leadership position in the market.

Meanwhile, seciors that exhibited exceptional growth in 2024, such as Agnibusiness, Construction
Materials, Aviation, and Exports, are expected to face a moderation in growth momentum.
Conversely, Real Estate and Power are posiioned to emerge as high-growth sectors in 2023,
supported by favorable industry dynamics and structural tailwinds.

Market valuation is quite aftractive

‘At the end of 2024, the trailing 12-month P/E ratio of the VMN-Index stood at 13.3x, an £.2%
discount compared to the 5-year average. VNDIRECT forecast the P/E ratio for 2025 at 11.6x,
based on the assumption that histed companies’ profits will grow by 17% in 2025, Regarding P/B
valuation, the VN-Index appeared notably attractive, trading at 1.7x book value, which represents
a | 7.6% discount relative to the 5-year average.

Figure 31: A narrower E/P and interest Figure 32: The valuation of VN-Index is also
rate gap signals growth potential for the fair compared to other markets (data as of

VYN-Index December 27, 2024)
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The 10-vear government bond vield rypically has an inverse relationship with the P/E ratie. In the
short tesm, this yield is expected to continue rising due to concerns over exchange rates and
foreign capital flows. Specifically, the USD/WND exchange rate is under significant pressure as
the DXY index reaches 109 —its highest level in two years and the SBV has had to intervene by
-.;;Eillng foreign exchange reserves 1o mee: domestic foreign currency demand or raising policy
rates. However, VNDIRECT believe the market has largely priced in the risks related to exchange
raics. In the sccond half of 20235, VNDIRECT expect exchange rate pressures to ease, paving the
way for corporate eamnings growth and market upgrades to become the primary drivers of market
trends.
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The current gap hetween E/P and intercst rate is wide compared to historical level, showing that
stoek market is more artractive than savings. The E/P of VN-INDEX 15 7.6% (Dec 27, 2024) while

12-month deposit rate 15 4.9%/vear.

Assuming a 17% EPS growth in 2025, VKDIRECT forecast the WIN-Index’s forward P/E to be
around 11.6x, which is within the historically low valuation range. VNDIRECT believe that, in
the absence of systemie risks, the market's P/E ratio will continue to fluctuate within the normal
range of 12.1 to 15.2 times. Furthermore, with sufficient support, market valuations could be
significantly higher compared to the 12-menth trailing P/E ratio of 13.3 times at the end of 2024.

Realizing the goal of upgrading to emerging market status is within reach

Circular 68/2024/TT-BTC, issued by the Mimstry of Finance of Viemam and effective from
November 2, 20724, establishes a framework that allows securities companies to develop products
and services to meet the critenia for upgrading YVictnam's stock market status, as assessed by both
FTSE and MSCI. By fulfilling the remaming two criteria of FTSE Russell, which are Pre-Funding
criteria and Settlement — costs associated with failed trades criteria. VNDIRECT expect FTSE
Russell to announce that Vietnam's stock market will be officially upgraded to a Secondary

Emerging Market in its periodic review in September 2025,

With a strong commitment to achieving the stock market upgrade goals and bnlding a sustainable
capital market, VNDIRECT believe that the state regulatory anthorities will continue to develop
mechanisms to meet the remaining upgrade criteria set by MSCL VNDIRECT expect the
remaining MSCI upgrade critena to be fulfilled in 2026, and that the Vietnamese stock market will
be officially upgraded to Emerging Market status during MSCT's regular review i June 2027,

Aremendous uncertainly driven by outside evenis

While VNDIRECT are confident of domestic growth and our earnings forecast, VNIMRECT see
market returns driven by external factors that are difficult to predict. VINDIRECT belicve the
FTSE upgrade is highly likely in 2025, but Trump policies and resulting FX concerns are uncertain
(which is what caused much of the pressure on the VN-Index i 4024).
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Upside Scenario Downside Scenario

Earnings 17% EPS growth based on our 17% EPS growth based on our

{rowth bottom-up forecast bottom-up forecast

Trump Makes deals with China, Canada and  China, Canada and Mexico iarifls
Mexico to reduce tariffs. No tariffs  persist for 2025, Selective tariffs on
on Vietnam. Victnam transshipmenis.

Fed Two rate cuts for 25 basis points  No further rate cuts in 2025.
each.

Dollar DXY drops below 102, VNDVUSD s DXY rises above 110, SBV must
stable. take defensive action to defend YND

or allow devaluation.

FTSE Announces Vietnam upgrade Mo upgrade announcement in 2025,
Seprember.

2025 closing  15x trailing EPS | 2x traling EPS

F/E Eatio

VYN-Index Closes at 1,670 (market gain of Closes at 1,340 (market gain of

2025 forecast  32%) 6%)

4.4.2. Busincss Strategy Orientation for 2025

The vear 2025 1s forecasted to be a volatile year for the global economy and politics, with
challenges arising from geopolitical conflicts and economic risks stemming from trade wars,
leading to unstable macroeconomic foundations worldwide. Meanwhile, Vietnam is experiencing
a pivolal year with significant shifts in institufional refonms, govermment apparatus, and plans to
boost economic growth in preparation for a new cyele,

Despite facing fierce competition, the Viemamese stock market in 2025 promises substantial
potential alongside the economic development in the new cycle. VNDIRECT continues to focus
on two main strategic directions: Sccurities Services and Capital Market Services, In the context
of the Vietnamese stock market facing significant opportumities for transformation, VNDIRECT
will leverage technological advantages to develop clicnts with active trading needs and access
expert consultants through digital platforms and service packages, aiming for sustainable asset
growth.,

Simultaneously, VNDIRECT is expanding investment capital scrvices and investment banking,
having built competitive advantages in recent years. The company continues to optimize capital
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.1~.Ltilizat|nn efficiency through transactions in the money market, bonds, and stocks. VNDIRECT

focuses on selecting issuers with high credit ratings while building advisory capacity for capital
market issuance (ECM), enhancing access to and connecting international capital flows with
Vietnamess businesses.

VNDIRECT remains steadfast in its strategy to become a comprehensive investment ccosystem
for market participants. In 2025, the company will simultanecusly focus on developing and
enhancing competitiveness across different customer segments.

Individual Clients — Enhancing Digitalization and Personalization of Investment Experience

o Securitics Trading Serviees: VNDIRECT intensifies the upgrade of digital trading
platforms (web/mobile), applics Al and big data to personalize experiences and optimize
investment efficiency. Gradually implement ticred service packages based on customer
needs.

« [Investment Advisory & Asset Management: Focus on developing tools to assess
personal financial health, advising on long-termn investment pathways and sustainable asset
accumulation {Dge). Expand pericdic investment products, open funds, and meodel
portfelios. Digitize advisory processes by combining technology and ¢xpert teams.

Corporate Clients — Providing Comprehensive Financial Solutions

s [nvestment Banking (IB): Continue to accompany leading businesses in securities
issuance advisory deals (IPO advisory, stock issuance, bond issuance). Expand advisory
capabilities, restructure businesses to help Viemamese enterprises build a sohd foundation
in povernance and financial etability for the upooming eyele,

« Expand Mnaneial management solutions: Such as cash flow management, shareholder

service packages (TR), and other financial services for businesses and major sharcholders.
Institutional Clients — Expanding Connections and Enhancing Service Standards

e Foreign Market Connectivity: Invest in DMA infrastructure and platforms to serve
nternational institutional investors, preparing for a new trend of capital inflows into the
Vistnamese stock market as it meets upgrade conditions.

= Complete analysis products and market/business access services: Enhance in-depth
analysis quality and organize activities to connect businesses and investors (roadshows,

seminars), helping institutional investors access information effectively.
Supporting Platform — Technology Development and Team Capability

VNDIRECT continues to invest in an integrated financial technology ccosystem, enhancing
human resources towards digitalization — creativity — service, The organizational model is bualt on

the philosophy of flexibility, transparency, and sustainable development.
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4.5, Assessment Report related to environmential and social responsibilities of the Company

Assessment concerning the envirenmental indicators

VNDIRECT has implemented numerous practical measures towards sustainable development,
both protecting the environment and raising awareness among employees. The company strictly
complies with environmental Taws, enhances green spaces in the office to create fresh air, and

reduces energy consumption and cmissions.

The company implements specific measures to minimize water consumption and emissions info
the environment. In office areas, the company installs reminder signs for employees to use water
efficiently and avoid waste. Cleaning agents such as hand wash and dishwashing liquids are
replaced with bio-products made from natural herbs, helping to reduce chemical discharge into the
environment and protect water resources. Additionally, VNDIRECT encourages employees fo
limit the use of plastic battles, replacing them with personal water bottles during internal events.
These measures not only contribute o reducing emissions but also raise awareness about resouree
and environmental protection among all employees and the community. The 35 program s
‘periodically implemented to optimize resource use and foster good habits in environmental
manapement, These efforts demonstrate VNDIRECT's responsibility in rescurce protection,
emission reduction, and strengthening investor confidence in sustainable development values.

Assessment concerning the labor issues

The VNDIRECT Executive Board highly values the role of emplovees in realizing the company's
vision and mission. In 2024, VNDIRECT implemented comprehensive human resource policies,
ranging from recruitment, training, career development to management improvement and
remuneration policies, aiming to build a professional, commitled workforce with a sense of
ownership. The company focuses on professional training, work culture, and job rotation to help
employess explore their potential, while also organizing welfare programs, health care, and team-
“building activitics to enhance team spirit. With the philosophy of "People-Centric,” VNDIRECT
creates an attractive working environment that fosters creativity and responsibility, helping each
individual to develop comprehenzively and contribute to the overall success of the organization.

Assessment concerning the corporate responsibifity for the local community

VNDIRECT consistently fulfills its tax obligations and contributions to the State Budget, with a
steadily growing contribution over the years, VINDIRECT ranks 36th m the Top |00 largest private
enterprises contributing to the national budget in Vietnam and is among the Top 4 private securities
companies making significant contributions, affirming its active role in contnbuting to national

economic development alongside its vision and sustamnable develepment stratogy.
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V., ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S
OPERATION

5.1, Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operation

In 2024, the company has fully complied with corporate governance activities applicable to public

companies as well as information disclosuare in the stock market.

WVNDIRECT transitioned from a securnities company providing trading platforms and margin
products to an intermediary fnancial institution, offering investment capital solutions and
securities trading solutions for individual investors, as well as capital issuance and listing solutions
for corporate clients, becoming a4 bridge to meet capital issuance and investmeni needs.
Additionally, VNDIRECT identified unsustainable factors in the short-term business model that
fluctuates with the stock market, thus always cautiously maintained liquidity conditions to respond
to unexpected risks while dealing with personnel changes during the business management model
transition. The VNDIRECT team has built & workplace culture that emphasizes collective
ownership and personal responsibility according to each individual's role and position.

The Board of Directors highly values the role of sustainable development in the Company's long-
term strategy and consistently directs the Executive Board to integrate environmental, social, and
governance (ESG) facters into business operations. In 2024, the Company proactively
‘implemented initiatives to minimize environmental impact, such as optimizing energy usage,
digitizing work processes, reducing paper usage, and promoting responsible consumption and
operations internally. Regarding social responsibility, the Board of Directors appreciates
VNDIRECT's continued maintenance and expansion of financial education programs, enhancing
investment knowledge for individual investors. Internally, the Company mairtains a fair working
environment, encourages diversity, inclusion, and provides development opportunities for the next
generation of leaders. All these actions are aimed at the long-term sustainable development goal,

harmonizing economic, environmental, and social benefits.
5.2. Assessment of Board of Dircetors on Board of Management’s performance

The Executive Board has implemented the business strategy, business plans, and operational
;:'lim:ticms closely aligned with the Company's Vision — Mission while flexibly adapting to market
developments and management policies. The Exccutive Board also regularly reports and
exchanges with the Board of Direcctors on strategic situations, action directions, and effectively
implements the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

By the end of 2024, VNDIRECT has achieved significant contributions to the Company's business

operations, such as:
&0

o == i

]
o




+ Strictly managing and mitigating risks associated with margin trading, building and
deploying quantitative risk models to decide appropriate lending levels, balancing risks
and benefits.

» Implementing the iLead task management system across VINDIRECT and the entire group,
providing the whole team with tools to crganize tasks and monitor execution processes to
collaborate and cooperate to achieve the organization's common goals.

v Successfully developing a private bond trading system connected to HNX, ensuring the
progress of KRX testing with HOSE, successfully building and deploying the Order
Routing system for derivatives, completing & mnew electronic confiract/signature
management system, and building a new Open APIL platform ready for cross-selling
financial products and payments.

» Gradually mastering AIML technology with many successfully deployed solutions such
as cKYC, Al-based stock ranking, and Al data processing and classification technologies

&£ 3, Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

Heading into 2024, VNDIRECT aims to strengthen organizational capabilities in two key service
areas: (1) Capital market and investment asset management services and (1) Securities trading
services, Although the business environment still poses risks and challenges, there are always
development opportunities for businesses, To leverage potential and seize opportumitics, the
company focuses on attracting senior personnel and creating a re-training and team cohesion

environment te meet new business conditions, which will beeome a top priority for the company's
leadership,

Continuing the tradition of being ready to embrace challenges, venture, and learn to develop
careers. VNDIRECTORs centinuously enhance their knowledge and expericnce, steering
VNDIRECT towards becoming an intermediary financial instimtion with comprehensive business
capahilities in the financial market, capital market, and securities trading market, with a reputation
and extensive operation history alongside the development of the international and Vietnamese
financial markets. Collective intelligence, the leverage of mastering digital transformation, big
data, and artificial intelligence, and the leverage of the symbiotic value chain are the foundations
for each VNDIRECTOR to create value and build collective strength to conguer larger business
goals
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VI. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

6.1. Board of Directors

6.1.1. Members and structure of the Board of Directors

' Mirs Fham Minh Huemg was re-glected as Chairwoman of the Board of Direciors for the 2022-2027 term on April
25, 2022, Rhe way relieved of her duttes ar Chairwoman of the Board of Divectars on April 26, 2023, to asswme the
poxition of Chief Executtve Qfffcer (CEQ) and Member of the Board of Direciors. Subsequenily, she was re-elected
ax Chairaaman af e Board of Directors on September 15 2013,
® M. Ngwyen Fu Lang was elected asa Member af the Roard of Directors for the 2022-2007 ferm on April 23, 2022,
He war elecred ny Chairman of vhe Soard of Directors on April 24, 2023, and relinquished his position as Chalrman
o Seprembar 18, 2023, 10 axswme the role of Chiel Exvecidtive Officer (CEC) and Member of the Boord af Directors.

* M. Vi Hien was elecred as Standing Vice Chatrman of the Bourd of Directors on Oatober F1, 2024,

B

The date becoming/ Number of
managerial
‘ ceasing to be BOD Ovwnership ratio (%) ; ger |
Member member/ Independent positions held
No. of the Position BOD member | by BOD
BOD . Fidad I member at
Appointmen | Dismisal | resentative|Individusl|  Other
tdate Hake | organizations
Chairwoman| September
|| M Eha e Board| 18,2023 0 2.95% 5
Mg of Directors
Mr. Members of | September |
] Neuyen Vi the Board of| 18, 2023%* ] 0.00002%; | 1
Standing
Vice April 25,
3 bz i Chairman of |  2022” 0 0.00004% | 4
H' |
% lthe Bosrd of
Directors
Vice
Mr. Mai  |[Chairman of
| 25/04/2022 0 0 4
Huu Dat  |the Board of
Directors
Independent
Mr. Vu | members of
Ll o 25042022 0 0 1
Viet Anh [the Board of
Directors |
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6.1.2. The committees of the Board of Directors

[nternal Andit Committee: In 2024, the Internal Audit Committee suecessfully fulfilled its tasks
and objectives as stipulated in the Intermal Audit Committec’s Operating Regulations, the
Company's Charter, and applicable laws. The commitlee’s key activities include: Conducting
mdependent assessments of compliance and alignment with legal policies, the Company's Charter,
and resolutions of the GMS and the BOD; Revicwing, assessing, and evaluating the adequacy,
efficiency, and effectivencss of the imernal contrel system under the BOM, with the aim of
improving it; Evaluating compliance of business activities with the Company’s internal policies
and procedures; Providing recommendations to improve intemal policies and procedures;
Assessing compliance with legal regulations and contrelling measures to safeguard assets;
Conducting internal audits on financial information and business operations; Evaluating processes
for identifying, assessing, and managing business risks; Assesaing the effectiveness of operations;
Monitaring compliance with contractual obligations; Overseeing the IT systems Lo ensurc security
and data safety; Investigating mtemal violations within the secunties company; Conducting
internal sudits and fulfilling other rights and duties as defined in the Company’s Charter and the

BOD's resolutions/regulations.

The Risk Management Committee: adviscs the BOD on matters related to the Company's risk
management. Its key responsibilities inchude: Researching, developing, and issuing strategies,
policies, regulations, and procedures for risk management withm the Company's operations;
Reviewing and evaluating the appropriateness, efficiency, and effectivencss of the Risk Management
Division and the overall risk management system established within the Company; Issuing policics, I
risk limits, principles, criteria, delegated authority, and approval mechanisms for risk management, |
as well as parameters and risk management models; Performing other rights and duties as stipulated .
in the Company's Charter, BOT) resolutions/regulations, or decisions made by the BOD.

The Human Resources Committee: advises the BOD on matiers related T personnel
management. lts responsibilities include: Advising the Chairwoman of the BOD or the BOD on
the issuance of the Company's organizational structure and functional responsibilities; Approving
or advising the Chairwoman on policics, human resource regulations, salary mechanisms, and
employee welfare; Reviewing or approving the recnutment, appointment, dismissal, and
disciplinary actions of management personnel under the BOD's authority; Participating in matters
related to labor discipline for management personnel under the BOD% jurisdiction or other
employees (when deemed necessary); Performing other nights and duties as stipulated in the
Company's Charter and BOD resolutions/regulations.

The Investment Committee: advises the BOD on issues related to investment activities,
21




underwriting, and lending for transactions within the BOD's authority as stipulated in the
Company's Charter. Its functions include: Advising the BOD on policies and regulations related
o investment and capital management; Approving, on behalf of the BOD, capil allocation
principles and capital management sirategies; Reviewing and approving capital contributions,
equity acquisitions, and share purchases for listed enterprises or securities, except for routine short-
term trading activities; Making decisions on investment activitics that do not fall within the GMS
or BOD"s authority and have not been delegated to the Chairwoman, CEQ, or Executive Board,
where opinions from Investment Comumittee members are decmed necessary; Performing other

rights and duties as stipulated in the Company's Charter and BOD resolutions/regulations.
6.1.3. Activitics of the Board of Directors

Tn 2024, both the global and Vietnamese economies faced numerous difficulties and challenges
due to the complex developments of monetary policies domestically and internationally, along
with impacts from international econemies and stock markets. In this context, the Company's
‘Baard of Directors remained steadfast in its poal of perfecting a customer-centric business model.
The Company laid the foundation for digitizing all husiness management activities and key
product operations, while building important premises to expand busincss capabilitics, The
Company's diverse financial investment product-service ecosysicm has been completed to meet
the needs of all customer segments. Additionally, the Company aims for sustainable development

and continuously perfects its internal management system.

In 2024, the Company's Board of Directors maintained & total of five members, mchuding ome
independent member, The Board of Directors held regular and extraordinary meetings to promptly
make decisions on mamers within its authority, including governance, personnel orgamzation,
strategy, and operational plans of the Company. The decisions of the Board of Directors over the
‘past year have been effective, helping the Company navigate complex fluctuations in the stock
market and economy. Specifically, the Board of Directors held quarterly meetings and
extraordinary meetings in various forms, issuing a total of 24 resolutions/decisions related to
organization, business operations, and investment. Noteworthy among these are decisions to elect
the Permanent Vice Chairman of the Board, approve business results and stratcgic plans, approve
public hond issuance, change the use of funds raised from the offering. and approve changes in
charter capital following the public share offering as per the General Meeting of Sharehalders'
resolution. The Board of Directors' meetings were organized in accordance with the procedures
stipulated in the Company's Charter and current Enterprise Law. M inutes, resolutions/decisions of
the Board of Directors were unanimously approved and fully disclosed in the Company's
Corporate Governance Report for 2024.
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Meetings of the Board of Directors:

Board of Number of mectings Reasons for
Attendance
No. Directors' attended by Board of absence
rate
member Directors
Mrs. Pham Minh
1 24 100%,
Huong
i Mr. N Vi
2 B 24 100%,
Long I
3 Mr. Vu Hien 24 100%%
4 Mr. Ma Huuo Dat 24 100%5
S Mr, Vu Viet Anh 24 100%: |

Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors

In 2024, the Chairwoman of the Board of Directors executed decisions within their delegated
authority. Specific information regarding these decisions is presented in the 2024 Corporate

‘Governance Report:

Approval
No. | Resolution/Decision No. Date Content it
Approval of contracts and 100%s
January 8, | transactions between VNDIRECT
2024/ M0)- T
: ESENRAREHER 2024 Securities Corporation and related
parties in 2024
5 43004/ NO-HDOT January 16, | Investment in the establishment of 100%
asas 2024 [PA Member Investment Fund
31, ) 100%
3 85/2024/NQ-HDOQT Jﬂn:;; Tssuance of secured warrants in 2024
Approval of continuing and 100%
March 25, : ;
! 205/2024/MNQ-HDOQT 2024 completing the procedures for the
| issuance of company shares -
March 29 Approval of the plan to organize the 100%%
5 262/2024/NQ-HPQT 1024 * | Annual General Shareholders'
Meeting for 2024,
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Approval

No. | ResolutionDecision No. Date Content
rafe
Approval of the date for the closing off  100%
17 harch ist for
6 453/2034/NQ-HPOT May 17, the s ﬂldl-:r. list for rights to
2024 purchase additional shares and
receive 2022 dividends in shares.
June 10, | Approval of the usc of funds to l'.ﬂSLIE. 1%
T 2024 WNO-HBROT
Lo ¢ 2024 shares as dividends for 2022.
June 17, | Organization of the second Annual 100%4
& 529/202 HBOT
s s 2024 Gieneral Sharcholders' Meeting
fiiis Selection of an audit finm to review 1 00%%
0 599/2024NQ-HBQT ML’ the company's financial statements for
2024,
fulr 12 Approval of the distnbution/ offermg 100%
] 623/2024/MNQ-HDQT 23'14 " | of remainmng shares not purchased by
existing sharcholders
Fulv 15 Approval of the results of the public 100%
1| 620/2024/NQ-HDQT L;;H " | offering of shares and the issuance of
shares as dividends.
July 15, . : 100
12 638/2024/NO-HBQT ey Change of company's charter capital
Use of funds from the public share 100%%
i ET32004N T July 23, offering for existing sharcholders
N 2024 according to the General
Shareholders' Meeting's resolution
4 | 500-3/2024/NQ-HPQT August 12, | Change of the branch manager for 100%
SREEHRRER 2024 the Quang Ninh branch.
Angust 13, | Change of the branch manager for 100%
% | WREIRAMERD 2024 the Can Tho branch. |
August 16, | Change of the branch manager for 100%
Lo SIERNAANGHEGT 2024 the Da Nang branch
. . August 28, | Payment of dividends for 2023 n 1 0%
A7 el e 2024 cash to existing sharcholders.
GO September | Approval of the 8-month DusIness 100%%
= 2 HE 25, 2024 performance in 2024 and business
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Approval

No. | Resolution/Decision Na. Date Content
{ raie
direction for 20242025,
Electi i i
19 963/2024/NQOHBOT October ection of the "l."ID-E.E:hHIITIIE.Tl of the 100%,
11,2024 Board of Directors.
3 ; .
o~ 990/2024/NQ-HDQT October 23, | Change of the location of the Binh 100%%
2024 Duong branch.
]
a1 1018/2024/NG-HDQT November [Issuance of secured warrants, Phase 100%
' |, 2024 for 2024
M C -atl fth 100
2 | 143/2024/NQ-HDQT ovember |Change of tmncand_luuatmn of the %
26, 2024 SALA transaction office.
h - [ )
_ s Change »:lf. the purpose for th_: use of %%
23 1226/2024/NQ-HPQT funds raised from the public share
20, 2024 : .
. offering for existing sharcholders.
December | Tssuance of bonds to the publc in 1 00%a
4 1239/2024/NQ-HDQT
4 AR 25,2024 2024,
5 Approval of the r:gisl.mim 100P%
25 | 1239-1/2024/MNQ-HBOQT 25 2004 documents for the public bond
d offering.
Approvel of contracts and 100%
s | 123922024N0 T Decemher | transactions between VNDIRECT
E 25, 2024 Securities Corporation and refated
parties for 2025,
December Establishment of the Times City 100%:
1239372024/ M- T
~E L sl 25,2024 transaction office.
8 | 1239-4/2024/NO-HD December | Update on the Nam Dinh branch of 100%
- -HBQE 25,2024 the company.
|
December (Cha flocation af the Hai Phon 100%
29 | 1239-5/2024/NQ-HDQT 2 i
25, 2024 branch.

6.1.4. Activities of the Board of Dircctors' independent members

Independent Board members possess professional expertise and have many years of expericnce 0

VNDIRECT's core areas of operation,
In 2024, independent Board members actively participated in all

87

making significant contributions o the Board's decisions.
decisions/issuecs under the Board's




authority and made important contributions in advising, appraising, and 1ssuing the Company’s
decisions, regulations, and policies. They also participated in Councils/Committees as assigned by
the Board/Chairman to ensure transparency and control of VNDIRECT's and sharcholders'

mieTasts.

In 2024, the Board successfully established a management structure and made flexible, timely
decisions to address emerging issues amid financial market fluctuations and particularly changes
in legal policies. The Board's timely decisions and directives contributed to enhancing operational
governance efficiency, risk control, minimizing investrent and business losses, and maintaining

VNDIRECT's competitive edge in the markel.

The Board promptly approved and issued decisions and approvals within its authority to adjust
VNDIRECT's management and business activities. Board meetmgs were convened amnd opinions

wete solicited in accordance with the Charter and current legal regulations.

The Board's oversight of the Executive Board was fully and timely implemented, ensuring that the
Company's operations were aligned with its strategic direction, stability, and sustainable

development.
6.1.5. The list of members of the Board of Directors possessing certificates on corporate

governance

With a policy focused on enhancing corporate govemance to build and strengthen the Company,
ltha Company has encouraged members of the Board of Directors (BOD), executive members, and
other management personnel to participate In corporate gnvernance framing programs. Several
members of the BOD, the Supervisory Board (SB), Board of Management have heen awarded
Certificates in Corporate Governance training organized by the Secunties Research and Training
Center - the State Securities Commission (SRTC), including:

MNa. Members | Pasition
| | Mrs. Pham Minh Huong Chairwoman of the Board of Threctors
2 Mr. Vu Hien Member of the Board of Directors
3 Mrs. Hoang Thuy Nga Head of the Supervisory Board
4 Mr. Dicu Ngoc Tuan Chief Governance Officer
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..  Board of Supervisors
6.2.1. Members and structure of the Board of Supervisors

" The date Holding Percentage (%)
. becomi
Members of ne/
. ) ccasing to be the
No. | Supervisory | Fosition Qualification |
Roard member of Representative | Individual
Supervisory
Board .
Head of the Bachelor's
Mrs. Hoang | Supervis degree in
| B | SUPSVIOLY | pril 25,2022 | 0
Thuy Nga Board Finance and
Banking
Member of Bachelor's
Mrs. Huynh )
the degree in
2 | Thanh Binh § _ April 25, 2022 G ] 0
uperviso FENCTa
Minh =
Board | Accounting
Member of
Mrs. . Bachelor's
- the
3 MNpuyen | ; June 17, 2023 degree in i
Supervisory .
Mgoc Mai Auditing
Board
Board of Supervisors' meetings
i
. Number of
Member of the Attendance |  Voting Reasons for
No. meetings
Supervisory Board rate (%) | rate (Ya) absence
attended
I
1 Mrs, Hoang Thuy Nga 2 100% L 00%%
Mrs. Huynh Thanh Binh |
2 : | 2 10050 100%
Minh
3 | Mrs. Nguyen Ngoc Mai 2 | 100% 100%

In addition to formal meetings,

1o observing and cvaluating other activitics of the Company in 2024, especially the businecss

The Supervisary Board (SB) of the Company also dedicated time

campaigns, solution-secking programs, and developmens projects of the Company.
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6.2.2. Activities of the Board of Supervisors

The Supervisory Board (“SB") in 2024 conducted oversight and cvaluation of the implementation
of the business plan while ensuring the Company's compliance with legal regulations, the
Company’s Charter, and the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders ("GMS™). The
Roard of Directors (“BOD™) of the Company fully exercised its rights and dutics in accordance
with the law, the GMS Resolutions, and the Company's Charter. The Executive Board strictly
‘adhered to its functions, duties, and the delegation of authority from the BOD. actively and
effectively implementing the Resolutions of the GMS and the BOD.

The coordination among the Board of Supervisors, Audit Committee, the Board of
Management, Board of Direcfors and other managers:

The Supervisory Board (SB) regularly coordinates closely with the Board of Directors (BOD), the
Board of Management (BOM), and management personnel in the process of monitoring and
assessing the implementation of the Company’s business plan, During the inspections, the 5B
requested the provision of records, documents, and organized direct mestings with the BOM as

well as management personnel, ensuring full access to necessary information and dafa.

In 2024, the BOD, BOM, and management personnel in the functional departments proactively
provided the SB with timely and complete Resolutions and Decisions. The BOM assisted the 5B
in gathering information and documents related to business operations when requested, facilitating
the inspection process, At the same time, the 5B provided feedback and engaged in discussions to
cnsure that the Company's cperations were carried eut in accordance with the guidelines and

resolutions of the Sharcholders' Meeting.

.3. Transactions, remunerations and benefits of the Board of Directors, Board of

Management and Board of Supervisors
6.3.1. Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits

The total remuneration/allowance paid to Board of Directors (BOD) and Board of Supervisors
‘members i 2024 is VND 1.3 billion, including: The remuneration/allowance paid to each BOD
member is VND 16 million/person/month; The remuneration/allowance paid to each Board of
Supervisors member is VINTD 10 mallion/person/month.

The salary and banus for the CEO and other managers of the Company in 2024 amount to VIND
24,4 billion. The salary and bonus for the CEC and other managers are paid by the Company based

on employment contracts and according to the actual time each member holds their position
Details of the salary, remuneration/allowance, and bonuses for each BOD member, the CEQ, and
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other managers are specified in the audited financial statements for 2024, section 32.1 (page 61),
and are disclosed on the company’s website at www. vadirect, com.vi.

.3.2. Transactions of Insiders and Related Persons involving the Company's shares

Number of shares Reasons for
owned at the beginning higmler GE Ahares camies INCICUSINE,
- at the end of the period 3
_ ) of the period decreasing
Transaction RelNlp [buying,
No with imternal :
executor gelling,
persons | Number of |[Percentage| Number of | Percentage ;
converting,
shares (%) shares (%a) —
atc.)
A Mr.
Nguyen Vu | Insider 260 0.00002 273 0.00002
Long
Z Mrs. Pham
Minh Insider 35,020,570 295 44 901,212 285
Huong
3 Mr. Yu :
: ; Exercise
Hien Insider 504 0. 00004 519 0.00003 ihip st
purchase |
4 | Mr. VuViet shares from
Anh Insider 1,400 0.0001 1,750 (0.0001 the public |
“ offering of
5 Related sharcs.
[PA |party dueto
Investment Mr, Vo Hien
Group Joint | serving as | 314,654,782 | 2583 | 393318477 25,84
Stock  (Chairman of
Company [the Board of
Directors.

6.3.3, Contracts or Transactions with Internal Persons

The sequence and procedures for approving transactions between VNDIRECT and related partics
are conducted seriously, ensuring compliance with legal regulations and VNDIRECT's internal

policies.

Transactions berween VNDIRECT and related parties are approved by the Board of Dircetors and

are presented in the Corporate Governance Report for 2024,
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6.3.4. Assessment Report of the Board of Directors on the Company’s Operations and
Activities of the Beard's Committees

The Board of Directors consistently evaluates the Company’s eperations and the activities of its
subcommittees, ensuring effective povernance and oversight. Throughout the reporting period, the
Board actively reviewed, implemented, and adjusted intemmal govemance practices and policies to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, Efforts were made to maintain
transparency and openness in governance activities, The Cempany proactively researched,
implemented, and revised intemal govemance measures and policies to align with legal

requirsments, thus improving the effectiveness, quality, and completeness of internal supervision

and reporting processes.
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VIL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
7.1, Aunditor’s Opinion

Excerpt from the financial staternents for the fiscal vear ending December 31, 2024 of VNDIRECT
Securities Corporation, audited by Emst & Young Vietnam Limited Liability Company:

“In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the
Sfinancial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of their aperations,
its cash flows and its changes in owners' equity for the year then ended in accordance with

Vietnamese Accouniing Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting
gridance applicable o securities companies and the statwfory reguiréments relevant 1o
preparation and presentation of financial siatemenis. "

7.2. Audited Financial Statements

“The full text of the audited financial statements for the year 2024 of VNDIRECT 15 enclosed with
this Annual Report.

Above is the Annual Report on the activities of VNDIRECT Securities Corporation.

Recipients: CONFIRMATION OF THE COMPANY'S
s dvakse LEGAL REfRE&EﬂATWE
- Company records, : ":11.__ name and seal) EIJZ,_#
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation
Firancial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

GEMERAL INFORMATICMN

THE COMPANY

VWNDIRECT Securities Corporation {"the Company”®) is & joint stock company established under the
Cerporate Law of Vietnam acserding to Busmess Regisiration No. 0103014521 by Hanoi Autharity for
Planning and Investment dated 07 November 2006, Business Registration No. 0102065366 amandad
for the 13" on 21 QOctober 2024, Securities Business Operation License No. 22/BCK-GPHDKD
issued by the State Securities Commission dated 16 Movember 2006 and Amended Licensa for
Establishment and Operation of Securities Company (The latest Amended License for Establishment
and Operalion of a Securities Company No. 53GPDC-UBCK datad 30 July 2024),

The principal activities during the cument year of the Company are ta provide brokerage services,
securties trading, underwriting for secuntes issues, custodian services, financial and nvestment
advisory services, derivative trading services, cash edvances and margin lending senvices.

As at 31 Decembar 2024, the Company's charter capital was WND 15,222 060 080,000 [as at 31
Decsmber 2023 WND 12,178 440,080,000,

The Company's Head Office is located at No. 01 Mguyen Thuong Hien Street, Nguyen Du Ward, Hal
Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam. As at 31 December 2024, the Company has branches lbcated in

Thanh Xuan — Hanod, He Chi Minh City, Da Nang, Vinh — Nghe An, Can Tho, Binh Duong, Quang
Minh, Mam Dink, Thanh Hoa and transaction offices located in Da Nang, He Chi Minh City and Hanoi.

As at 31 Decamber 2024, the Company had two (02} associales

BCOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mambers of the Board of Directors ("BOD") during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:
Full Name Title Appointment/Resigration date

Ms. Pham Kinh Huong Chairaomean Appointad en 11 Novembsr 2006,
Reappointed on 25 April 2022,
Resigned on 26 April 2023,
Appointed on 18 September 2023

Mr. Vu Hien Member Appointed on 28 March 2009,

Reappaintzd on 28 Apnl 2022,
Standing Vice Chairman Appointed on 11 ODctober 2024

Mr. Mai Huu Dat Wica Chairman Appointed on 21 July 2022

Mr. Mguyen Yu Long Membar Appeinted on 25 April 2022,
Resigned on 26 Apnl 2023,
Appointed on 18 Septembar 2023

Mr_ Wu Vit Anh Independent member Appaointed on 25 April 2022

BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supenvision during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Full name Titte __ Appoirtment daie

Ms. Hoang Thuy Nga Head of fhe Board of Supervision  Appointed on 21 April 2013,
Feappointed on 25 April 2022

Ms. Nguyen Ngoo Mai Member Appointed on 17 June 2023

M. Huynh Thanh Binh Minh  Member Appointed on 28 April 2012,

Reappoirted on 25 April 2022



WNDIRECT Securities Corporation
GEMERAL INFORMATION (continued)

MANAGEMENT

Members of the Management during the year and at the date of thes raport are as follows:

Eull nare Title Appoirtment date

Mr. Mguyen Vu Lang Ganaral Diractor Appointed on 18 Septamber 2023
Mr Digu Ngoc Tuan Chief Governance Officer Appainted on 31 Qotober 2022
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The |lzgal representativa of Iha Company during the year and at the date of thess financial statements
are Ms. Pham Minh Huong - Chairwoman of the Board of Directors; Mr. Mguyen Vu Long - General
Director and Mr. Dleu Ngoc Tuan - Chief Governance Officer

AUDITORS

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corparation
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management of VNDIRECT Securilies Corporation ("the Company”) is pleased to present this report
and the accompanying financial staterments of the Company for the year ended 31 Decamber 2024

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Managemsant of the Cormpany is responsible for the financial staternents of each financaal year which
give & true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the results of ks opersiions, its
cash fiows and its changas in owners” equity dunng the year. In preparing those financial staternents,
Management is required o

» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistanthy;
»  make judgments and estimates that ere reasonable and prudent;

» siate whelther applicable accounling standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explainzd in the financial etatements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis unhkass it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

Management is respansible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasanable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and 10 ensure that the
accounting records comply with the applied accounting eystam. It is also responsile for safeguarding
the assels of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
frauds and other rregulasities.

Menegement confirmed that it has compled with the sbove requirements in preparing the
accompanying financial statemenis.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Managament does hereby state that, in #s opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of the results of
its operafions, cash flows and its changes In owners’ equity for the year then endad in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting
guidance applicable to securities companies and statutory requirements relevant fo the preparation
ard prasentatien of the fnancial statements,

| putingG RHDAT

Hamnoi, Vistnam

28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: The Sharaholders of
VHDMRECT Securilies Corporation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VNDIRECT Securitise Corporation (“the
Company’} as preparaed on 28 March 2025 and set out on pages 05 to 68, which comprise the statemant
of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the income siatement, the cash flow statement and the
siatement of changes in owners' equity for the year then ended and the notes therata,

Management's responsibility

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thesea financisl
statements in accordance with Vislinamase Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System, accounting guidance applicable to secunties companiss and stetutory requirements refevant fo
preparation and pregentation of the financial statements, and for such internal contral as the Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial staterments that are
free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or ermor,

Auvditors' responsibility

Cwir responslbility b to express an opimon on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducied
our audd In accordance with Vieinamesa Standards on Auditing. Those standards requere that we comply
with ethical requirerants and plan and perform the audit o oblain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from malenal misstatament.

An audit invalves parforming procedures o obtain sudit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assassmant of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whethar dua to fraud or emor
In making those rsk assessments, the awditors consider imernal cantrol relevant io the Company's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial staterments in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstancas, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinton on the effeclivenass of
the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the approprdateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting estimates made by managemen!, as well aes
evaluating the averall presentation of the financial statements.

We balieve that the audit evidence we have oblained s sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for
our audit opinlon.
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Shapa the future
with confidence

Dpinlon

In our opinion, the financal statements give a true and fair view, in all malenal espects, of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 Dacember 2024, and of the results of their cperations, ita cash flows and
its changes in owners' equity for the year then ended in accordance with Viethamese Accounting
Btandards, Vietnamess Enterprise Accounfing System, accounting guidance applicable to securities
companias and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of financial
Statemants.

s Tran Thi Thu Hien
Daputy General Direciar Auditar
Audit Practizing Registraton Audit Practising Registration
Certificate No. 2400-2023-004-1 Certificate No, 2457-2023-004-1

Hanai, YWietnam

28 Marzh 2025
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOM-CTCK
STATEMENT OF FIMAMCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2024
Cumency: YAD
Cnde | [TEMS Nofes Ending balance | Bsglnning balance
100 | A CURRENT ASSETS (100 = 110 + 110} 43,105,620,017, 289 | 40,414, 364 838 078
110 | I Flrancial assets 42,005 352 TR0 537 | 40,278,651,863 343
111 1. Cash and cazh equvalants L BR1,175660,472 4 BS1 508270 037
1t 1.9 Cash T4 466 660,472 | 2667088279037
112 1.2 Cash eqifvalanis T46. 700,000,000 | 2754, 000,000,000
112 | 2. Financial asasats al falr value theough Y18
prafit or loss {FYTPL) T4 | 24519200008 786 | 16720988 737 500
113 | 3 Held-to-maturity mvestments (HTM) T2 5580073000000 7432 4456,000,000
114 | 4. Loans 7.9 | 10,343,627, 985,292 | 10,285 781,835 320
118 5, Provision for impaimmeant of financial
aszets and collaterals ] (122 286,257.021) | {119,377.507 624)
117 | & Recewables g 1,728,245 363,775 938 674,588 232
1171 61 Receivabies from disposal of
financis assers 555,640 757 457 22, (H6 265 742
1172 6.2 Recpivaliey and acoruels from
dividend and infanesd ineeng 1,172,704 626,382 516, 578 322 490
i17.3 6.2 1 Dividends and imenes income
due fio be recelived 98 427 412 362 85 427 412,362
1174 6.2.2 Accrued diidends S inferss!
iraaTe 1,077,277, 213860 T27, 150,870,928
118 | 7. Advances o suppliers ] 31.617,208,015 3552779272
112 | 8. Receivables from senvices provided by
B Company ] 178,047, 781,530 134 650,683,900
122 | 8. Othorreceivables g 7,002 515,583 | 38,840,257 831
128 | 0. Pravighon for imgsairmeant of receivables L (192,146,801 005} [27.,710.397,241)
T30 | 0. Other current asseis 170,367,236, 752 135,532,074, 735
131 1. advances 10,832 244 281 13,358, 708,731
133 | 2. Short-term prepaid sxpenses 10 42 570,502 RER 10,300 B64_ 466
134 | A Shord-term deposiis. collaterats and
pledpes 11 106,245 870,000 06 585 217 160
137 | 4, Diher current assals 20,918 320,625 15,297 066,378
200 | B. NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS 1,189,156 655 182 | 1,327 706,233,200
(200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 250)
210 | L Long-tarm financial assets 1,038,150,771,556 |  1,160,966,673,916
211 1. Long-term receiablas 09,716,240, 944 0,238 A5E, 889
212 | 2 Long tenmn irwesiniends 24#8.683,852.000 | 1,074 440,612,000
2121 2.1 HTI imvesiments 7.2 - 207,550,000, 003
2123 22 Invesfments i assocfales 12 04 55,352,000 036 175332, 003
2IEA 2.3 Dther iong-lerm vestments T 34, 158,520,000 35,675 280, 000
213 3 Provision for impairment of lorg-term
financial assetls 12 (4,220,581, 388) (3,710, T95.873)
220 | . Fixedassels 84,089, 253 850 106, 034,007 (84
F¥ 4] 1. Tangible Exed aaseis 13 40,050 432 082 52 527 D41, BB
272 1.4, Cost 208,271,274, 760 793,871,384, 830
2i3a 1.2 Accumidaled depreciafion (16430 842 878) | {147 444, 343 D<)
227 2  Imangible fixed azsets 14 43,124 821,768 B3 508561, 108
223 21 Cost 162 797 824,279 164,670, 758,270
239a 22 Accumiated amarfisshinm (139,865,002 511) | (144,172 707,081}
240 . Constriclion in progress 3,180, 792000 2,545 /865,013
250 | V. Dther long-tesm assafs G5 715,837,776 BB, 187,797,275
251 1, Lomg-lenn deposils, collaterals and
pledges 1 3,104,872 428 3,393,442 478
252 | 2. Loog-lemn prepaid expenses 10 27.850,665,348 19,764 348 247
fad 3. Payment for Seilement Assistance Fund | 15 200,000, 000,000 20,000,000,000
268 | 4 Other non-surrent BRsets 16 15,000, 000,000 16,000,000, 000
ZT0 | TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200} A4 794 V76,672 471 | 41.742,090,171,365
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO1-CTCK
STATEMENT CF FINANCIAL POSITION {continued)
as at 31 December 2024
Curmencke YD
I Coda | ITEMS Motz Ending bafance | Beginning balance
300 | C. LIABILITIES {300 = 310 + 340) 24,572, 707,973,260 | 25,234 770,644,372
Mo | f.  Current dabilities 24,502 452 858 455 | 214,736 424 518, BE3
31 1. Shot-berm bomowings and financial
Easas 18 | 22435 244 535,316 | 20,468 434 154 08G9
32 1.1. Shovi-levrn borawings 22 436,244 633 316 | 20 460,484 764, 050
316 | 2 Shodt-tamm bonds ssuad 19 400, 000,000,000 400, 000,000,000
B A Payables for secunites rading activities 20 1,113,475 985 287 B21 595 387,087
320 |4 Shod-lerm trade pavables Z8 948,803 137 65 558 430, 298
321 5 Shoet-term advances fram customens 23,324 255 B4R 20, 574,256, B840
dxz | & Stafutary ohligations 21 235,683,401 372 243,387 566,722
323 | ¥ Payablas to amployess 11,308 502 B22 28,043,552 100
M |8 Employee benefis 3,852 9594 203 40125 0325, 381
326 |9 Shorferm acorued expanses 22 £4,305,523.084 150,575 598, 260
a9 10, Other short-term payables 1,254 974200 | 2,371,435 512,100
330 11. Short-tarm provizion - 80,000.000,000
i 12 Bonus and waFare fund 180,084,031,180 72,541,002 868
40 Nl Nom-corrent Nabiliffes 7 425,000 801 497,846,727, 688
35 1. Long-tenm bonds issued 15 - SO0, 000,000, 00
a5 | 2. Defered mcome bax labdities s 77225000801 07 845 12T 682
400 | DL OWHERS' EQUITY (400 = 10 18,715,068,693,211 | 16,507.815.526,994
410 | L. Owners' agqulty 24.2 | 19,715,088 693,217 | 16,507,879, 526,954
411 11, Share caplla 15,222 828,001 540 | 12,178,398 511 540
111 1.1, Gaprsl gonfmbution 15,222 555 080,000 | 12, 178, 4400, 090, 000
41i.7a &. Dndinary sharas 15,222 950 080,000 | 12178 440,080 000
11 | 1.2 Share premium {171,078 460) (41,578 68
#17 |2 Undistributed profit 241 | 4492240681 671 | 4320421015464
171 2.1. Realsed profl afer igx 4, 783340328 462 | 3938035 504 65
172 2 2 Unreaised profit 308, 900, 383, 200 Jo1, 384, 510 Té0
440 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS'
BQUITY {440 = 300 + 400) 44,294 776,672 471 I 41,742 090,171,368
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO1-CTCK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {continued)
for the year endad 31 Decembar 2024
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Curency: VND
Cooe | ITEMS hotes Ending balance | Bagmnning balamee
&. ASSETS OF THE COMPANY AMD
ASSETS MAMAGED UNDER
AGREEMENTS
004 | 1. Doubtfiul debts writien-off 01,586,714, 060 101,988, 716,060
e | 2 Cuisiending shares (number of shares) 2.4 1,522 295,908 1,217 844,009
0OE | 3 Financial agsets listadiragizterad for
frading at Visinam Seclrflias [epesion
and Clearing Corparation ("EDCT) of the
Compaiy 251 | 109E1, 481,720,000 | T.622.045,590,000
e | 4. Non-traded financial assets daposded at
VSDC of the Company 25.2 325,002 250,000 407,104, 630,000
0 | & Awatbng financial gssets of the Company | 25 1,058, 513,400,000 BTE, 204 G0 000
02 | B Finaneel assels which hawe not been
daposited at WEDC of the Company 254 | 53893.272080,000 ( 1,747 337 730,000
2 | 7. Financal assels enfitled to the nghts of
the Gompany 25.5 TOT 570,000 190,000
4 | B, Coversd wamanis [rumber of covened
vearranis) 129,980,100
B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMENT WITH INVESTORSE
021 | 1. Firancial sssaete listedregisterad for
trading at VSDC of investors B7 /554 897,054,800 | 83,305,182 655,500
a2 1.1 Unestricted financial assets FE263,889, 774,600 | 72 563,078,785 500
a2tz 1.2 Restricted fnancial aRseds 4,154 (055, 170, 000 Fdd4 230 650, 000
021.3 1.2 Mergaoed inancial assets 10,643 524,820,000 | 5 317872650 000
Qeid 1.4 Biocked financial aseefs 3,748 330,000 §4,700,620, 000
G21.3 1.8 Financlal sesets awaiting setlement BA0 479,920 000 | 9,015,507 340,000
022 | 2. Hon-traded financial assels deposited at
WEDC of investors 1,001,294, 600,000 | 2,767 BEY 350,000
o2z d 2.1 Unreairicted and non-fraded franci
assels deposied at VEDC S50 420,315,000 | 1,408 067,340,000
2222 22 Restricted and non=traded financal
assuls deposied al VSO F60, 874, 380,000 T 370 622 070, a0
023 |3 Awailing financial assets of imesion 2568 560,198, 130,000 48 350 577 000
024b | 4. Financial aszets have not been deposiled
a8l VEDC of Invesiors 257 | 35,553,388,231,000 | 37,744,000, 708,500
025 | 6. Financial assets entiled o the rights of
investors 25.8 185,075,580,000 P02 234 500,000

i = g P d
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO1-CTCK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS {rontinued)
Curtency WD
Code | (TEMS Aoles Enitirns balsnce | Bagioming balance
B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMEMT WITH INVESTORS
{zontimued)
LEe 1] inwestors’ daposils 5412 054 103 665 | B.366,886514,638
027 6.1 Ilnvestors' deposits for sacurities
traging activiies managed by he
Carmiany 259 4 763,693,799 315 | 4 335 470 385 643
0274 6.2 Inwestors’ escrow depost at WBDC | 258 151,284,573, 760 238,571,595 877
{28 G.3 Investors synlfeszing deposis or
gnciailing rading activifins 258 1,004 588 500 833 | 1,782 3232709, 362
028 6.4 Clearng depazits and papnent of
secuflies fransaclinnsg 2. 788,101,628 149, 120, 804
o02e.3 = Clearimg deposis and paymeant
of secunes fransachions by
el mestons 3,007,157 T1.731. 832
az8.2 - Clearmy deposis and papment
of secunfies ransachons by
Tareign invesions 2 TIE 100377 77387 872
030 8.5 Deposits of secinfies zsuers 25710 191,878,233 472,311 8RO
031 Payables to invesbos - immeslons’
deposits for seceies frading activites
managed by the Company 2611 5412 662 315436 | 6365414 202.7688
kb 7.1 Payahles o domesic invesfors for
secuiiies rading scivifies
rmaraged by the Company 4 BO7 B30 070 825 | 5,351, 656418637
31,2 T2 Payabies to faneign fnvestos for
secuiies frading achwiies
srariaged By the Carmpsrmy 3063, 559 830,857 T8, 185,760 178
031.3 7.3 Fajpables to ivestors' sscow
deposis af VDT 151,281,513, 760 238.571,995.977
pE] Dividend, band principal and ntanest
payablas 2512 191,876,233 472,311,850

Y

—r

Hanai, Vietnam
28 March 2025

Ms. Le TH Hoai
Preparer

Ms. Mguyen ;rhi Huong
Chiaf Accountant

hr. Nguyen Yu Lang

Gererdl Drector
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO2-CTCK
INCOME STATEMENT
far the year ended 31 Decamber 2024
Currency: VIND
Cods | ITEMS Mofes Curmsd year Previous yoar
I. OPERATING INCOME
o 1 Gain from financial assats at falr value
throwgh profit and kes (FVTPLY) 2,758 053,158,000 3,303, 175987 380
@i, 1 1.7 Gair frovn dispossl of fnencial
azsais &f FWTPL 26,1 1,640 445,035, 364 2004 804 454 704
| oz 1.2 (Gafm fom revaluation of franois)
assais af FYTRL 267 83, 743 894 020 1,145 956,755,104
0.3 1.3 Dvwidand, iterest ineorma from
friancial assetz at FUTHL 263 414,018 345,216 545 677 855 92
a4 1.4 Gam from revaluation of
ourstanding covared warant
payablss 49,845,478, 400 13,737,690, 600
02 | 2 Gain from held-o-matunty (HTM)
imeasirmiants 26.3 432 441 708,902 (5,989,757 968
031 3, Gain from loans and recensblies 26.3 1,254 855005185 1,154, 085,633,047
06 | 4. Revenue from brokerage services 716,883,725 160 867,080,312.818
a7 6. Revenus from undanveting and
IBSUANCS AgencY SaMVICeE 53,974,808 167 107,575,367.174
% | 8 Revenve from securbes cusiodian
SRIVICES BE,075 471 608 92 478,235,601
10 | 7. Rewenue from financial advisary
senices 11.840,080.808 10,5688 870,278
1 8. Hevenue from other operating activitlea 16.431,430.575 20,405 061, 163
20 | Total opersting income (20 = 01 2 11) 5,324 544 464,856 6,569 422 166 429
I OPERATING EXPENSES
21 1. Loss from financial assals at fair value
through prefit and legs CFWTPL) 1,261,254 474 488 1,495 900 101,309
211 .7 Lows from disposal of fnencial
assals al FYTPL 261 HA53 D80 445 204 541, 307,737,637
21.2 1.2 Loz fom evaliafion of Snencial
assals 5f FYTEL 282 752 023, 183 &850 B43 607 542 876
21.3 1.3 Trensaciion costs of soquisition of
francial pesets at FYTRL 508,670 425 1,083 325 o0
214 1.4 Lozs from revalpaion of oovened
waTent papabies 54 671 174 200 B 912,105,800
24 (2 Prowision  expensefiraversal)  for
diminution in value @nd Impstrment of
financial assels, doubtful recaiables
wnd bamowing costs of loans 27 130,321,116.284 (B8 200241, 508}
26 | 3. Expenszes for proprietasy trading
actiilien 28 51,384 166,101 34 327 608,913
27 | 4. Expanses for brokerage services 24 488,171 485537 815,454 ,376,512
28 | 5. Eupanses for undenwriting and
ISSUENCE B ENCY SErvices 23 8,043 508,778 8 264,882 221
29 | 6. Expenses for securities ineestment
advisery seraces 24 480,280,308 B36 415,223
0 | 7. Expenses for secunlies custodian
sEMVICES 28 30.514,050,783 28,812 Bag 35T
N 4, Expenses for financial advizory
servicas 2B 31,537,593 ,000 25,302 482 785
32 | 8 Expenses for other services 26 132,401,770 807 74,523,025 815
40 Total operating expenses (40 = 21 = 32) 2, 122.113,453 486 2,194,254 402 508
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOZ-CTCK
IMCOME STATEMENT (continued)
far the year ended 31 December 2024
_ Guirancy: VND
Coda | ITEMS Nofeg Cumeal paar Fraviows year
. FINANCIAL INCOME
41 1. Reallzed and wreestzed gain Yom
foreign exchangs rates diferancas - 10,045,687 75R
42 2 Dividend income and Interest ncome
from demand deposits 23058 433 872 22 508 592 &30
43 | & Eain from dsposal of investmants - 5,0:00,000,000
a4 4. Financal Incorme from athsd
inwestmani activites - 3 100,433,425
A | Total financlal income {50 =41 =+ 44) 23,8960 433,872 40,739,813,822
. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
21 1. Realzed and unrealised loas frem
foreign exchange rales differences - 3,361,482 870
52 | 2 Borrowing oosts BET 433,254,168 1444 406 517,726
64 | 3. Provision expanses for impairment of
lorig-kerm financial Investments 516,554 415 1,625.596,501
fi5 4.  Qther fimancial expenses 13,760,163 056 39387 33T 68
&0 | Tatal financizl expenses (60 = 51 = 55} 881,702,153, 642 1,483,7T74.136.2T6
o V. GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES OF THE COMPANY 29 453,211,635,553 430,067,613,400
7o V. DPERATING PROFIT
(70 = 20+ 53 - 40 - 5 - §2) 2,091, 785,755,757 2,489,065 625,066
VIl OTHER INCOME AND EXFENSES
T 1. Ohar ncome 172 577,075 518,580 557
72 2. Other expenses 3,634 200,535 T.641 675,660
Bl | Total other operating boze (80 =71 =72} (3,464,623, 460) {6,723,177,083)
B0 | VIl PROFIT BEFORE TAX (20 =70 + 80) 2,088,324 132,297 2,482 3432 451,873
o1 1. Realised profit 2.191 429 316,736 2,272 167 E13,045
a2 | 2 Unrealized proftioss) {103,104, 184 430) 210174 538,078
100 | X. CORPORATE INCOME TAX (CIT)
EXPEMNSES 369 809,102 085 460 001 531,855
1001 | 1, Cuprant CIT expanse a0 380 520,138,873 416,056 504, 309
100.2 | 2. Defered CIT expense/incemea) 0.2 [20.621,036 505 42 (34 927 606
200 | K. PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,718,428,030,212 2,022 350,919,978
500 | XI. NET INCOME APPROFPRIATED TD
ORDINARY SHAREHDLDERS 1,718,425,0320,212 2,022,250,916,974
501 Bask: eamings per share
(WVNDishare] (Restated) 3 1,128 1,207

Hannd, Viatnam
28 March 2025

1o

Ms. Le Thi Hoas

Preparer

Ms. Mguyen ThilHuang

Chiefl Accouniant
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General Direcior



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO3E-CTCK
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024
Cade | [TEMS Notes Current yaar Previous year
1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
01 | 1. Profit bafore tax 2.088.324,132,2587 |  Z482,341451,973
02 | 2 Adjustments for: (345, 140.500,901) BE8 269 66D, T20
03 Depredalian and amortisation 50,830,028, 068 w5 i 516 569
] Provisions 100,442,278 973 1.0490,758,5384
a5 Unrealized gain from foreign exchandge
rales differences - {0,743 209,470)
0B Interest expensas BET 433,356,169 1444 405 51T T26
o7 Predits from imesting aclivlies (141,578, 708) 5,000,000, b00)
0B Accred inlenest income (11727704 626 322) (918,578,532 400)
10 | 3. Increase in non-monslary expenses BO7,212 952 274 g84, 150 035577
g Lags from revalustion of financial assats
at FYTPL and logs from revaluslion of
coverad wamran? payables EBODE, 594 357 L59 52,520,038 576
18 Provision expenses for impairmeant of
long-term financeal investmants 518 504 4156 1,629 906 901
16 | 4, Decrease in non-monetary income (T02,569,973,420] | {1,162 694,67, 704)
148 Gain lrom revaluation of financial assets
at FYTPL and gain from ravaluation of
covarad wamrant payables (703,580, 173,420) | {1,102 ,604,678,T04)
a0 |8 Operating income before changes in
working capital 1,846,807 410,260 | 2,833.067.471,566
] {Increasshdecrease in financial aaasts &t
FYTPL (T.BET 480,758,825 | 1,745022,069 528
42 (Increaseldecease in HTM investments 2073, 122,000,000 | (2,033,505 000,000)
a3 Increase in loans (A7 006 148,972 | {1,224 975,085,241)
a5 {Increasejdecrease In ecevebles from
dispaaal of finandal assols (533,444 491,7T11) 1.630,228,167,134
3G Decreasa n receivables, socnsals from
dividend and interest on financial assals 16,578,322 280 S22 A2E T4 261
ar (Increase)idecreass in recsivables from
serdaces provided by the Compary (43,2388 05T 60 134 656 683 526
34 Incresqe in abfer receivables {20, 699,955 472) {140,302 054 BE3)
é{l {Inereaselidecreass in other azzeis ZB07 38247 (42,308,005 674)
41 Decreasa in aoorued sxpenaes (exdledng
intereal expenses) (1,569,377, 928) {1, 340 405, 173)
42 {Increaselidecreass in prepad axpenses (30,046,744, 901) 22 QuE 057,628
43 Current comporase income 2 paid | (384,040,177 B85} (340,91 1 054 B0S)
44 Interesl aypanses paid (TEE 24,083 447} | (1,605,272 51 Dot}
45 Increasefdecrezse] in trats payablas (33,540 827 161) BE, 151,302 455
e Ineaseidacrease) in amployas banafie (78,031,178 9,693,031 522
47 Decrease in staiutory cbligations
{exciuding pad CIT) (11,384,128 238) (23,565 308 436)
a3 Ircresaf{deceass] in payablss o
ampioyeas (16,735,052, 274 10,147 234,850
=10 increasaiidacreasa) in other payables
and payables for coversd warranis {2,083,125,663.400) 538,731 442,503
B2 Oither paymenls for aperating activities {84,203 247, 7700 {F4.612.516,124)
B0 | Wetcash flows fromd|used In) aperating
atlivilies (F,108,702,085 860) ) Z175,018.523.061
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO3b-CTCK
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 Decamber 2024
Currsncy. G\ m]
Code | [TEME Mg Cerrrant pear Frevious year
Il. CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIMTIES
G1 | 1. Purchase and consinusiion of iked
asselz, mvesiment properties and
ofher kong-term assets {38 525,072 487) (T, 188,171 4000
62 (2 Proceeds kom disposal and sale of
finad assets, imvestmant properties
and other long-term asaeis 165 445 455 2
63 | 3 Cashpayments for invesiments in
H subsidiaries, assocates, ot venlures,
and other irvestmerls {75, 350,000,000 (161,134, 760,000
B4 | 4 Procesds from sale of investmeants in
olher entities 3 806, TR0 000 185,000,000, 000
T0 | Metcash flow used in investing activities (114, 250, BE0,032) (83,323,910, 400)
Hl. CAZH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
71 | 1. Cash receipt from Ssuance of shares,
capital contibided by shamholders 2,435 538,820 000
722 | & Cash receipl frorm sales of reasury
shares - 358,523,950
72 | 3 Drawdewn of borrowings 898919193, 496,702 B5 834 565 862 506
732 - Cither bormowings 08,919,163, 456, 752 | 86,554 568 562 506
74 Repayment of bomowings (O 350 433 028 466) [ (B8.673,031.464,639)
745 = Qiher repayment of bomowings (97,257, 433,025, 465) | (BE 573,031, 454,635)
76 Dividends, profil distriuded fo
shareholders {7B1, 140,554, 000)
B0 | Met cash flow from financing activities 3,242,147 338,327 31,0906,021,817
80 | IV. NET INCREASENDECREASE) IM
CASH DURING THE YEAR {3,8B0,812,618,665) 2.403.800,034,4T8
101 | ¥ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGIMMING OF THE YEAR - 4,861,968,279,037 2,458,387 244 559
1011 Cash 2,667 0B8 273,037 1.7EE 175,744 558
o2 Cash equivalents 2,184 000,000,000 E7T0,211,500,000
103 | W1, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR ] B51,175,660,472 4 B61, 988 278,037
1031 Cash T34 456 650,472 2 667 088 Z79 037
1052 Cash equivalenis 146, 709,000,000 2,194 000 0o, 000
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO3L-CTCK
CASH FLOW STATEMENT [{continued)
far tha year ended 31 December 2024
CASH FLOWS FROM BROKERAGE AND TRUST ACTIVITIES OF CUSTOMERS
Cumensy VD
Frevious year
Code | ITEMS Medaz Cuwment pear {Reslated)
. Cash fiows from brokerage and
trusl activities of customers
01 1. Cash recaipts from disposal of
brokerags securities of customers 200, 500 874, TA6 BES | 305 132 457 175,673
02 | 2. Cash paymenis for purchases of
brokerags securiliss of customers (295,335 765,066 870 | {307,168,015,092 038
07 | 3. Cash receipts for setiling customens’
sacurilies ransactions B01,108. 266,214, TR] | 933 B4E 573,451,187
OF1 |4 Incresseldecrease] invesiars’
deposit at WEDC (&7 200,422 217) 23,917 532,309
Bl 5. Cash payment far securnies
Transactons of cusiomers {RDE 204 315 450 2400 | (831 445 208,715,879
it B Cash payment for custodan fees of
Cusiomers (22,459,840 585) {20,728 B16, 637
14 7. Cash recapis from securities szuers 4 445 01 3,857 500 8,681 875 560,658
15 | A Cash payments to securies esusers 4 45 204 291 207 (6,631, 810.515 38T)
20 | Met increase|decreasn) in oash during
the year {354,032,320.967) 1551070681472
kL] il. Gashand cash equivalents of
euEtomers at the beginning of the
yoear 6,366, 006,514 636 4815815 823164
&1 | Cash atbanks at the beginning of the year: 6,368,835 514,638 4 815 815 623 164
32 |«  Inueestors” deposis managed by the
Company for zacurities trading
activilies 4,235 470 285,643 3,5683,076.453,623
321 | - Invastors’ escrow depositz st VEDC 238 571,995 077 214,554 153 585
33 |- Inwestors’ synthesizing deposits for
securiting trading activitios 1,752,222, 79 352 1,007.421,938.5976
3 | - Deposils for eecurities clearing and
setilement 148 129,804 118,450,658
a5 Deposis of sacurites Bauers 472,311 850 G44 576,381
40 | L Cash and cash equivalents of
customers 3t the end of the year 5,412,854,153 663 6,366, 686,514,636
41 Gmhzttarﬂ-m at the end of the year; 5412 854,193 662 0,366 B85 514 536
42 Invesion’ deposids mansged by the
Company ke securities irading
adivilies 259 4163 683,199,315 4,335, 470,285 543
421 | - Inwesiors” escrow depogit at WaDG 28% 151.261,513,060 238,501,895 977
43 | - Investors” synihesizing deposits for
securiias trading activities 258 1,094 BEE 500 833 1,792,222 701,362
44 | - Deposis for securities clearing and
setilermen 2,768,101 528 148,125 304
45 | = Deposis of securllies |ssuers Z8.10 191,676,233 AT2,211,860
L <, i Hanol, Vietnam
fay" CONe TY 21 28 Maren 2025
CE PHAN
-: P
HOAN
Ms. Le Thi Hoa Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Mr. Nguyen Vu Lang
Praparar Chiaf Accountant General Drecior
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WNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO4-CTCK
STATEMENT OF GHANGES IN QWNERS EQUITY
for the year end 31 Decamber 2024
Comency UND
Eapining balenca fncraasascrease Enoing baience
ITEMS Nales -
01 January 20023|  OF Janvary 2024 e T o CUEALS e 31 Decomber 2023| 31 December 2034
A E] 7 ] 3 ¢ R B 7 5
L CHAMGES M
OWRERS' EQUITY 14,405,200,083,066 | 16,507,018,526,994 |  BO22,250,919,478 360,822,050 | 4,580,405, 167,763 | [1,630,219,001,646) | 18,607 619,528,958 | 19,716,058,650.211
1. Share capilad 12,978,020,067 500 | 12,175 306,511,540 A5HEZA060 | 3044 B5E 500,000 [120,500,000) | 12478,308.51 1,540 | 15,222,620,001 540
1.7 Qrdlnany ghare MD | 12ITE 40080 000 | 12 178,480,850,000 -| 3044558, 090,000 -| 12 176 440500000 | 45220 B0 0E0.000
1.2 Sham premiwm 4,508 178 [#17, 5FA a8 {55, GE H8) - {720, 5000000 (a4, 576 480 [T 078 480
1.3 Treaswy shares {424 800,508 24,610,565 - . -
2. Undistributed profit ZANRATO0O5476 | 4,099.421,095.654 | 2,023 250,910,876 1,500, 008,177, 763 | (1,598,008 504 545) | 4939420 015,454 | 4402, 24050, 671
21 Realsad proM
il L 241 | ZDILEIEZPATI0 | SE20098,504854 | BS4111,200 5858 1000508, 7T.76] | 855005350 000 | 393000550680 | o 163, 300508 200
2.2 Unrealizad peo® | 241 SELSLEMAE | 39 364, 510, T80 468,135, TT0, 422 - {52,484, 147,557} T8 304 AT 0 08 570 362, 209
TOTAL T4.2 | 14.485200,043,066 |18,E07810,526,004 |  2,021,280,040,678 988,629,650 | 4E45468,167,TE3 | {1,838, 298,004, 546} | 16,807.019,526,504 | 16.745,068,503,211
Hamai, Vigtnam
28 March 2025
Ms. Le Thi Hoal Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Mr. Mguyen Yu Lerg
Fraparer Chiaf Accountant Ganeral Diracior
Please

SIGN
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOG-CTCK

ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then anded

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

VNDIRECT Securities Corporation ("the Company”) is a joint stock company established
wnder the Corporate Law of Vielnam according to Business Registration No. 0103014521 by
Hanai Authority for Planning and Investment dated 07 November 2006, Business Registration
Ho. 01020685366 amended for the 13™ on 21 October 2024, Securities Business Operation
License Mo, 22UBCK-GPHDKD issued by the State Securifies Commission dated 18
Movember 20068 and Amended License for Establishment and Operation of Securitiss
Company {The latest Amsnded License for Establishment and Operation of a Securities
Company No. S2%GPDC-UBCK dated 30 July 2024).

The principal activities in the current year of the Company are to provide brokerage services,
sacurities frading, underwtiling for securities ssues, custodian services, finanelal and
investment advisory services, derivative trading sarvices, cash advancas and margin kending
SEMVICRS.

As at 31 Decamber 2024, the Company’s charter capital was VMD 15,222 889,080,000 {as at
21 Degember 2023; WND 12,178,440,090,000).

The Company's Head Office & located at No. 0f Nguyen Thuong Hiern Street, Nguyen Du
Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam, As at 31 Decamber 2024, the Company has
branches ocated in Thanh Xuan ~ Hanol, He Chi Minb City, Da Nang, Vinh — Nghe An, Can
Tho, Binh Dueng, Cuang Minh, Nam Dinh, Thanh Hoa and transaclion offices located in Da
Mang, Ho Chi Minh City and Hani

The number of the Company's employess as at 31 Decembar 2024 was: 1,077 people (as at
31 December 2023: 1,774 paopla).

Company’s operalion
Capital

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's charler capltal was VND 15222 959 080,000
aowners' equity was WND 18,715,060,893,211 and lotal assets wera VD 44,204 776 672,471,

Invasiment resinchions

The Company is required to camply with Article 2B of Circular Ne. 1212020 T-BTC dated
31 December 2020 by the Ministry of Finance providing guidance on oparation of securities
companies and othaer applicable requiafiens on investment restrictions. The current applicable
practices on investment restriclions are as follows:;

»  Securities company is not allowed to invest, contribute eapital fo invest in real-estate
aseets except for the purpose of use for head office, branches. and transaction offices
directly serving professional business activities of the securities company,

#  Securities company may invest in real-estate investment and fixad assets on the principle
that the carrying value of the fixed assets and real-estate investment shoukd not excesad
fifty parcent {50%) of the fotal assets of the securities company.

» Securities company is not alowed to use more than seventy percent (70%) of its owners'
gquity to invest in corporate bonds. Securities company, licensed to engage in self-trading
activity, is allowed to frade listed bonds in accordance with relevant regulation on trading
bonds,
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

CORPORATE INFORMATION {continued)
Company’s eperation (confinued)
tnvesfment restictions (continued)

b Securities company must not by itself, or authorize another arganization oF individuals to:
Invest in shares or contribute capital to companies that awned more than fifty parcent
{50%) of the charter capital of the secunbes company, except for purchasing of odd lots
at the request of customers; Make [oint investmant with an affiiated person of five percent
{5%) or more inthe charter capital of another securities company; Invest more than twenty
percent (20%) in the total currently circulating shares ar fund cerfificates of a listing
organization; Imeest more than fifteen percent (15%) in the total cumently outstanding
shares or fund certificates of an unfisted organization, this provision ghall not apply to
member fund, ETF fund or open-end fund cedificates; invest or contribute capital of mare
than ten percent (10%) in the total pead-up capital of a limited company or of a business
project Invest more than fiteen parcent (15%) of its owners' equity in a single
organization or of 2 business project, Invest more than seventy parcent (T0%) of its total
owners' equity in shares, capital coninbubion and a business project, specifically invest
more than twenty parcent (20%) of its total owners' equily in unlisied shares, capital
contribution and a business project.

Associates

Az at 31 December 2024, the Company had tweo {02) associates as follows:

Businass Fropodion

Campany fame Estsblished undsr Zachor Charfer capital _haiding vole
Poat— Business Registration  Mon-life WHND 20 20%
Telecommunication and Cperating License  insurance BOS,257 080,000
Joint - Stock Mo, JEIHGP-UB dated  and financial
Insurance 01 August 1558 and sEruloes
Corporation the= latest armendes business

Dperaling License ho.

4 1TAGPDEI2MDEH

dated 05 January 2022
Goldsun Food Rusiness Registration  Restaurant YND E55% 6%
Jaint Shock Mo, 0108981120 lseued  businass, 1,285, 501, 000000
Company by Hanoi Depanment of food senice

Piannng and Investment

dated 17 Oclober 2019

and subsequent

amendments
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOO-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
g5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

L

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Purpose of preparing the financial statamants

The Company prepared these financal statements to meet the prevailing requiremeants in relation
to disclosure of information, specifically the Circular No. 862020/TT-BTC on disclosure of
infarmation on the secunties market.

Applied accounting standards and system

The financial statements of the Company are prepared and presanted in accardance with
Viatnamase Entarprise Accounting System, the accounting regulation and guidance
apphcable o securties companies &s set out In Circular No. 210(2014/TT-BTC dated 30
December 2014, Circular Mo, 3342018 T-BTC dated 27 December 2016 amanding,
supplamenting and replacing Appendices No. 02 and No. D4 of Circular No. 210/2014/TT-
BTC, Cicular No. 1142020TT-BTC dated 17 Dacember 2021 providing guidance on
financial regime applicable to securities companies and fund managemeant companies and
ather Vietnemese Accounting Standards promulgated by the Ministry of Finance as per:

» Daclsion WNo. 140/2000/0D0-BTC dated 31 Dacember 2001 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Standards on Accounting [Series 1),

»  Decision No. 16852002/Q0D-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the lssuanca and
Premuigation of Six Vietnamesa Standarde an Aseounting (Series 2);

» Decision No, 2342003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the lssuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting {Serles 3),

b Decision No. 122005/Q0-BTC dated 15 Februany 2005 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounbing (Series 4); and

¢ Decsion Mo, 100Z005QD-BTC daled 28 December 2008 on the Issuance and
Pramulgation of Four Vietnamsse Standards on Accounting (Sedas 5],

Registered accounting documerntation system

Tha Company's reglstered accounting sysiem is the Seneral Journal Voucher system.
Fiscal yaar

The Company's fiscal year starts on 01 January and ends on 37 December.
Aceounting currency

Tha financial statements are prepared in Vietnam Dong ("WND'}, which is aleo the accounting
currency of the Company.
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VMNDIRECT Securities Corporation B09-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.1

&2

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH VIETNAMESE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
SYSTEMS

Management of the Company confems that the Company has complied with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Systermn, accounting guidanca
applicable to securities companies and statutory requirements relevant to preparation and
presentatan af he financial statemants

Accordingly, the accomparying financial statements, including their utilisation are not
designed for those who are nof informed about Vielram's accounting principles, procadures
and practicas and furthermore are not intended to prasent the financial position, results of
operations, cash flows and changes in owners’ equity and notes to the finansial statements in
sccordance with accounfing principles and praclices generally accepted In counines othar
than Wielnam

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term, highly
liquid Investments with an original maturty of three months or less that are readily conventible
inte known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value

Cash deposited by customers for securifies trading and cash deposited by securities issuers
ara presentad on the off bakance sheet

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assefs recognized at fair value through profit and loss ere financial assets that
salbisfy either of the following conditions:

a) It s classfiad as held for trading. A financial asset is clessified as hald for frading it

* it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of seling ar repurchasing itin the
near tarm;

there iz evidance of 8 recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

» it is 8 derivative (except derivative that is a financial guarantes contract or effective
hedging instrumsnt).

b} Upan initial recognition, a financial asset is designated by the entily as at fair value
through profit and loss as it meets cne of the following criteria:

» The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the Inconsistent freatment that
would othenwise arise from measuring the asset or recognising gains or losses on a
different basia. or

» The asssfs are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's
risk management policy or invesiment strategy

Financial assets at FVTPL are initizlly recognized at cost (acquision cost of tha assats
excluding transaction cost arsing from the purchase) and subsequently recognized at fair
valye,

Increase in the difference arising from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL in comparison
with the pravious period is recognized into the ineome statemeant undar "Gaip from revaluafion
af finaneial assets at FYTPL". Decrease in the difference arising from revaluation of financial
assats at FYTPL in compariscn with the previous year is recognized into the income staterment
under "Loss from revaliation of financial assels at FVTPL™

Tranzaction costs ralating to the purchase of the financial assets at FVTPL ane recognized
when incumed as expenses in the income siatament,
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

d.

4.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Held-to-maturity investments (HTM)

Held-to-maturity Invastments are non-derivative financial assets with determinable payments
and fixed maturity that an enlity has the positive intention and ability to hold to raturity other
than:

a) Those that the entity upon ini=al recognition designates as at far value through profit o
loss:

b) Those that the entity designates as available for sale; and
¢l Those meet the definition of loans and recenvables

Held-to-maturity investments are recognized inilially at cost (acquisition cost of the assets
plus (+) Iransaction costs which are directiy attributable to the investmeants such as brokerage
fee, trading fes, agent fee, Issuance agency fee and banking ransaction fee). After inital
recagnition, held-to-maturity financial investments are subsequently maasured at amortized
cost using the effective Interest rate {"EIR").

Amartized cost of HTM financial investments is the emount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus (-} principal repayments, plus (+) or minus (=) the
cumulative amortisalion using the effective interest mathod of any differance betwean that
inital amount and the maturity amount, and minus (-} any reduction for impaiment or
recoverability (if amy).

The effective Intarest rate mathod is a methed of calculating the cost allocation on interest
income or inlerast expense in the year of a financial asset or a group of HTM investments.

The effective interast rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash paymants
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, whan appropriate, @ shortar
pariod fo the net carrying amount of the financial assets or financial fabilities.

Aconeed interest s recognized under “Recaivables and accrugls from dividend and inbarest
Incoms of financial assels”,

HTM investments are subjected to an assessment of Impairment at the financial statement
date, Provision is made for an HTM imvestment whean there is any objective evidence that the
investrment i irecoverable or thera is uncertainty of recoverability, resulting from one or more
avents that has occurred after the inital recognition of the investrnent and that event have an
impact on the estimatad future cash flows of the imvestment that can be refiably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include a drop in the fair value/market value of the debt,
indications that the dabtors or a group of debtors are experencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in (nterest or principal paymeanis, the probability that they will
antar bankruptey ar othar financial reorganization and whena cbservable date indicates that
thers is a measurable decrease in the estimaied future cash lows, such as changas in arrears
ar economic canditions that comelate with defauits. Whean thera is any evidence of impairment,
provision for an HTM invesimant i delermined as the negative difference betwean its fair
value and amarized cost af the assessment date. Any mcresse/decrease in the balance of
provision is recognized in the income statement under “Provision expense for diminufian i
value and impairment of financial assels, doubfui receivables and bowrowing costs of loans”,



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO$-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yaar then ended

4,
4.4

4.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Loans

Loans are non-derivaiive financial assets with fixed or identifiable payments and not ksted on
active market, with the exceptions of

8) The amounts the Company has intent to immediately sall or will sell in a near future which
are classilied as aseats held for trading, and like those which, upon initial recognition, the
Company categonsed as such recognised at fair value through profit or loss,

b) The amounts categorized by the Company as available for sale upon initial recognition; or
£) The amounts whose holders cannot recover most of tha initial investment value not due o
cradit quaity impairment and which are categorised as available for sale,

Loans are recognised iniially at cost (disbursement value of the loans). After initial
racognition, loans are subsequently measured at amorised cost using the effective interest
rale C"EIR"L

Amortised cost of Ioans is the amount at which the loan & measured st initial recognition
minus (-} principal repayments, plus (+) or minus (-} the cumulative amortizsation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that Initlal amount and the maturity
emeunt, and minus (<) any reduction for impaiment or un-collectability (if any).

Loans are subject to an assessment of impairment at the financial statement date. The
Company mada general provision for loans af rate of 0.75% of total loan balance excluding
lzan balance which had been made specific provision. Specific prevision made for loan s
calculated based on its estimated loss which Is determined by the difference between the
market value of securities used as collaterals for such loan and the kan balancs. Any
increase/dacrease in the balance of provision is recognized in the Inceme staternent under
"Provigion expense for dirminution i vafue end impairment of fnanciel assets, doubiil
recaivaiias and berowing costs of oans"

Accrued interest iz mcorded In the accaunt "Receivables and acoruals from dividend and
interast Income.”

Fair valuve'market value of fnanclal assels
Fair velue/market value of the securities is determined as fallows;

»+ For securifies (except of bonds) listed on Hanoi Stock Exchanga and Ho Chi Minh City
Stock Exchange, thedr markst prices are their closing prices on the nearest trading day
precading the date of the financial statements;

- For unfisted securilies registered for trading on the Unlisted Public Company Market
{("UPCOM), their market value are the average referance price within the last 30
congecutive trading days before the date of the financial statements published by the
Stock Exchangs. In case the securities are not fraded In 30 days before the date of the
fingncial stalements;

» For delistad securities and suspendad frading securities from the sixth day afterward,
their prices are the book value at the report date;

» The market price for uniisted securities and securities unregistered for trading on the
UPCOM is the trading pricas of tha |atast transaction on over-the-countar {"OTC™ market,
based an financlal statements of issuera as al the date of financial stalemeants,
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (eantinued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.5

4.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value/market value of financial assets [continuad)

» For corporate bonds listed and registered for trading, the marke! price is the nearest
transaction price at the Stock Exchange within 10 days preceding the date of preparing
the financial statements. If there are no transactions in 10 days before the date of the
financial statements, thair market prices ars the boak value at the date of preparing the
Binancial statemeanss,

#  For government bonds, their market prices are the boak value at the date of preparing
the financial statements;

»  For seowities which da not have reference price from the ahove sources, the revaluation
is determined based on the financial perfarmance and the baok valuge of securities issuars
as al the assesement date

Reclassification of financial assets

Reclassificalion when selling financial assets other than EVTEL

Whan seling financial assets other than FVTPL, securities companies are regquired to
reclassify those financial assats to financial assets at FYTPL

Reclassification due to change in purpase or abilty to hald

Securities companies are required o raclazsify financial assets o their applicabie calegories
if their purpase ar ability to hold has changed, consequantly:

» MNon-derlvative firancial assets &t FYTPL or financial assels thal are not required to
classify as financial asset at FYTPL at the Initial recagnidion can be classified as loans
and other racewables er as cash and cash equivalents if the reguiremanis are met. The
gains or ksses ansing from revaluation of financial assets at FYTPL prior o the
reclassification are not allowed to be reversed,
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a5 &t 31 December 2024 and for the vear than endad

4.7

4.8
4.8.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognrition of finaneial assefs

A financial asset {or, where applicable, part of a group of similar financial assets) s
derecoagnited whean

= The rights o receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

> The Company has transfered Hs fAghts to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withowt material delay to a
third party under a "pass-through® arrangement; and eithar:
The Company has ransferred substantially all the risks and rewards accompanying
with the assel, ar

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the rigks and
rewards accompanying with the esset but has transfarred the right to use the asset

When the Company has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
ertered into a pass-through srrangement and has neither transferred nor redainad
substantiaily all the risks and rewards of the asset nor ransferred control of the assef, the
assel i recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involeement in the asset. In
that case, the Company also recognises an associated ability, The transfermed asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

The continued participation In transferred assets in the form of guarantes will be recognised
gt smaller value between the initial carrying value of the assets and the maximum amount that
the Gompany 15 reguired to pay.

Long-term investments in financial assots

fnveshmants in associates
Investmenis in associales in which the Company has significant influsnce are carred at cost

Distributions fram accumulated net profits of the associales anising subsequent o the date of
gofuisition are recognised in the income statement. Distributions rom sowces other than
from such profits are considered a recovery of Investment and are deducted ta the cost of the
invesimeant

Provision far dimingtion in value of investments in associzies

Frovision of the Invastments & made whan there is raliable evidencs of the diminution in value
of those investments in associates,

Historical cost princioal

The historical cost principad s an accounting princlple in which mvestments are mitially
recognised at cost, then not subsequently adjusted for changes in the investar's share of the
investee’s net assets, The income s@lemant only reflects the investors distributed income
from the investes's accumulated net profits ansing subsequent to the date of scquisiton.

Under the historical cost principal, the investments are initially recognised af cost. The
irvestor only eccounts in #s Income Statement the distribufions from accumulated net profits
arising subsequent 1o the date of acquisition. Distributions from gources ather than from such
profils aré considered a recovery of investment and are deducted lo the cost of the
irvestment
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation E08-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as gt 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4,
.8

4482

4.9

4.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Long-term investments in financial assels (continuad)

investments capital in other entities

Investments in equily instruments of other entities ara initially recognised at cast, including
purchase price and directly attributable scquisition costs,

Provision for loss of invesimants in subsidiaries is made separately for each loss Investment
and is reviewed at the end of the financial year The Company makes provision for
Fvestments in subsidiaries if the investments are losl dua to the subsidiaries’ losses. An
ncrease or decrease in the balance of the provisioning account is charged fo financial
axpansas in the year,

Recognition of mortgaged financial assets

During the year, the Company had mortgaged/pledged financial assets which are used as
collaterals for financial obligations of the Company,

According to the tarms and conditions of the morgage/pledge contracts, during the valid
pernod of the contracis, the Company 15 not allowed to sell fransfer o use the
maortgagedipledged assats under repurchase or swap contracts with any other third party

In case the Company is unable to fulfil s obligations, the mortgages/pledgee is allowed to
use the morgagedpledged assets to satlle the obligations of the Company after a period
gpecified m the mortgage/pledge contrects, since the obligations due date

The montgagedipledged asseis are monitored In the Company's statement of fimancial
pesition in accordance with accounting principles relevant to the assels' classification

Recefvables
Receivables are Inltially recorded at cost and subsequently always presented at cost

Receivables are subact to review for impairment based on their overdus status or estimated
loss arising from undue debis of corporate debtors who have bankruptey of are under
bquidation; or of ingividual dabtore who are miseing, have fled, are prosecuted, detained or
triad by law enforcemeant bodies, are sarving sentences, or is suffering from a serious flness
(with hospital confirmation) ar have deceased, or the debt has been requested for
enforcement but cannot be executed due to the deblor fleeing fram their residence,; the debt
has been litigated but the case resclution has been suspended. The incurred provision
expenses arg recorded in the income statement as "Expenses for alfer sendces”

The provision retes for overdue recelvabias are as follows:

Dvardie period Fravision rate
From over six (08) months to less than ona (01) year 30%
From cne (01) year to lzas than two {02) years S50%
From tea (02) vears to less than thres (03] years T
From three (03) years and shove 100%



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOO-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as 8t 31 December 2024 and for tha year than ended

4,11

4.12

413

4.14

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Fixed assots
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or eccumalated amedisation,

The cost of a fixed asset compnses of its purchase price and @any directly attributable costa of
bringing the tangible fixed asset to werking condition for is intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the camying amount of
the assets and expenditures for mzintenance and repairs are charged to the income
staternent as incurred

When fived assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulbing from their dispoesl (the
differance batween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the
income statement,

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amertisation of tangible fixed essets and intangible fixed assets are
calculated on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Buildirgs and struciures 10 years
Office equipment 03 -10 years
Means of transpor, fransmission 10 years
Sofouare 03 - 10 vears
Leases

VWhether an agreement is determined as & propeny (ease agreemant depends on the nature
of tha agreement &t the beginning: whether the implementation of the agresment depends on
the use of a certain asest and whether the agreement intludes clauses an the use rights of
the aszet.

Rental fee respective to cperating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basks over the term of the lease,

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or
far other purposes, are caried at cost includas costs that are necessary 1o form the assets in
accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as nier assets, commencas when the assets are ready far thair intended uss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conbinued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

#*.
4.15

£ 16

4.97

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses, including short-term prapaid expanses and kong-term prepaid expenses in
the statement of financial position, are amartised over the periad for which the amounts are
paid or the peried in which economic benefits are generated in relation to these expenses.

Borrowings and non-convertible bonds issued

Bomowings and non-convertbla bonds Bsued by the Company are recorded and stated at
cost at the end of the vear.

Payables and accrued expenses
Coverad warrant payahlos

Covered warrants are secunties with collaterals sswed by the Company which gives its holder
the right fo buy &n amount of an underlying security at an exarcise prica of to receive a sum of
money equal to the difference between the price (indax) of the underying securities and the
exarcise price (exercise index), when the farmar is higher than the latter, at the exerciss ime

When covered wamants are issuad, the Company is obligad to record an increase in coverad
warrant payables and manitor the number of authorized cowared warranis that have not baen
cutstanding yet. At the end of the year, the Company revaluates the covered wanranis at fair
value, The decreass in fair value of outstanding covered warrants st fair value in comparison
with previous is recegnized in “Gain from financial assets at FYTPL” (detsil in "Gain from
revaluation of outstanding covered warrant payabie”). The increase in difference arising from
revaluation of cutstanding covered warrants at fair value in comparison with previous s
recognized in "Loss from financial assels af FVYTPL® (defall In “Lass from revaluafion of
outsianding coverad wammam payable™,

The iransaction costs relating to the purchas & and iBsuance of covered wamanis are reoognized
when Incurred 85 purchase costs of financal assets n the income stalement. Profit or loss
resulled from covered warmants when repurchase, upon the maturity of covered warmrants or
when covered warrant s recalled, are recognized under “Gain from oisposal of financis! agsets
ot FVYTPL" or "Loss fram disposal of financial assels at FVTPL' in the income statement

The secunties used as hedging for the covered warmants are moniored by the Company. Al the end
of the year, securties used as hadging for the coversd wamants o revalusted af fir value and the
difierences arieing from revalustion iz recorded like the revaluation of financial assels at FVTPL.
Oifer payables and accrusd Bxpenses

Other payables and accrued expenses are recodgnized for amounts ta be paid in the future for
bonds interest payables, goods and services received, whether or not billed 1o the Company.
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MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as &t 31 Decembser 2024 and for the year then ended
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4.20

FUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Faostampioyrment banafits

Post-employment benafite ars paid to refired employess of the Company by the Social
Insurance Ageancy, which belongs 1o the Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs. The Company
i required to conlribute to these post-employment benefits by peying social insuranca
premium in accordance with curmant legal regulations. Other than that, the Company has no
further obligation relating to post-employment banafits.

Severance nay

The employment penod as the basis for calculation of severance allowance is the tofal actusl
pericd over which the employes has worked for the employer minus the period over which the
employee participates in unemployment insurance and the period ovar which the employer
pays saverance sllowance or redundancy allowance.

Clause 5, Anticle 8 of Decres No, 1452020/ND-CP stiputatas that the salary as the bases for
calculsfion of severance allowance is the average salary of the kast 08 months before the last
employment contract is terminated. In case the last emplaymeant contract is invakdated (the
salary specified in the contract is lower than the regicn-Dased minimum wage or lower than
the zalary specified in the collzctive bargaining agreament], the salary as the basis for
caleulation of severance allowance shall be negotistad by both parties but must not be lower
than the region-based minimum wage of the salary specified in the collective bargaining
agreement

Unempiopment msuEancs

According to Circular No, 280201 5/IND-CP stipulating the implemeantation of canaln provisions
of the Employment Law regarding Unemployment Insurance and Arlicle 57 of the Employment
Law Mo. 38/2013/QH13, the Company is required to contribuie to the unemployment
insurance at the rale of 1% of salary and wage fund of unemployment insurance joiners and
deduct 1% of monthly salary and wags of each employee to contribute 10 the Unempicyment
Insurance Fund.

Foreign currency fransactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's reporting curency of VND are recorded
at the actual transaction exchange retes of commercial banks at transachan dates. At the end
of the year, maonetary batances denominated in foreign currencies are determined as folows:

»  Monetary assets ara translated at buying exchange rate of the commercial bank where
the Campany conducts fransactions regularty;

¥ Monetary labilities are translated at sefling exchange rate of the commercial bank where
the Company conducts fransacticns regularty

All foresgn exchange differances incurred during the year and arisen from the revaluation of
manaiary accounts denominated in foresgn currencias at the end of tha year are taken to the
Ircome statament.

Forward coniract

The Company engages in curmency transactions with service banks (foreign cumency forward
transactions, foresgn currency swaps, efc) for the purpose of hadging and minimizing risks
exchanges rates and future cash flows, Gaindloss arising from the transaction is recognized in
the income statement cn an accrugl basis,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as gt 31 December 2024 and for the year then anded

4.21

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {eontinued)
Revenue recoginilion

Ravenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be relisbly measuied. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of receipts or receivables less trade discount, rebate and sales return. The following
specific recognition crilera must also be met before revenue i recognised:

Ravehus from brokerage senices

When the contract outcome can be refiably measured, revenue is recognizad by reference o
the stage of complation. YWhare the contract outcome cannot be raliably meaaured, revenue
is recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized which are recaverable

Revanue from Frading of securifies

Revenue from trading of securities is determined by the difference between the ssliing price
and the weighted average cost of securilies sold.

Other income

Revenues from irregular activities other than tumover-generating activiies are recorded 1o
other Incomes as stipulated by VAS 14 - "Revenue and ather income”, including: Revenues
from liquidation and sale of fixed assels; fines paid by customers for breach of contract;
collection of insurance compensation; coflection of debt which had been written off and
included in the preceding year expenses; payables recorded as revenua Incressa as their
owners no longer exist; collection of tax amounts which are reduced and reimbursed; and
other revenuas.

interast income

Revanue i recognized on accrual basis (taking inte account the effective yield on the asset)
unless collectability is in doubt

Dividends

Incama is recognized when the Company’'s entitiemant as an investor fo receive the dividends
is established, excapt for stock dividend in which ooly the number of shares is updated.

Dther revenues frorn rendering services

Ywhere the contract outcomes can be reliably measurad, revenue |5 recognised by reference
o the stage of cormpletion.

Whera tha contract cutcome cannct be reliably measured, revenue is recognised only fo the
extent of the expenses recognised which are recoverabla.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

4.22

4,23

4.249

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Borrowing costs

Bommowing ¢osts mclude accrued inferest and other expenses which are directly attibutable
1o the Company's borrowings. Borrowing costs are recorded to the income statement for the
period on an accrual basis.

Cost of securities soid

Tha Compary applies moving weighted average method to calculste cost of proprietany
secuntes sold.

Corparate Income fbax
Currend income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the curment and prior year are measured at the
amount expectad to be recovered from or paid to the taxation autherities. The t=x rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted as at the reporting date.

Cument ineommeé lax is charged or credited to the mcoma statement, except when it relates 1o
items recognized directly to cwnars' aquity, in which case the current income tax &= alsc dealt
with in owners' equity

Currant income fax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is @ legally enforceabls
right for the Company to set off current tax assets against currant tax liabiities and when the
Company Imends o aattie its current tax assets and labildbes on a net basis.

Cheforred income fax

Defarrad income tax i pravided using for tempeorary differences at the reporting date between
the: tax base of assets and liabilifies and thelr camying amounts for financial reporting
purposas,

Deferrad tax liabilties are recognized for all tamable temporary differences, except:

¢ Deferred tax liability arises from the inftial recognition of an assed or Eability in & transaction
that affects neither accounting profil nor tzxable profit (or tax loss) ot the time of the
fransaction;

» Taxable temporary differences assocated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joind ventures fo the extent that the Company can contral the timing of tha
reversal of the temporary difference and 1t is certain that the temperary differance will npt
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductiole temporary differences, carmy forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, 1o the axtent that it is probable that texable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused lax
credits and unused tax losses can be ulilized, except:

» A deferred tax asset anses from the inilial recognition of an assal or a liability n a
transaction that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or tax loss) ab the ime
af the fransaction;

»  All deductible temporary differences arise from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in |oint ventures when it is probable that tha temporary differences will
reverse in the fulure predictable and taxabla profit against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.
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q.24

425

4.26

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueed)
Corporate income fax (continuad)
Defarred imconte fax (conbinued)

The carmying amount of defemmed Income tax assets 15 reviewed at the reparting date and
reduced to a certain extent that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or parl of
the deferred Income tax assets to be recovered. Previously unrecognized defered income
tax assets are re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognized 1o the axtent that it has
becoma probable thal future tacahle profit will allow the deferred tax assels to be recoversd,

Deferred income tax assels and liabilifies are measured al the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the assel is realised, or tha liability is ssttled based on fax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recorded o the income statement, except when & relates fo tems recognized
directly to owners’ equity, in which case the deferred tax is also deall with in owners’ equity,
Daferrad tax assels and [Ebilities are offset when thera s a legally enforceabis right io set off
current tax @ssets against currant tax liabiltes and when they relate to Income taxes levied
by the zame taxable entity and the same taxation authority, the Company intends o setfle its
current tax assets and liabdities on a net basis.

Owners' egquity

Comributed capital from sharmbalders

Contributed capital from stock issuance is recordad in Charter Capital st par value.
Undistributed profi

Undistributed profit comprises of reafised and unrealised undistributed profit.

Unrealised profit during the pericd is the difference between gain and loss arisen from
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL or others through profit and boss in the income
statemant, and the deferred income tax related (o the Increase in revaiuation of FYTEL financial
assets and cthers.

Realized profit dunng the year is the net difference between total revenue and income, and
Il expenses in the income statement of the Company, except for gain or koss recognised in
unrealised profit

Fesenvas

The Company uses annual profits after-lax to sat up funds in accordance with the Resolufion
of the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual Ganaral Meeting,

Profit distribution
Met profit afier corporate incoma 1ax may be distributed to investors after being approved at

the Annual Genaral Mesting of Shareholders and after setting aside reserve funds in
gooordance with e Company's Charter and provisions of Vietnameses law.
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4.27

428

4.29

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Earning per shara

Profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the Company's erdinary shares is the profit or loss
after corporate income tax for the period after adjusting for dividends of preferred shares,
differences afising from the payment of preference shares and similar effecis of prefarrad
shares have been classified as equity.

The number of ordinary shares used to cakoulate basic eamings per share is the weightad
average number of codinary shares oulstanding during the period. The walghted average
number of orcinary shares outstanding for the current pericd and all presentation periods must
be adjusted for events [Except a potential conversian of ordingry shares) that cause 2 change
in the number of ordinary shares outstanding. ordinary shares without any change in capital.

Segment information

A segment Is a distinct identifiable component of the Company that is engaged in providing
refated products or services (business segment) or in praviding products or sarvicas within a
particular ecanomic anvironment [gengraphical division). Each of these segments is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from thoae of the other segments.

The Company's business segmeant is primarily defined based on the services provided to
investors. Managament determines the geographieal sagment of the Company bassed on the
lzcation of the assets.

Related parties

Parties are considered related to the Company if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to conirol the other party or skgnificant influence over the other party in makieg financial and
operating decisions, or when the Company and the other party ars subject to common control
or significant influence. The above stakeholdars can be companies or individuals, including
close rambers of ther famiiea.

Related parties are thosa as defined by the Securities Law, the Enterprise Law, and the
amanded and suppiemanied documants in affect at each penod,

Nil balances
llerms or balances required by Circular No. 21062074/TT-BTC dated 30 December 2014,
Circultar Mo 334/2018/TT-BTC dated 27 December 2016 and Circular No. 114720217 T-BTC

dated 17 December 2021 issued by the Minisiny of Finance that aré nol shown in these
financial staterments indicate nil balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Currency: WND
Encing balance  Beginning Balance
Cash 734,466,660 472 2 667 088,279,037
- (Gash af banks 733,705 141,683 2,667,173 200,668
- Cieaning deposits and payment for
Eacurities ransaction 761518 7E2 815,068,369
Cash equivalents 146, 708,000,000  2,194,000,000,000
- Cash af banks with original mafurity of
o mara than 03 mondhs 146, 709, 000,000 2754, GO0,000, 0
Total B81.175660,472  4,861,968,279,037

6. VALUE AND VOLUME OF TRADING DURING THE YEAR

Velume of trading Vaive of trading

durig the year gring the yesr

{Limit) {Million VIND)

a. Of the Company 3,168.069,430 256,682,470
- Shares 255,151 468 7,821,699

- Bonds 1,909 600,801 280,916,044

= Oiner securities 073,317,183 T845.72T

b. Of the investors 30,091,415,428 1,085,518,9456
- Sharas 27,520,896,714 B02,545. 757

= Bonds 440 17T 189 TO,524 014

- Other securities 2,130,341,525 412,778,175
Total 33,759,484 858 1,382,602,416
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HOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year than anded

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Concepts of financial asasts

Cost

Cost of a financial asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalants paid, disbursed or paryabba
for such financial asset at ds intial recognition, The fransaction costs incurred directly from
the purchase of financial asset might or might nat be included in the cost of the financial asspl
depending on the category that the financizl asset is classified n.

Fair valvedmarke! value

The fir value or market value of a financial asset i the price at which the financisl asset
would b= traded voluntarily batwean knowladgeshle parties on an arm's length basis.

The fair value/market value of securities is determined using the method described in
Nole 4.5

Amorised cost

Amartised cost of a financial nvestment (which & debt instrumant) is tha amount at which the
financial asset iz maasured at intial recognition minus () principal repayments, plus [+) or
minus (-] the cumulative amorisation using the effective interest method of any difference
beteeen that millal amount and the maturity amaount, and minus any reduction for impairment
or un-collectability (if any)

Far presantation purpose, provision for diminution in value or un-collectability of financial
assets is recognised in “Provision for impairment of financial assels and modgage assets™in
the sietement of financial position.

Camying amownt

Camying emount of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset s recognised
in the stalement of financial position. Carrying amount of a financial assat might be recoqnised
at fair value (for FVTPL) or at amortised cost (for HTM investments and lsans), depending on
the category that the financial asset is classified.
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WNDIRECT Securities Corporaticn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
gs at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

FINANCIAL ASSETS (confinued)

Financial assets at fair value threugh profit and foss ["FYTPL")

Listed shares and fund cerificates
WPE

5TB

FPT

Other sharas and fund cartficates
Listed shares used as hedging for covered warrants
YFB

STE

FET

Others

Unlisted shares and fund cedificates
THRE

WMDEFE

WHDOAF

Cther shares and fund certificates
Listed bonds

Unlisted bonds

Certificates of deposit
Total

BOA-CTCK
Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning Balance
Cost Fair value Cost Fair vafus

1,442,424,222 585
448,323,523 360
103,830,420,030

3,740, 757,982
821,129,521,193

1,805,644,954 885
1,249 490,000,000
105,200,000,000
50, 500000, 000
400 454 954 BES
1,985,806,182,773
10,630,536,085,581
6,562,010,718,000

1,438,820196 832 1107 B52,472,120 1,163,426,495 964
418, 203.609 500 455 483 15886, 180 418,827 448,600
121,722, 731,100 2 BO4 116,682 2574 476 651
85 619222 500 B.750,780 858 0,210, 980,587
813,074 633,332 £40,834,378,3560 722 804 602 836
. 127 464,078,913 123,410,809,726
. 45,132,541,880 42 430,080,000
- 31,113,8358,136 28,675,584, 169
. 20,791,958 474 21,066 BT 533
: 20 426, 740 421 20,348 448,004
1,900,049,784,551  1,111,431,641,735  1,162,241,554,895
1,348.490,000 000 450,000,000, 000 450 000 000,000
138,756 022 802 105,200,000, 000 130,141,094, 369
80,331,700,000 £0,500, 000,000 70,037, 500,000
330,472.061,049 BO8 731,841 735 512,063,160, 606
3,987,783,221,122 687,194,811,395 686,121,064,798
10,830,536,085,581 T. 546,985 264 122 7.546955264,122

B,562,010,718,000  6,057,793,148,0B4  6,057,793,148,084

24,526,223 175,904

24,519,200,006,78¢ 16,638,731,416,969 16,729,988,737 590
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinuad}
a3 at 31 December 2024 and for the yaar then ended

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS (cortinued)

7.2 Held-to-maturity investments ["HTM")
Currancy. VND

Ending balance  Beginning Balance

Shart = term held-lo-maturity investmenis
- Term deposits with original lerm of aver 03 months and

remaining term of no more than 12 manths 5 560 973,000,000 7.432,445,000,000
Long — term held-to-maturity investments
- Term deposits with ramaining maturity of more than 12 months - Z01.6%0,000,000
Total {*) 5,660,973,000,000 7.,634,095,000,000

{*) The balance reflects term deposits gt commercial banke with intarest rates ranging from 4.80% p.a. to B.00% p.a. (as of 31 December 2023: from
4.20% pa. o 10.30% p.a)

T3 Loans

Currency. YND
Ending balance Beginning Bafance
Cosl Fair value [7) Cost Fair vaive %)
Receivables from margin activitias 10,148,543,280,584  10,106.402,813,017 9,911,807 420,780 9,868,210,616,361
Advances to investors 196 084 504 633 105,084 604 698 373,084,415,540 373,984 415,540
Total 10,343,627,9685,292  10,304,488,507,715 10,285.791,836,320  10,243,195,131,901

() Tha fair value af loans is measured at cost [ess specific provision for doubtful debts.



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
25 at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then anded

T
7.4

FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Change In market values of financial assets (FVTPL)

Financial szsels

Az at 31 December 2024

Lizted shares and fund cerificates
Unlisted shares and fund certificates
Liztad bonds

Unlisted bonds

Cerificates of deposits

Total

As at 31 Decembar 2023

Listed shares and fund certificates

Listad ehares used a3 hedging for coversd warnrants
Unlisted shares and fund cedificates

Listed bonds

Unfisted bonds

Cartificates of deposits

Total

BOG-CTCK
Currency: VND
Fevaiyalion diferance
Cost Increass Decreass Revaluation value
1,442 424 222 505 43,586 302 383 (47 200,418,418) 1,438 B20 196 532
1,608 644 064 835 B8 275,753,849 (73,B71,034,183) 1,900,049, 784 551
5,985 608,183,773 2,650,756,352 (482 719,003) 3,987, 783.221,122
10,630,535,085,561 - - 10,630,536,085, 581
6,5682,010,718,000 - - B,5562,010,719,000
24,626,222.175,804 114,532,802 584 (121,666,071,602) _ 24.519,200,006,786
1,107,852 472,120 06,761,136,708 [51,187 112,855) 1,153,426 495 084
127,464 078 913 1,456,476,107 15,508,745,384) 123,410,808, 726
1,111,451 641,735 87 534,766,983 {36,724 473 B823) 1,162, 241,854 B3G5

887,194,811,995
7,545,995 264 122
B, 057 793,148,084

(1,073,747,138)

686,121,084,709
7,546,805,264 122
6,057 783 148 084

_'I 6,538,711 416,569

185,751,399,889

{94,484,079,258)

16,720,988,737,590

JE
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WNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad

BOS-CTCK

B. PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND MORTGAGED ASSETS

FProvision for impasment of loans
- Speciic provision
- Ganaral provision

Total

L ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Shor-term

1

2

WU

Receivables from dispesal of linancial assets
Fecaivables and scoruals from dividends
and intarast mgome from financial assels
I which:

- Dividend and interest due to recaive

- Actruals from unoue dividends and

imberest income

Advances to suppliers
Receivables from services provided by lhe
Company
Other recervables
Prowvision for doubtiul receivablas

Long-term

g

Lang-tarm recelvables

Tatal

3r

Cumency: VIND

Ending balance Beginning Ealance
42,139 477,577 42 506,504,419
B0, 148,770,444 75,781,303, 205
122,288,257 021  118,377,907.624
Currency; WND

Ending batance Beginning Bafane:g
1,752,664,385,008 1,085,015918.020
555,540,757 453 22 098,285,742
1,172.704,626,322 916,675,322 490
B5427,412 362 95,427,412 352

1077277213980
31,617,305,015

178,047,781,530

821,150 810128
3.552,779.272

134 656,683,526

7.002,515,600 38840257831
(193.148,601,005)  {27.710,381,241)
e1,716,310,944  90,236,856,880
91,716,310,944 50,236,858 889
1,844 380,605,952 1,178,252,776,909




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
25 at 31 December 2024 and for the year than ended

8.

AGCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (confinued)

Detalls of provision for doubtful receivables:

Trumg Mam Canstructian
Invastmeant Joint Stock Company
Trumg Mam Renewsable Ensrgy

Corporation

Trung Mam Dak Lak 1 Wind
Power Joint Stock Company
BEAW Anti-Virus Soflwane Roint

Stock Company

Othar recaivablas

Total

BOS-CTCK
Cumrency: VND
Beginning balanca During fhe year Ernding balance

Doublful dabfs Proviaion Adhdition Revarsal Provigion Doubiful debis
= 86,602,831, 426 - 86 602,631 4268 229,575.723,008
= = 3,008,848 315 + 43 005,84%3195 85,013,628,630

5 29,400,000,000 - 29 400,000,000 £2 800,000,000
31,562,456, 875  22,083,719.812 - (22,003,719,812) - .
5,618,671428 8,616,671,420 18,522,248,835 - 24108820264 &7 340,000,875
37,179,128,304 27,710,391,241  187,531,929.5T6 (22,083,719,812) 193,143.8601,008 441,728,422 511




VVNDIRECT Securities Carpaoration

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

10,

1.

PREPAID EXPENSES

a. Short-term

Offica renlal expenses

Software expanses

Office renovation and repainng expenses

Other expenses
Total

b. Long-term
Office renovalfion and repainng expenses

Sofiware expensas
Othar expanees

Tools and office supplies expense
Tatal

DEPOSITS, COLLATERALS AND PLEDGES

a, Short-term

Vietnam National Apiculiure
Juint Stock Company (%)
Cithers

Total

b. Long-term
Others

Tatal

BOO-CTCK
Currency; VIND
Enhding balance Beginning balance
3,631,018 600 3,050,355,274
15,229,108,403 6,664,844,0563
3237 811 BA, 714,871
13, 778,150,052 GoF, 050,268
32,570,582 BGG jﬂ.ﬁﬂﬂlﬂu.mﬁ
6,598,352 614 7,748,784, 724
18,575,100 448 5902 257 622
890,485 031 1,582 414,120
1.557 628,205 3.430,882 381
27,630,865,348  19.764,348,847
Currency; VND

Ending belance Baginning balance

80,000,000,000 80,000,000 000
26,245 870,000 16,585.217.160
106,245 970,000 96,585,217, 160
3,104.972,428 3,353,442 428
104,972,428 3,393 442 428

{(*} The interest-free deposit to purchasa real estate for the purpese of establishing the

Company's headguarters, with remaining term not exceading 12 months,

ag



VMDIRECT Securitias Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)

as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then endad

12,

BOB-CTCK

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

Invesimands in associates

« Posl-Telerommunicalion Joinf - Slock
fnsurance Comporalion

- Goidsnn Food Jowat stock Company

Dher long-term investmeants
Total

Currancy: VD

Ending balance Beginning balance
Historcal cost Frovison Fair vaive Historca! cost Frovision Fair vaiug
&14,605 332,000 - 874.505,332,000 836,115,332,000 - B35, 115,332,000
836, 115,332,000 - 835115332000 836715332000 - B36115332000
8,330,000, 000 = T8 380,000,000 - - F
24,158 520,000 _ (4,279, 391,368) 29829128612 36675280000 (3.710.796.873) 32 964483027
848, 663,852,000 (4,220,391 368) 944,434 460,612 872,790,612,000 (3,710,79€,873) B6S,079,815,027
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14.

VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
iCinrancy. YD
Miaans of
Euildings amd framspmart,
siruciures  Office equipment trangmisson Tolal
Cosi
Beginring
balance 22,312 126 483 1B65,1899,077.507 B.460, 180,840 103071 384 030
Additions - 19,774,080,500 - %0,774,080,500
Disposals o - (8,474,1090,670) - _(B474,190,670)
Ending balance 22.312,126,481 1?EHB,DET,S_E - 6,460,180,940 205,271,274, TE0
Accumulated
depreciation
Eeginning
balance 20,915,254 789  110.510,355,023 1,098, 23232 141 444,343 044
Depreciation far
thee year 1.197.318,595 254480 485 %489 B45,018094  31,333,B23,6G38
Disposals = {B487.324,004) - _(BAG7 324.004)
Ending halance 22112,573,384 140,533,537 988 1,684, Td1 326 164,310,842,678
Nat book value
Baginning
balance  1,396,871,604 45688712484 5441457708  52,527.041,886
Ending balance 198,663,009 35965433368 4795435614  40,0960,432,082
Additional information on tangible fixed assets:
Curmency: VND
Ending balance _Beginning Salance
Cost of fangible fized assets which are fully
depraciated but still in use 110,670,076,510 76,207,054 405
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Curency. VNG
Software
Cost
Ezginning balance 1B4,675,758,270
Adiditions 18,118 086,000
Ending balance 182,797,824,279
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning balance 111, 172.787.081
Armartisation for the year 28,406,205 430

Ending balance
et book valug

Beginning balance

Ending balance

Additional Information on intangible fixed assets:

138 668,002,511

53,506,951,198
43,128,821, TEB

Curmency; WYND
Ending batance  Beginning Salance

Cost of intzngibla fixed assets which are fully
amortisad bui still in use

88,171,659,614 BG473,601,114

47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Dacember 2024 and for the year than endad

15,

16.

17.

PAYMENT FOR SETTLEMENT ASSISTANGE FUND

Paymant for Sattlement Assistance Fund represants the amounts depogited al the Vielnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corparation ("V3DCT).

According to prevalling regulstion of VSDC, the Company must deposit an initial amount of
VND 120 million at VSDOC and pay an addion of 0.01% of the total amount of brokerad
securiies in the previous year, but not over YND 2.5 bilion per annum. The meximum
carfribution of each custody 1o the Seiament Assistance Fund i YND 20 billien for custody
members who are the Company with trading securitles and brokerage sctivities,

OTHER LOMNG-TEEM ASSETS

Other lang-term assets reflect the contributions 1o the Derivatives Clearing Fund. According
io the Regulation on the Management and Uize of the Derivatives Clearing Fund issued
together with Decision Mo, 97/Q0-VSD dated 23 March 2017 by the Vietnam Securities
Depasitory and Cleanng Corporation, the minimum Inlbial contribution is 15 billicn YND far
comman clearing members,

Currency WND

Ending balance  Baglnning Balance

Deposits. for derivative compensation fund
= iniial payment 15,000, 000, 000 15,000, 000, JOi

COLLATERALS AND PLEDGED ASSETS
As of 31 December 2024, the Company was pledging the follawing assets for short-term

loans:
Cumrency. UND

Assels Eeginning balance Erding Balance Purposes
Short-term

Shart-tarm
Short-term financial assets  15,048,000,000,000 11,225,000,000,000 boarrowings
Long-term

Shori-tarm
Larg-tarm financial assets - 200,000,000, 000 borrowings
Total 15,048,000,000,000 11,425,000,000,000




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

18. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

BO9-CTCHK

Currancy: VIND
Inferest raio % Addition Repaymai
e Bnnm Heginmig balance dunng the year during the year Erclig balancs
Shart-term berrowings in VHND 2.0% - T4 0,460 404,104,289  125.900,167,900,860 (123.940 407,518,533y 27 436,244,635,318
- Jaint Stock Commercial Bank for Foraloh
Trade of Vietnam 5, 240.000,000,000 11,5080,000,000,000 {17, 944,000, 000, 000 + 576, 000,000,000
- Joint Stock Cammercial Bank far Investment
and Devalopment of Vietnam Z153.000000,000 305474874, 492013 (37,118,774, 432,008 < 582798 555,945
- Vistnam Joint Bftock Commrercial Bank for
industry and Trade. 3075 000000,000 28,542 000,000,000 (27,567,000 000,000} «, 30, D00, 600, 000
= Other credit nafitufians 5455000000000  35,08B.070,500,757 (37, 1711.805063,855) 8,307, 274 434,662
= Qither borowings 4 545 484,164 959 5,272 113, 998.090 (10,196,827, 262,670} 520 770, 198,509
Tatal (%) 20,468 404,164,088 125,908,167 988,660 (123, 540407 598 533 22,436 294 £35 316

{*} During the year, borrowings ara made for the purpose of supplementing working capital.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then anded
BEONDS ISSUED
Curency, VND
Ending halence  Beginning Salance
Short-terrmn bonds issued 400,000, 000,000 400,000,000,000
Long-term bonds ssusd - 400,000,000,000
Total {*) 400,000,000,000 B00,000,000,000

21,

22,

{*) Az of 31 December 2024, the bands issuwsd by the Compary had an onginal term of 36 months
with interast rata of 7.58% p.a. {as of 31 Decemnber 2023; original terms ranging from 24
months o 36 months with interest rates from 10.00% p.a. o 10.20% pa). The balance of
iesued bonds is classified by the Compary as shart-term and long-termn based on the remaining

term of the bonds at the and of the year and the beginning of the year,

PAYABLES FOR SECURITIES TRADING ACTIVITIES

Currancy, WAND
Ending balance  Beginning BMance
Payables io the Stock Exchange and VSDC 14,441,398, 117 18,542,471,080
Fayables for purchase of financial assets () 1,085,034 568 1680 TGT 223,162,087
Outstanding coverad warrant payables - 35,820, 563,000
Tatal 1,113,475 066, 297 821,595,397,087
{*) Payables an TO for securities trading transaction at the and of the year,
STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS
Cumancy: YD
Payable Paud
ffems Baginaing balarice in the yoar in fhe year  Ending balance
Walue added lax an
dontestic sarvices 230,567 BEG 1,148,525 702  {1.243,050 535) 135.2432,738
Corporate incame 1
(idade 30,7} 185,241,321 844 380 520,138.973 Q05240177985 1998212826352
Personal income tax 46, 727,358,573 505,695.009,674 (520,251,413 906 32 170,855 347
Crhar 1anes 1,188.317.830 33 0874877888 (34,821.275062) 4,454 520 A5T
Total 243 387 6EE,722 O35 4ER 552230 (943,256,717 588) 236,582,4041,3T2
SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES
Cumency: VND
Ending balance  Baginning balance
Interest payabie to credit institutions and others 31,474 821,810 80,558 671,435
Interast payable for bonds issued 24,904,111,453 66,410,858 205
Others 2,0165,690,021 3.605,967.949
Total 58,395,523,084 150,675 ,598,250
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VNDIRECT Securities Carporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

23. DEFERRED CORPORATE INCOME TAX PAYABLES

Defered corporate income tax payables arise due to fallawing temporary differences that are
non-deductiblefaxable in terms of corporate income tax:

Currancy: VD
Ending baiance  Beginning Balance

Deferred income tax arsing from revaluation of

fnancial assets at FVTPL which ana

temporarily non-taxabla 11,404,433 B23} 18,261 464,106
Deferred income tax arising from revaluation of

outsianding covered warrant payables which

are termporarity non-taxalie - 085,138 950
Defered Income tax arising fram revaluation of

financial assets at fair value through profit and

loss (FVTPL) before the reclassification fram

FVTPL ko investments in associates 78,620,524 624 78,629,524 624

Total 77,225,080 801 87,846,127 689

24, OWNERS' EQUITY

4.7 Undistributed profit

Curremcy, YD

Ending balance  Heginming Balance

Realised profit after tax 4,183,340,326 462 3038 036,504 504
Unrealised profit 308,900 353,200 361,384 510,760
Total 4,492 240,691,671 4,329.431,015 454
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
ae at 31 December 2024 and for the year (hen endad
24, OWHNERS' EQUITY (continued)
24.2  Changes fn owners' equity
Cumancy: VIVD
Share capital SNare premivm Traasury shares  Unoisfribulied profit Tataf
As at 01 January 2023 12,176,440,080,000 14,508,178 {424,610,588) 2,307,170,08547T6 14.485,200,083,0686
Profit after tax for the yeer = - - 2022250919978 2032 250010078
Transachons in freesury shares z (56,086 638) 424 510,588 = 368,523,950
As gt 31 December 2023 12,176,440,090,000 (41,578,460) - 4,329,421,015454 16,507,819,526,994
Issuance of shares ta increase capital
in the year (%) 2.435,668,320,000 - - - 2,435 868,320,000
Profit after tax for the year . - = 1,718,425,030,212 1,718425030212
Issuance of shares o pay dividende ) BOE, 892 670,000 - - {608,802.670,000) .
Dimdends pald on cash (") - = {761,145, 854,000Q) (761,145,954, 000)
Share issUance costs . (128,500,000} - - (128,500, 000)
Setting up bonus and welfare fund
el £ - - (185,062, 720,885) (185,662,729 995)
As at 31 December 2024 15,222,999 080,000 {171,078 460) - 4492 240,691,671 19,715,068,693,211

") According 1o Rasolution No. 445/2023/NG-DHDCD dated 17 June 2023, of the Annual Ganeral Shereholders Meeting in 2023 regarding the

distribution of profits for the year 2022 and the offering and issuance of shares.

(™) Actording fo Resolution No. 588/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated 28 June 2024, of the Annual General Sharehclders Mesting in 2024 regarding the

payment of cash dividends for the year 2023,

(™" According 1o Decision No, 545-1/2024/Q0-VNDIRECT dated 05 June 2024 of the Chainwoman of the Board of Directors regarding the setting

up of benus and welare fund of 2023,
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {canfinued)

as al 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

24.

OWHNERS' EQUITY (continued)

24.3  Distribution of income fo shareholders or capital contributors

4.4

Undistributed realized profit at the beginning
of the year {as al 01 January 2024 and
01 January Z023)

Realized profit during the year

Profit basis of distributed to shareholders or
capital contributors at the end of the year
W(2={1)H2))

Appropriation made from profit

Seliing up bonus and wetfare fund

Profit distributad io shareholders or capital
confributors or capital contributors during
the year as per Resolution of General
Shareholders Meeling

_TIu-: payables on dividend distributed to
imvestors

Total incame distributed to sharsholders or
capital confributors ([7)=(5)-{8))

Shares

Authorized shares
Shares issued and fully contributed

Crdinary shares

Outstanding shares

Chelinary shares

47

Er:u:f.lir.IE balgnoce

BOS-CTCK

Currency: WND
Beginrning Balance

3,938,036,504 604
1800908177, 763

5,738,945 682 457
(185,582,729,995)
(185,562 725,855}

{781,149,954,000)
(23,265 050 876)
(737 583 094 125)

i,

2,083 025295 138
1,854,111,209,556

3,938,038 504 694

Lirttl: Member of Shares
Ending balance  Begnning Balance

1,522,298,908
1,522,258 908
1,522,200,508

1,522,293,908
1,522 268 906

1,217 844,009
1,217 844 005
1,217, 844,009

1,217.844, 009
1,.217,844,000



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

5.

251

25.2

25.3

254

DISCLOSURE ON OFF-BALANGE SHEET ITEMS

BOS-CTCK

Financial assets listediregistered for trading at Vietnam Securities Deposftory amd

Clearing Corporation (“VSDC") of the Company

Ending balance

Currancy: VND
Beginning balahce

Unrestricted financial assats
Morgaged financial assels

8,204 492 170.000
2.241,180,550,000

7,484,001,110,000
132,160,550,000

Blocked financial assels T0, 000,000,000 -
Financial assets avaiting setllemeant 485 829,000,000 25 883,330,000
Total 10,581,481,720,000 7,622,045,590,000
Non-traded financial assets deposited at VSDC of the Company
Cumrency: WD
Ending balance _ Beginning Dalance
Linrestricted and non-treded financial assels
Financial assets awaiting settiement of the Company
Ciirrency: VMWD
Ending baltance  Beninning balance
Shares and covered warrants OE0,000,000 75,254 440 000
Bonds 1,065 853,400,000 503,040,500,000
Tatal 1,‘“‘55131:1.4”,“'” E?H,Mm.ﬂ'ﬂﬂ'

Financial assets which have not been deposited at VSDC of the Company

Cramency: VND
Ending bafance  Baginning balance
Fund certificates 236,088, 350,000 198, 008 350 000
Shares 1,368, 772,540,000 hE5, 021,280,000
Bonds 3,750,401,000,000 985,718.100.000
Total 5,393,272,890,000 1,747,837,730,000
Financial assets entitled to the rights of the Company
Cumency: VD
Ending batance  Bsginning balance
Dividends in shares, bonus shares, and stock
purchase rights 707,870,000 190,000
Financial assets awaiting settlement of investors
Currency: VND
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Shares, bonds, covered warmranis and fund

48
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the vear than ended

25,

25,7

Z5.8

25,10

25,71

DISCLOSURE ON OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (continued)

Financial assets which have nof been deposfted at VDT of invesiors

Fund cerificates

Shares
Bonds

Total

Financial assets entitied to the rights of investors

Stock dividends, bonus shares, and stock
purchase rights

Investors’ deposits

Invastors’ depasiis for securnites rading

a'n:trmtma mansged by the Company
Domestc investors' deposils for securilies
trading activities managed by the
Company

- Foveign imwesiors” deposils for securties
traditny activilies maraged by the
Company

Investars' escrow deposits at WSDC

Investara’ synthesizing deposits for securitias

trading actvities

Total

Depasits of securities issuers

Deposits for dividends, bond principals and
interes| payments of securities issuers

Investor payables of the Company

Payables to investors - investors' deposits for

sacurities frading activities managed by the

Company

- Payables o domestic inveslors

- Payables fo foreign investors

- Payables fo invastors’ ascrow deposits at
P2

Total

161,281 613,760
1,024,688, 500,623

BOS-CTCK

Cirency: WD

Ending balance  Bagmning bafance
378 BBE 451,000 283,631,835,500
35974 804,770,000 35,845,654, 770,000
198,895 000,000 BO0, 704,000 000
36,553,368,201,000  37,744,590,705,500
Cumency. VND

Ending balance _ Beginning balance
195,075,560 000 202 234,500,000
Curmramcy: VND

Ending balahce  Begirining balance
4,163,893,.199,215 4,335 470,285,643
2800323 368 484 3,550,284, 405 465
363,550 830, BE{ 776,185 790,178

238,571,005,977
1,782,222 781 362

5409,863,213,008  6,J66,265,072,982
Currency: VYhD

Ending balance Baginning balance
181,878,233 472,311,850
Currency: YD

Ending balance _ Baginning baiance
5412662 315436  6,360.414.202 786
o ROV 820,970,625 5.351,658 416 637
363 559 830,851 776,185 790,178

151,281, 613,760

238,571,095,977

5,412 ,662,315,436

6,368,414,202 786




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year than ended

25,

DISCLOSURE ON OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS {(continused)

25,12 Dividend, bond principal and interest payables

Dridend, bond principal and intarest payables

2513 Payables of investors for services provided by the Company

2514

Payables for securities brokerage fee and
trading fee

Payables of investors for margin loans

Fayables for margin activities

Payablas for margin loan principals (Nele 7.3)
Payables for margin joan principals of
domeslic imestars

Payables for margin loan Interast

- Payables for margin loan inferests of
dovne skic inveslors

Fayables for principals of advances to

investars (Nots 7.3

- Payables for principals of advarnces o
dormestic fmvasiors

- Payabies for principals of advances fo
foraign investars

Total

BUg-CTCK

Cumencys VWD

Eirging balarce  Beginning bafance
191,878,233 472,311,850
Currency: VIND

Ending halance  Beginning balance
117173917 864 880 647
Currency: VND

Ending balanca  Baginning balance

10,533,5568,678,399
10,148,543, 290,504

10,748 543, 280 594
386,015,287 808

366, (115,287,805

195,084,694,598
105 0871 465,423
3,220,275

10,128,927,380,534
8,211,807 420,780

8.911,807,420. 780
217,118,950,754

217,116,059, 754

373,064,415,540

373,112, 680,291
&71,53524%

10,728,643,273,007

10,502 511,796,074
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad
GAIN/LOSS) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS
Gain/loss) from disposal of financial asseis at FVTPL
Average Wiigltad average cosl Gaindloss) fram Gainioss) from
Sedimg ai five end of disposal af tha dizposal af tha
Guantily prica Procesds frarsaction date clmen pear RVIOLS Pear
Mo,  Fimaneis! sasels Unit YO umit VIND L0 l.r'H.L'.: AID
1 GAIN
i Listed sharss 6B 624,086 24,795 2,390 262,068,250 2,103,008 481 440 197, 163,585,801 TH,6E6E, 073, 056
2 Unisted sharas 60,011 12,664 1.180,085,800 1,152 212,284 27 873556 267,809,000
a Listed bonds AER0634Z0 108357 A8 875,950,053, BR8 35,780,348,860, 451 85,571,183, 438 163,041,082 125
4 LnEsted bonds and cerificates
of daposn 211,748,128 S0OSEERE 107,025 5380741,083 108,806,287 086528  1.220,251 818435 1,702,015.207.833
] Imdex fubwes contracts s - = - B, 500,740,000 40,400 240,000
i Listed wamants ZE2 R 3] BER 251,753,066,400 (5,682 811,564 53929 725,154 e 10,404,047 000
Total gain __ 898,561,812 146, 444,794,206,302  144.578,709,421,246  1,640.445,035,364  7,004,804,454,784
i LOSS
1 Listzd shares 55352930 20,631 1,490, 716,423,350 1,577 178, 418 808 (56,452 993, 258) (23,684 433, 352)
2 Linlisted shares 4 256 074 12,042 51,122,574, 200 137 B48,180,000 (86,725 665, 800) (274 888 500)
3 Listed bonds 303 EE3.208 115403 A5 355,413 644 463 48 073, 700,308,735 [TE,288 664, 2T {137.151,545,018)
4  Lnlisted bonds and certificates
of deposil 50,245,044 170058 B, 709,478,035,7M 8,813,493 408 207 {103,937 373,476} (348,427 524 461)
5 Index fitures condracts - . - - (54,587 G50, 000 (26, 204,074,000)
6 Listed waranis 258,423,500 {804 489,432,417,000 445482317600 (43,050,000,409) (5,554,873,300)
Total loss T6T, 541,452 55,736, 161,034, Tdd 57,047 623,632,144 (453,950 446, 204] (541,387,737, 633)
Todal 1,586,103,264 203, 180, 955,301,046  202,024,333,0563,394 1,188 484,589,160 1,553,406 717 451
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOE-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
asat 31 December 2024 and for the yaar then endad

26, GAINNLOSS) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
26.2 Galniloss) from revaluation of financial assets

Currancy: WND
Fevalvalion Raovealuation Met diffe rence
i — differance as &t difference &5 at the adjusted in the
MNa.  Financial assels Cost Fairvalue the end of the vear beginning of the year  sccounting year
FVTPL
1 Lish_sd shares and fund
certificates 1,442 424 222 855 1,438,820, 196,532 (3.604,026,033) 45 574,023 844 (49,178 045,877
2 Listed shares used as hedging
for pu'-rare:l warrants - - - (4.053,266.187) 4,053,265 187
3 Unlisted shares and fund
ceriificates 1,805 544 064 885  1,900,049,784 551 (5,585 180,334) 50,810,212,070  (58,405,493,404)
4 Listed bonds 3,085 606,183,773 3,887.7A3,221 122 2477 037 349 (1,073,747 198) 3,250,784 645
5 Linlisted bonds 10,830,536,085 581 10,8630,536,085 581 : - E
{i] Certificates of daposit &, 562,010,718,000 E,EEE.DiEI,?H},ﬂ{lE - - i
Total 24,526,222,175,804 24,518 200,008 788 (7,022,169,108) 91,257,320,531 (98,279,489 ,639)

&2



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOI-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANC AL STATENMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then andead

28,  GAIN/LOSS) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
26.3  Dividend, interest income from finanicial assets at FYTPL, HTM, loans and recelvables

Currency: VD

; Current yesr Previows year

From financial assats &t FVTPL 414,018 B46 215 645 6T7 855 B9
From financial assats at HTM 421 441,708 902 505,969,797 968
From loans and receivables 1,254,855,005,185 1,154,085 633,047
Tatal 2,080,315,658,303  2,205,753,266,907

Z7. PROVISION EXFENSE FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE AND IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS, DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES AND BORROWING COSTS OF LOANS

Currency: VIND
Current year Prewious ear

Provision expensal{raversal) for impairmant
of loans 2910348387 (111,002 961,418)

Provision expenses for  uncollectible
raceivables related to interest from fngneial
assels and receivables 127 410,786,857 22,093,719,812

Total 130,321,116,264 (68,909 241,608)
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contnued)

as at 31 December 2034 and for the year then endad

OPERATING EXPENSES

Expensas for proprietary trading

Expenseas for brokerage services

Expenses for undenwriting and ssuance
agency services

Expensas for securities mvestmant advisory
SEMVIGES

Expenses for securities cuslodian sendces
Expenses for other financial advisory sernvices

Expenses for other services
Total

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES BY TYPES

Expenses for secuntias brokerage activities
Expense for securties cusiodian senicas
Salary and allowances

Expense for office supplies

Expense for tools and supplies

Depreciation and amortization exXpenses
External services expansas

Cther expensas

Expenses for provision and seftlerment of
devalisation of bad debls relating o securities
EErvices provided

Total

BOS-CTOK

Currency; YND

Current year Frevious aar
51,369,156, 101 a4, 327 808,913

468,171,485 937

615,484 378,512

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES OF THE COMPANY

Salary and allowances
Expensea for office rental expense
Expensze for office supplies

Expense for togls and supplies
Depreclation and amortization expenses

Esternal service expenses
Otfhar expenses

Total

9,.043.508 778 8,264 882 221
480.280,308 536,415, 223
30,514,060,783 28,812 B8, 357
31,537,598,000 25,302 442, 785
139.401,770.807 74,523,825,815
710,537 862,714 T87,.262,642 806
Currency: WVIND

Currarnd year Praviaus pesr
316,264 120,175 4489 537,803 665
30,006 492,131 28.812,838,357
240,947 533 522 224 088,237 616
165,227,824 186,901,112
1,411,888 880 3490, 794 633
339,660,201 858415 B21
5,280 787 810 £.850,529.491
76,000,881,252 T1626,971,212
60,921,162, 709 -
730,537,862,714 TET 262 542 806
Curraney: WND

Current year Frevious Jear
TE,0M0.921, 214 171,758,324, 764
§0,840,875,014 60,224 042 351
485,785,450 380,543 553
2,475,393.572 4 572 TEhH BER
§5,490, 388 BET 44,435 500, 7486
261,850,840,878 148,275 711,062
44 350,000 19,726,000
453,311,535,893 430,067,613,400




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

BOS-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

30,
301

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax (“CIT)

The tax returns filed by the Company are subject lo examination by the tax authorities. As tha
application of tax laws and regulations is susceptinle to varying interpretations, the amounis
reparted in the financial statements could changa later upon final determination by the tax
authorties.

The current tax payebles are based on taxable profit of the current year. The taxable prefit of
the Company diffars fram lhe profit 35 reported in the income statement becausa it excludes
itarms of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are not taxable or deduciible The Company's cument tax payables are calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the accounting year, The Company B
required to fullll s corporate incone tax obligation with the currert tax rate of 20% on the

total taxable profit sccording to Clreular No. 7TA2014TT-BTC dated 02 August 2014,

The estimated curren! carporate income tax | represented in the table below:

Profit before tax
Adjustmernts to accounting profit

Increases
- Increases In revaluabion of covared warrarmt
payables
- Dacreazas i revaloation af FYTRL
- Prowsian for impainment of faghs
- Nan-daductible fax expanses

Decregses
- Income from tax exempled sctivities -
diviciends
- Increaszes in revaluation of FYTPL
- Revarsal of loan provisions
- Oecreases in revaluafion of covered warrant

payables
Estimated current taxable income
Corporate income tax rate
Estimated CIT expenses

CIT payabe &t the beginming of the year
Adjustmant for tax reduction from price yaar
CIT paid in the year

CIT payable st the end of the year

&5

Currency; VIND

Curren! year Previous pear
2,088.524,132,297 2482342451973
15,165,553,942  (349,1471,138,775)
814,037,317.987 856,810, 788,712

54,671,174 200 8,812 195,800
762,023 183 853 043,607,842,876
2,910,349, 367 -
4,432 610,751 4 290 748,036
(79&,E71,764,045) {1,305 851 006 487}
(95,282 590,625) (32,254,288 365
(653 T43,684,020) (7,148 956,788, 104
(111,002 967, 418)

(49,845,479,400)  (13,737,800,600)
2,103,489,686,239  2,133,201,312,198
205 20%
420,697,937 248 426,640,262 440
185,241,321 844 127 095,682, 2680

(30,177 ,798,275)
{385,540,177,085)

(8,583,858,051)
(349 511,954, 805)

198,821,282,832

195,241,321,844




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TD THE FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the y=aar then ended

0.
an.2

3.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (contimued)
Dafeyrad corporste income tax ("CITY)
Movement of defarmed CIT during the year is as folows:

Cumency; VINDY
Currenf year Previous year
Deferred corporate income tax
Eeginning balancs o7 646,127,689 65.811,200,083
Deferred CIT arising from the revalustion of financial
esse=ta 8t FWYTPRL (12,655 697 528) {37,658, 735 978)
Deferred CIT ersing from  the revaluation  of
cutstanding coverad warrants (965,138 560) BE5, 138 860
Deferred CIT arising from reclassification of financial
assats af fair value through profit 2nd loss (FVTPL) o
investmeants In assodates - ¥B,E20.524 624
Ending balance 77,235 060,801 97,848,127 689

The Company recognized the deferred income tax expenses in the income stetement for the year
then ended 31 Decemnber 2024 and 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Cewmency: WND
Cumrent pear Prévious year
Deferred CIT income arising from the revaluation of
fimancial assets al FYTPL (19,655,697 928)  (37,558.725,8748)
Defarred CIT expanseiincames) afising from the
revalustion of autstanding covered warranis (965 130_860) 865,138, 960
Deferred GIT expense arising from reclassification of
financial assels at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL} to investmants In associates . - 78,620,524 624

EARMNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share {"EPS") is calouiated by dividing the net prefit after tax atiributable to
crdinary sharehclders of the Company by the weighted average number of oufstanding
ordinary shares issue during the vear. After-tax profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company for the year end at 31 December 2024 is calculated as the after-tax profit after
daduction for selting up nan-sharehciders’ reservas according to the actual setting up ratic of
2024, For the purpose of preparing the financial stalements, other comprehansive income
has nof yet been included in the net profit after tax to calculate the samings per share ndicator
since there is no defailed guidance.

Previouis

Currant year rﬂmﬁ
Met prodit after tax dsiributad © ong@nary shareholders
—WND 1,718, 425030212 2,022,250,919,978
Decrepse edjustments for setling up bonus and
wielfare fund —WHD - [155,562,779 995)
Met profit after tax allocated to common sharsholders
far calculation of earnings per share — VHND 1. 718425030212 1,035 608,188 883
Wedghted average number of ordinasy sheres for
calculation of gamings par share — Share 1,522,299 808 1,522 294 908
Earnings par share = WADIShare () 1,124 1,207

(") According to the guidance in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 30 — Eamings per
share, If the number of ordinary shares outstanding ncreases dus to capitalization,
issuance of bonus shares, spiit shares, or decreases due to compounding shares, the
Company retrospectively adjusts "Basic eamings per share” for all reporting perods
Accordingly, the weighled average number of crdinery shares outstanding in 2023 is
adjusted for the number of ordinary sharas Issued 1o pay dividands to existing sharehoiders
in 2024,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
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321

OTHER INFORMATION

Transactions with related partfes

List of related parties incurred significant transactions and balances with the Company and
relationship of such related parties with Company are as follows:

Rafalad parliss Rl

Beard of Direclors, Sigreficant influence owsr fhe Company
Managsment,

Board of Supervision

Galdsun Food Joint Stock  Assceiats

Company

Post - Telecomerumnicalion

Joind - Slock Insurance
Comporabon

|.P.A Securiiea
Inwvestment Fund
Managemend Limited
Company

LEA Investment Group

JJuint Stock Company

Bac Ha Enargy Joirt
Stock Company

IFAN LIFE Mndfulness
Lifestyle Joinl Stock
Cormpany

Wietriarn Matiomnal
Apiculture Joint Shock
Comparny

Financial Softwans
Sciulion Joint Siock
Ciompany

Trung Mam Ranewsbie
Enenpy Corpacalion
CSTATION Joint Siock
Compsany

[PAF Investment Join
Siock Compary?

WHD Active Fund
(VNDAF)

IF# Member Fund
(IPAMF]

Associaie

Chalrwoman of the Cormpany is Chainsoman of the refated party

Chial Gowemance Officer of the Company &= Standing Deputy General Directar
curm Chisf Govemance Officer, respansible for the Company's adminisration and
authorized for infarmalion declosure of the related party

Charwoman of e Company |3 Chelrworman, General Direcior and legal
represantative of the relaled pafy

Charwarman of the Campany i= Member of the Board of Direcloes (fBOD") of the
related party

Vice Chamman cum Head of Infemal Audit Cepariment of the Company is
Genaral Deeetor and legal represeniatee of the related party

Standirg Vice Chairman of e Comgany g Chainman and legal reprecentative of
e ralated pasty

b=rriber of BOD cum General Diracior of the Comgany is Member of BOG of tha
related party

Sharnsholdar pwne mone fan 10% of the voiing shares of the Company

Wice Chairman cum Head of intamal Audt Dapadment of the Company ls Chiel
Exgrubive Oificer of the related party

Standing Vice Chairman of the Company i@ Chaiman and lesal representative of
the retated party

Charwomean of the Company = Chairvoman and legel repressnialive of tha

relatad panty

Yie Chairman cum Head of intemal Audit Depastment of the Company (s
Diractor cum Member of 800 and legal reprasantalive of the retated party
Chief Governance: Oficer of the Company B Member of BOD of the related pary

Vipe Charman cum Head of Internal Audit Desartment of the Comgany s
Chairman cum Benearal Cireclor and begal representative af the relatsd party

Head of Boand of Supervision of the Compainy s Chisf Accoumtant of the related

jparty
Chiel Govemansa Cfficar of the Compary |s Memberof BOD of the releled parly
Chaiwoman of the Comgany i3 Head of Board of Members ard [ecsl

repiesentalive of relaksd party
Chief Governance Officer of the Company is Direclor cum Member of Boad of
Mombers and legel represematve of rmiated party

The Company owns more than 10% cacital ecenlribution of the related party
The Comipany owits more than 10% capital contribution of the related party

Chalrwoman of B2 Gompany is Chairsoman and legal repiesgniative of the
retated party

Chiaf Govemance Ciicer of the Company s General Directer of thie related party
Chisf Govemance Officer of the Company is Member of the Board of
Reprasentatives of W Fund

The number of Tupgd cedifisates hald by Be Company acesurts for mors fhan
507 of ihe total outstanding fund cedificatas

T
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32
32.1

OTHER INFORMATION (confirmusd)

Transactions with refatod parties {continuesd)

BOS-CTCK

Significart fransacions with refated parfies for the year ended 31 December 2024 are a3 follons:

Fevenue from sale of goods and rendering of
services

| P.A Sacurities Investment Fund Managemant
Limnited Company
LR A Invasiment Group Joint Stock Company

Post - Telecammunication Joing - Stock Insurance
Corporation

Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company
Goldzun Food Jeint Stock Company
Vietnam National Aplculiure Joint Stock Company

Purchaze of goods and services

LP.A Investment Group Joint Stock Company
DETATION Jeoint Stock Compary

IP& Management Consultant Company Limited
Pest - Telacommunication Joirl - Stock Insurance
Corporafion

Financial Software Sclution Joinl Stock Company

IPAM LIFE Mindfulness Lifestyle Joint Stock
Company

I.P.A Securities Investment Fund Management
Limited Compary

Viatnam Mational Apiculture Joink Etock Company
Gaoldsun Food Joint Stock Company

intarest from securities transaction depesit and
other loans
Financial Software Solution Jeint Stock Company

Post - Telecommunication Joint - Stock Insurance
Carporation

Goldsun Food Joird Stock Company

[PA Invesiment Group Jaint Stock Company
B Ha Energy Joint Stock Company
DSTATION Joint Stack Company

1.F A Securtties nvesiment Fund Managemen!
Limited Compary

Wietnam Mational Apiculture Joint Stock Company

Coupon inferest received during the year
I P A Investment Group Joint Stock Company
Bac Ha Energy Jeint Siock Company

58

Cumancy: VD
Crrmant yesr Previous yedr
2,722 462,016 2,031,134, 428
1,202 350 516 675 528 603
1,128 685,887 864,067,730
130 468 720 144,535 805
66,056,291 260,000,000
B6.00C,000
BSO, B2

G4, 043,004,680 42,250,572 526
28 574, 582 017 28 102,189,221
11,157, 194 608 =
8,138,238, 160 -
8,780,180 444 5,103.850,778
5475032 2484 T.317.784,378
3,050,386 3866 200,057 291
636,702,474 456,710,560
150,000,000 360,000,000
38,358,308 -
B,077,305,308 1,273,026,6E8
2, T12.078,003 364, D4 00g
2,148,658, 743 20,867 2#5
112, 1686452 -
56,723 466 £0 198,541
22,957,700 485 820 209
12,850,203 =
12,074,083 &40,145

1 ESHE 350,851,543

288, 208,707,911 94,555 820,513
227,308 681,094 4T, 232 3TE,000
B 000,026,817 47,423 845,613
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Jd OTHER INFORMATION [continuad)

321  Tranzactions with related parties (continued)

BOS-CTCK

Significant transactons with related paries for the year anded 31 December 2024 are as follows.

Transfer of investmant

1P A Imvesiment Group Joint Stock Compary

Investmant in other companies

Trung Mam Renewable Energy Corporation

Cash dividends paid to shareholders

IL.P.& Investment Group Jeint Stock Comparry

s, Pham Minh Huomng

Capital contribution recelved

I.P& Inwestmeant Group Joinl Stock Company

Me. Pham Minh Huang

Purchases of cefificates of deposit, term

deposits contracts

I.P.A Investmant Group Joint Stock Company

Post - Telecommunication Joint - Stock [nsurance

G poration
Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company
DSTATION Joird Stock Campany

Vietnarm Mational Apiculiure Joint Stock Company

Transfers of carlificates of deposit, term

deposits contracts

LP.A Intvestrnent Group Joint Stock Company

Past - Telscommunication Joint - Stock Insurancs

Corporation
Baz Ha Energy Jeint Stock Company

Vietnam Naticnal Apiculture Joint Stock Company

LETATION Joint Siock Company

Principal of loans received during the year

Fmnancial Software Solulion Joint Stock Company

DETATION Joint Stock Company

Frincipal of loans repaid during the year
Finaneial Saftwars Salution Joint Btock Company

DSTATION Jolnd Stock Company

29

Currant year

Cumaney: VND

£99,490,000,000
£39,430,000,000

217,987,314, 200

196,659,238 500
21,328 075,700

704,151,500,000
628,308, 560,000
71.841,540,000

9,274,652 258,382
B,577,043,230,110

1,B45,665,000,000
840,387,154, 160
5,574,548 462

4 82 328250

7,093,218,738,91%
9,347 181,802,508

1,765.258,651,000
B65.7083.5%1,620
8.181,7346,490

5 508,847,400

134,547,798,939
126,977,794 539
7 670,000,000
77,827,600,430

73,757,600 430
#,170,000,000

165,000,000,000
165,000.000,000

450,000,000,000
450,000,000,000

818,447 B60, 208
708,717, 850,208

211,730,000,000
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended
32, OTHER INFORMATION (cortinued)
32,7 Transactions with relaled parties [continuesd)
Significant balancas with ralated parties 22 2t 31 December 2024 ane as foflons:
Currency: VIND
Ending halance Opening bafance
Shortterm trade receivables B6.082,740,938 BE,073,050,315
Trung Mam Renesable Energy Corporation 86,013 502,630 BE,013,698,630
IL.P A Securites Investrmant Fund Management
Lirnited Company 60,042 308 64,351 605
Short-term trade payables 1,880,045 301 756,901,305
IFA Managemeni Gonsultant Company Limited 1,138,284 240 2
Financhal Software Solution Joint Stock Company 386 247 500
Post - Telecommunication Joint - Stock Insurancs
Corporation 305,078,165 T03,367 802
LP.A Securnities Investment Fund Management
Uimited Company 48 233 404 48,054 638
IPAM LIFE Mindfulness Lifesiyvle Joint Stocx
Company 1,101,792 7478075
Other short-term receivables 186,510,000 41,241 378
DETATION Joind Stock Campany 166,510,000
Fasl - Telecommunication Jolnt - Stock Insurance
Corporation 41,241,370
Advances to suppliers 200,000,000 200,000,000
IPA Managemant Consultant Company Limited 200,000,000 300,000,000
Other short-term payables - Deposits 50,081,170,587
Financial Software Salution Joint Stock Compary - 48 260, 238 570
LPA Investrmeant Group Joint Siock Company - 130,832 417
Shor-term loans B&,720,108 6509 .
Financial Software Salution Joint Stock Company 53,220,198 509 =
DETATION Jeint Stock Company 3,500,000,000 -
Par value of hands held for sales 1,376.B78,200,000 518 316,000, 000
L.F.A Investment Group Joint Stock Cormpany 1,080 878,200,000 ABT BOE 700,000
Bac Ha Energy Joint Slock Company 325,000,004, 000 20,577, 300,000
Par value of shares held for sales 466,000,000 486,000,000
[.F.A Investment Group Joint Stock Company 486,000,000 486,000,000
Deposits, collaterals and pledges 82, 166,000,000 B0,E500,000,000
Vietnam MNational Aplcuiure Joint Stock Compary 80,000,000,000 80,000,000,000
DETATICN Joirt Stock Company BES 000,000 -
I.F.& Investment Group Joint Stock Company 200,003,000 00,000,000
IFA Management Cansultant Company Limited 500,000,000 .
Other long-term Investments 15,150,000,000 16, 150,0:0:0,000
IPAF Investmant Joirt Stock Company 15,150,000,000 15,930,000,000
Ending balance _ Opening baiance
Fumnd Mumberof fund  Number of sifetanding Hofding Neumbwer of fumd
certificates cefdificales heid fund certifoatas raflo {4) certificates held
VMHDAF 5,000,000 16,0658 637 3 12%

IFAMF 4,000,000

b, 000,000 B0.00%

&,000,0:000
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
83 et 31 Decembar 2024 and for the year then ended

32.
J2.1

OTHER INFORMATION {continued )

Transactions with related parties {confinued)

Orher transactions with related parties

BOS-CTCK

Salary, bonus, remuneration for members of Board of Direclors, Board of Supervision, the Management and other management members

Cumency. VND
Current year Fravious year

Full name Titia Balary and bonus Remuneration Salary and bonus Femuneratian
s, Pham Minh Huong Chainwoman 4, TH2 400 Bos 192,000,000 4,004,500,000 192,000,000
fdr, Nguyen Vu Lang General Director cem Member of

the Board of Directors 10,848 423,073 182,000,000 7,418,600,000 192,000,000
fr. Blai Huw Cat Vice Chalrman 919,500,000 162,000,000 1,165,642 B57 102,000,000
Mr. Wu Hign Standing Vice Chairman cum

Member of the Board of Directors - 182,000,000 - 182,000,000
Mr. Vu Viet Anh Indapendent Member of the Board

af Directors 182,000, 000 - 182, 000,000
Board of Supervision Head of the Superisory Board and

Members of the Supervisory Board . 350,000,000 . 380,000,000
Othar management membars 7,B4A0.59B7 182 L B,555 500,000 =
Total 24,388 .410,251 1,320,000,000 21,185,142 B5F  1,320,000,000

e, W A D

&1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

32.
J2.2

OTHER INFORMATION (zontinued)

Segment information

Segment information by business lines

B ruharage and
___customer services

Financial year ended
31 December 2024
1. Matincome from securities

Proprisfary trading

Trassury

Others

2, T70,467,597,084

1,782,873 187,782

423,338,683 687

53.512,141,958

§2,123,321,969

181,440 181,710

BOS-CTCK

Currency: VHD

Total

5,348 912,808,758

2,803 815,607,108

trading activitiss 2,072,983,295 708
2. Directly altibutable

BHpEnsEs 766,590 125 658
Allocated operating
profit{loss) before tax 1,307,393,170,060

3 Depreciation, amortisation
and wnalocated expenses
4. Loss from other operaling
aclivities -

175,681,811,342

977,694,409,302
234,792 554,178

-

369,426,542,039
35,877, 254,440

{109,316,828,741)
6,958,815.933

31,481,523 450

2,545,097,291,550
453,311,535 803

3,451,623 450

Operating profiti{loss) before
tax 1,131 ,T11,253ITW

T42,801,855,124

333,549,287,599

(119,738.269,134) _2,088.324132, 297

Balance as at 31 Decambar 2024
1, Allocabed assels

10,641,562 169 525
2, Unaliocated assets i

25,730,172,758,642

6.553,720,112,527

1,062,447,020,316
306,874 611,461

43 987,902,061,010
308,874,611,467

Total assets 10,641,562,163,525

25,730,172,758,642

6,553,720,112,527

1,368 321,631,777

44,204, 776,672,471

1. Segment labilities
2. LUnallpcated abitos

Tatal llabilities

14,441 363 117

1,120,954,391,205

22 ,8592,823,568,379

78 B29 524 624

24,106,640 852,325

i - 473,059,096.935  473,050,096,835
14,441,398,117  1,120,954,391,205 22,802,523,566,37%  551,688,621,550 24,579,707,979.260

o T

62

L
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year than ended

32
32.2

OTHER INFORMATION (continuad)
Segment information (continued)

Sagment information by business lines [confinuesd)

EBrokarage and
customer senices

FPreprietany frading

Treasury

Others

BOB-CTCK

Currency: VND

Todal

Financial year ended
31 Decoamber 2023

1. Met incoma from securities
frading aclivities
2. Directly attributable expanses

2,021,115,945 665

3,803,176.087,380

505,989, 797, 958

271,876,248,038

B,602, 161,980 251

Allocated operating profit before
Lixes

3 Depraciation, amortisation
and unatiocated expenses

4. Loss from other operating
aclivilies

Operating profit before tax

1.004 657 720085 2429828 087 222 118,686,230,321 128 856,650,157  3,683,028,737 786
1,016,458, 225,780 1,373,348 900,158 386,303,517,647  143,022,597,881  2,919,133,242 466
131,656,344 433 247 740 561,533 32,960,3858,653 17,710,328 781 430,067 613,400

- - - 8,723,177,063 B,723.177,083

884 801 BB2 347 1,125,608, 348,625 353,343,128,994 118,589,002,007  2,482,342,451,573

Balance as at 31 December 2023

1. Alocated assets
2 Unallocated essals

10,285,791,836,320

17,839,522,277,087

12.496,083,279.037

1,320,692 778,822

40,421,307 302 444
1,320,602 778 622

Tatal assets

10,285,791,836,320

17,638,622,277,087

12,496,083,279,037

1,320,692,778,822

41,742,090,171, 386

1. Segment Fablliti=s
2. Unafocatad liabilities

AZ1 KOS 397 087

=

23,700,498, 275,379

622 178,671 806

24.612,050.872 465
BE2,179,971,908

Total liabilities

821,585,387,087

23,780,485 275,379

822,179,971,806

25,234 270,644,372

s

B3

= o T omsVEn
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3z,
323

d2.4

32.5

OTHER INFORMATION {confinued)
Operating lease commitments

The Company leasas offica under operating lease arangements. As at 31 Decambar 2024,
the committed future rental payments undar tha operating lease agreements are as follows:

Currancy: WIND

Ending balance  Beginning Balance

Less than 01 year 222 056,800 02 400,000
From 01 — less than 05 years B9,608, 796 800 72.716,733,001
From 0 years 112,343,734 123 130.924,786,703
Total 172,174,587 723 203,733,915,704

Commitments relating to margin lending service

The Company signed margin lending contracis with investors to facilitate securities
trading activities of Invesiors.

Purpozes and policies of financial risk management

The Company's financial labilibes comprise mostly fabilities and borrowings, payabies to
supplers and other payebles. Tha main purpose of these financial fabilifies is o fnance the
Company's operations. The Company has loans, frade and other receivables, cash and short-
term deposits that arise diectly from ils operations. The Company does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments at the end of the vear,

The Company s exposad to market risk, credit risk and Bquidity fsk.

Risk management is integral fo the whole business of the Company. The Company has a
sysiem of controls In place to maintain an acceplable balance betwean thie cost arizen fram
risks and the cost of managing the risks, Management continually monitors the Company's
rsk management process o ensure that an appropriste balance between risk and controd is
achieved.

Management reviews and agress policies for monitoring each of these risks which are
summarized as below:

Market risk

Market nisk is the risk that the fasr value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. There are four types of market risk: interest
rate risk, cumrency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as stock and bond price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market sk include |loans and borrowings, deposits,
financial assets at FVTPL, eovered warranis and available-for-sale investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 Dacemiber 2024 and for the y=ar then ended

J2.
a2.5

OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
Purpases and policies of financial risk management (continued)
Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk iz the risk that tha fair value or fulure cash Aows of a inansial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market intersst rates. The Company’s exposure o market
rigk is primarily refated to the cash and short-tarm deposits of the Company, as these are
short-tarm investments and are not held by the Company for the purpoze of profting from
wvalue incregses, Most of the financial lizbilities have fived mferast rate.

The Company manages interest rate risk by looking at ihe compatitive structuna of the market
to identify a proper interast rate policy which is favourable for purpeses of the Company within
itz rigk managamant limits.

Mo analysis on interest senskivity is peformed since the Company's exposure o nsk of
changes in interest rate is Insignificant.

Foreign exchange sk

Foreign currency risk s the rigk that the fair value or futura eash flows of a financial instrumant
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operafing
activities {in which revenue or expense 5 denominated in a different currency frem the
Company's accounting curmancy ).

The Company manages foresgn exchange nsk by reviewing the current and projected markst
when planning o buy and sell goods and sarvices in foneign cumrencies, To mitigate foreign
exchange risk, the Company enters into cross-curmancy swap contracts, foreign exchange
forward contracts, ste with commercial banks

Stock and bond price risk

Listed and unfsted stocks and bends which ase held by the Company are affected by markat
resk arising from the uncertainty of future valve of invested stocks and invested bonds, The
Company manages stock and bond price risk by establishing investment limils. The
Company’s Investment Council considers and approves Fvesiments in stocks and bonds

vloar

s TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
&3 at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the yaar then ended

32,

325

OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
Purposes and polieias of financial sk management (continued)
Credil risk

Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty would rot meet its obligations under a linancial
instrument or customer contract, leading to & financial loss. The Company s exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily for loans and receivablas) and from [ts financing
activites, including ceposite with banks, foreign exchanges activies and other financial
Instruments.

Racaivablas

Customer cradit risk is managed by the Caompany based on its established paolicies,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management Credit quality of
customers s evaluated based on Management's assessment

Dulstanding customer recelvables are regulary monitored. Customas creds quality's
impairment & analysed at each reporling date on an individual basis for major clients. The
Company clesely monitors owtslanding receivables and operates a credit confrol unit to
mitigate credit risk, Since the Company's receivables related 10 a large number of diversified
custamers, there is no significant cancentration of credit nsk,

Eank deposits

The Company's bank balances are mainly maintained with well-known banks in Vietnam
Credit risk fram bBalances with banks is managed by the Company's Tressury Department in
accordance with the Company's policy, The Company's maximurm exposurs 1o credit risk for
the companents of the statemant of financal poeition at each reporting date s the carying
value as presantad in Note 5 and Nofe 7.2, The Company evaluates the concenfrabon of
credit risk with respect to bank deposits as low.

Margin lending and advances (o cusfomers

The Company manages its credit risks via the use of internal control pelicies, process and
procedures relevant o margin lending and advance payments to customers, The Comgany
only provides margin lending with securilies eligible to perform margin trading under the
Regulation an Margin Lending and is rated in accordanca with VNDIRECT s pringiple of share
guality sssessment The credit limits are measured based on value of collateral assets,
customer's cradit rativg and other indicators.

The lolowing loans ars considersd as overdua a5 at 31 Dacember 2024 (excluding conlracts
that was esxtended or liquidated before the signing date of this repart), Except for financial
assets which are reserved for impaiment as stated in MNofes 8, according fc the
Managemeant's gssessmeant, the remaining financial assets are neither ovardue nor impaired
as they all have good liquadity,

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yaar then ended

32. OTHER INFORMATION (confinued)
325 Purposes and policies of financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk [confinued) o ND
Lrrancy:

Balance Naithar overdus Ovardue bui nat impaired
Total prowisioned fmar impaked == 80 days 81-180 days =fB0 days =210 davs

Beginning balance 10,285,791 836,320 132.082,141,032 10,009,778, 082, BR8 25752357617 5485918420 2,514,048,982  20,207,306,454
Ending balance  10,343,627,085292  60,087,712,164 10,067,215,053,502 132,750,736,451 47818900404 8,651,158 307  26,184,334,384

Liquidity risk

Legusidity risk Is the rek that the Company will encounter difficutbes in meeting financeal obligations, The Company's exposure to liguidity risk arlses
when the Company s unable o maat its financial abligations as they fall due, primarily due 1o mismatches in the maturity terms of financial assets and
labxlities, The maturity terms of inancial agsels and Babilttizs refliect the remaining penod of financial assats and liabiltes from the end of the accounting
year ta the date of setflement sat out in the contracts or terms of Esuance. For FYTPL and AFS financial assets, the maturity terms are determined
based an the liquidity of the assets (the ability fo ssll and purchase the assets in short ferm) on the markst

The Company manitors its liquidity risk by maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents, borrowings deemead adaquste by the Management to
firance the Company's operations and to mitigate the effects of luctuations in cash flows

a6r
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
&3 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then anded

J.

JLE

DTHER INFORMATION {continued)

Purposes and pelicies of finarcial risk mapagement (continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)

31 December 2024

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assois

FVTPL fimancial assets
HTM irvesimants

Loang [axcuding provisions)
Inwesiments n associaies
Cither leng-term hvesiments

Qther nssets

Deposils, collaterals and pedges

Qiher recelvabbaa [excluding provisicns)
Qiher anaels

Fived assels

(Inctuding comslruchkan in progreas|

Twtal

LIABILITIES

Sho-lern bomowings and insncial
lemees

Bonds issuad

Payakbles for seounibes ireding activilics
Accrued expeanzes

Zislutary ohigations

Cliher lindilibiss

Total

BOS-CTCK

The below table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s assets and liabilities basad on conlractual undiscounted paymants:
Cumency: VIND

MNof evceading  From above O ko

Ovardua Cin damandg 01 waar 05 yoars Créayr 05 yaars Toisd
- 734,456, 660472 148,709,000,000 - - G84, 175 600472
224,431,072, 168  24,519,200,006 788 15,680, 169,013,124 - GHEGB3852,000 41,372 484,844 078
« B4.518.200,006 705 - - - 24 .618200,006,736
. . 5,560,073,000,000 - - 5,560, 873,000,000
224.421,072.188 1011919601 5,124 - - 10343 537 984,292
- - - - E14.505.332,000 814,505, 332.000
- - - - 34,158,520,000 34, 188,520,000
207 450,034 395 £9,772,385,963  1,734,932.637,869 115,756,642.084  87.270,045,850 2,300, 600,958,121
- - 106,245 870,000 3,104 872 428 - 105, 380, 942428
233,455,034 208 2721 TS OFT 1,628,606 967 BRY 1124851 569,006 - 2,077,529, 206,557
= BEASDET B0 2 - - 65 450,073,050
. = - - B7.370.045850 7,270,045, 850
§17,801,006,563  25,322830,088,221 17,681 B10,851,013 115,786,642,024 1,038,833,807 BA0 44,584,241 463,671
- 22435,244)535,316 - - 22,436,244,635,316
. - £00,000.000,000 - - 400,000,000.000
- ] 1,11 2,475.506,257 - . 1,913,478, 966,297
- 58, 396,523,084 . . 5B, 366,521 024
- - 236,583,401 372 - - 236,503,401,372
204,741,347 232 40,267 105,058 - - 335, 008,453,151
- 204,741,347 733 24,284 666,612,028 - . 34,870.707,978,260
B1T 804,006,563  25008007,718,889  (6,723,155,781,015) 115,756,642,024 1,035933,897,650 19,974,533, 484,411

Het liquidity difference

GE
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33.

OTHER INFORMATION (confinuad)
Purposes and policies of financial risk mamagement (continuad)

Collatorals

The Gompany also uses shart-term and leng-term financial assats fo secure its short=term
loans from credit instiutions. As at 31 Decamber 2024, the balance of financkal assels wsed
as collaterals for the Company's short-tenm loans was VND 15,049 billion {23 8 31 December
2023: VND 11 425 billion)

Tne Company held securities as pledged assets for margin loans of customers as at 31
Decembar 2024

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Thera is no mafier or circumstance that has arisan since the balance sheet date thal requiras
adjustment ar disclosure in the financial statements of the Company.
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Ms. Le Thi Hoai Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Mr. Mguyen Vu Long
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director




